

# **REQUEST FOR TENDER**

Register of Prequalified Suppliers (ROPS) Trade Maintenance and Associated Services

CONTRACT NO: T2324.46



# PART 1 – PREAMBLE

Banana Shire Council invites tenders from suitably qualified tenderers for appointment as a pre-qualified supplier of trade maintenance and other associated services throughout the Shire as described in more detail in Part 5 – Scope and Technical Specifications. Prequalified supplier status will be awarded for a period of 1 year with a possible 6-month extension.

<ol> <li>Contract det</li> </ol>	ails:	T2324.46 Register of Prequalified Suppliers (ROPS) Trade maintenance and Associated Services.			tenance and	
2. Communica Tenderers:	tions by	Communications regarding the Procurement Process must be submitted to <u>enquiries@banana.qld.gov.au</u> no later than five (5) calendar days prior to the time s in Item 4				
<ol> <li>Briefing or s inspection:</li> </ol>	ite	Details	Maximum attendees	Mandatory	RS	/P
		Tender Briefing, to be held on the 27 <sup>th</sup> of August 2024, 9.00am 62 Valentines Plains Road, Biloela Qld 4715 – A team's link will be made available for those who cannot attend in person	N/A	□ Yes ⊠ No	<u>enq</u> v.at	/P to <u>uiries@banana.qld.g</u> ı by the 26 <sup>th</sup> of Augus 4 11:00am
4. Submission Tender:	of	Tenders must be submitted electronically only at tenders@banana.qld.gov.au by no later than 11:00am on <b>18<sup>th</sup> of September 2024</b> . <i>Note//</i> Adequate time must be allowed for the Tender and all supporting documents to be uploaded or received by this time.				
5. Evaluation C	Criteria:	Evaluation Criteria			Weighting (%) (Optional)	
		Price			30	
		Range of Services			20	
		Previous Experience			15	
		Quality, Environmental, Safety and Other Management Processes			20	
		Local Content				15
<ol> <li>Tenders sho be longer the</li> </ol>		N/A				
7. Tenders to b for:	e valid	90 calendar days after the time stated in Item 4 (as extended if at all, pursuant to the Procurement Process Conditions)				
B. Complaints:		Complaints regarding Procurement Process to be directed to: enquiries@banana.qlod.gov.au				
o. Complainto:						

Procurement Process Conditions attached to or provided with this Request for Tender and identified as T2324.4 Register of Prequalified Suppliers (ROPS) Trade Maintenance and Associated Services - Procurement Process Conditions.



# PART 4 – CONTRACT

The contract shall be substantially in the form attached to or provided with this Request for Tender and identified as T2324.46 Register of Prequalified Suppliers (ROPS) Trade Maintenance and Associated Services – Contract.

# PART 5 – SCOPE

The Scope is described in the document(s) attached to or provided with this Request for Tender and identified as

T2324.46 Register of Prequalified Suppliers (ROPS) Trade Maintenance and Associated Services – Scope T2324.46 Register of Prequalified Suppliers (ROPS) Trade Maintenance and Associated Services – Technical Specifications

T2324.46 Register of Prequalified Suppliers (ROPS) Trade Maintenance and Associated Services – General Specifications

# **PART 6 – RESPONSE SCHEDULES**

The Tender must be submitted in the form provided in the response schedules attached to or provided with this Request for Tender and identified as T2324.46 Register of Prequalified Suppliers (ROPS) Trade Maintenance and Associated Services – Response Schedules



Register of Prequalified Suppliers (ROPS) Trade Maintenance and Associated Services

CONTRACT NO: T2324.46

# Contents

1.	GENERAL	.2
2.	BRIEFINGS AND SITE INSPECTIONS (RFT AND RFEOI ONLY)	.3
3.	COMMUNICATIONS DURING PROCUREMENT PROCESS	.3
4.	THE RESPONSE (RFT AND RFQ ONLY)	.3
5.	RESPONDENT'S GENERAL WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS	.4
6.	RESPONDENT'S FURTHER WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS (RFT AND RFQ ONL	
7.	LODGEMENT AND OPENING OF RESPONSES	.6
8.	ASSESSMENT OF RESPONSES	.7
9.	SHORTLISTING (RFEOI ONLY)	.8
10.	ACCEPTANCE (RFT AND RFQ ONLY)	.8
11.	DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION	.9
12.	DEFINITIONS	11
13.	GENERAL PROVISIONS	16



# 1. GENERAL

- 1.1 (Conduct of the Procurement Process) The Principal will endeavour to conduct the Procurement Process in a manner which is consistent with these Procurement Process Conditions.
- 1.2 (**Rights of the Principal**) The Principal may do anything which it considers to be prudent or necessary for the proper conduct of the Procurement Process, including:
  - (a) (alteration of Procurement Documents) amend, add to or delete any part of the Procurement Documents including:
    - (i) the procedures and timeframes provided in the Procurement Process Conditions;
    - (ii) the Evaluation Criteria (including weightings);
    - (iii) the Scope; and
    - (iv) where one is included in the Procurement Documents, the Contract;
  - (b) (suspension or termination) suspend or terminate the Procurement Process;
  - (c) (attendances) request any one or more Respondents to attend a briefing, site inspection or other meeting or to make a presentation of their Response in person at the Principal's office at no cost to the Principal;
  - (d) (change or error in Procurement Documents) request any one or more Respondents to change their Response to take account of a change in the Procurement Documents or any error in such documents;
  - (e) (clarification or alteration) request any one or more Respondents to clarify or alter any aspect of the Respondent's Response;
  - (f) (additional information) request additional information from one or more Respondents relating to a Response, the Procurement Process, the Respondent's compliance with the Procurement Process Conditions or any other matter which the Principal considers relevant to its assessment (including information that should have been, but was not, included in the Respondent's Response);
  - (g) (**negotiation**) negotiate amendments to any aspect of a Response with any one or more Respondents and suspend or terminate such negotiations at any time;
  - (h) (revised Responses) invite one or more Respondents to provide a revised Response or best and final offer; and/or
  - (i) (**shortlisting**) create a shortlist of one or more Respondents and exercise any of its rights only in respect of one or more of the shortlisted Respondents.
- 1.3 (Conduct of Respondents) The Respondent must not, and must ensure that its Personnel do not, engage in any Improper Conduct. The Respondent must immediately notify the Principal in the event that it becomes aware that it, or any of its Personnel, have engaged in Improper Conduct. Where appropriate, the Principal may report Improper Conduct by the Respondent to the appropriate Authority and provide that Authority with any relevant information related to that conduct.
- 1.4 (**Complaints in relation to the Procurement Process**) The Respondent must make any complaint in relation to the Procurement Process using the Communication Method immediately upon the cause of the complaint arising or upon the Respondent becoming aware of the cause. The complaint must be made in writing to the Complaints Manager and must contain adequate detail to allow the Complaints Manager to properly investigate the complaint.



- 1.5 (**No warranty**) The Principal gives no warranty and makes no representation that the Procurement Documents or any other information provided to the Respondent in connection with the Procurement Process is accurate, adequate or complete.
- 1.6 (**No liability**) Neither the Principal nor its Personnel shall be liable upon any Claim for any Specified Loss in connection with the Procurement Process.

## 2. BRIEFINGS AND SITE INSPECTIONS (RFT AND RFEOI ONLY)

- 2.1 (Attendance) The Respondent must attend any briefing or a site inspection which is identified in the General Information as mandatory. Respondents are encouraged to attend any briefing or site inspection which is not described as mandatory.
- 2.2 (**RSVP**) The Respondent must confirm that it intends to attend the briefing or site inspection to the email address and by the time and date stated in the General Information and may only bring a maximum of the number of Personnel stated in the General Information.
- 2.3 (**Safety**) The Respondent must inform itself of risks to health and safety arising from attendance at the briefing or site inspection and take all reasonable steps to ensure that such risks are eliminated or, if it is not possible to eliminate them, to minimise them so far as is practicable.
- 2.4 (**Obligation to inspect**) Where no site inspection is identified in the General Information, the Respondent must make its own arrangements to inspect the site prior to lodging its Response.

## 3. COMMUNICATIONS DURING PROCUREMENT PROCESS

- 3.1 (**Communication Method**) All communications by the Principal to the Respondent shall at first instance be made using the Communication Method. Except where expressly permitted by these Procurement Process Conditions, all communications by the Respondent to the Principal in connection with the Procurement Process shall at first instance be directed to the Principal using the Communication Method. No other communication method may be utilised by the Respondent unless expressly permitted by the Principal or where technical difficulties prevent the Respondent from utilising the Communication Method or the Principal expressly agrees to an alternative method.
- 3.2 (**Respondent's responsibility**) The Respondent must ensure that it is capable of receiving and does receive all communications to the Respondent in connection with the Procurement Process. Where the Communication Method is email, it is the Respondent's responsibility to ensure that it notifies the Principal of the correct email address for receiving communications. Where the Communication Method is through a website, the Respondent must ensure that it is properly registered with and capable of receiving communications through the website.
- 3.3 (**Confidentiality of communications**) The Principal may notify any or all Respondents of a request for further information made by a Respondent and the Principal's response to it without identifying the submitting Respondent or may keep a request for information confidential and respond only to the Respondent if it considers that it is appropriate to do so.
- 3.4 (**No reliance**) The Respondent must not rely upon any information (including information provided at a briefing or site inspection) unless it is confirmed by the Principal through the Communication Method.
- 3.5 (**Communication Closing Time**) The Principal will not respond to any request for information received after the Communication Closing Time.

#### 4. THE RESPONSE (RFT AND RFQ ONLY)

- 4.1 (Application of clause) This clause 4 only applies in respect of an RFT or an RFQ.
- 4.2 (Acceptance of Contract and Scope) If one has not been provided, the Respondent must obtain a copy of the Contract from the Principal by requesting a copy through the Communication Method. Except to the extent that the Respondent has detailed a proposed



alternative, amendment, qualification or departure in a Response, the Respondent will be taken to have unconditionally accepted and agreed to:

- (a) be bound by the terms and conditions of the Contract; and
- (b) carry out and complete the whole of the obligations described in or to be reasonably inferred from the Procurement Documents.
- 4.3 (**Price**) The Price must be submitted exclusive of GST and in Australian dollars.
- 4.4 (**Discrepancy in Price**) Where the Response Form requires the Respondent to provide a Price and there is a discrepancy between the amount stated in the Response Form as the Respondent's Price and the sum total of the items in any Price Schedule then:
  - (a) if the Contract provides that it is a lump sum contract, then the sum total of the items in the Price Schedule shall be the Respondent's Price; or
  - (b) if the Contract provides that it is a schedule of rates contract or a part lump sum and part schedule of rates contract, then the rate, price or lump sum of each item will prevail over the total shown, and the total shall be adjusted accordingly.
- 4.5 (**Response Validity Period**) The Respondent's Response will remain valid and open for acceptance by the Principal until the end of the Response Validity Period and thereafter until it is withdrawn in writing by the Respondent or the Procurement Process is finalised. The Principal may consent to the Respondent withdrawing its Response before the end of the Response Validity Period. The Principal may request an extension of the Response Validity Period at any time by giving written notice to the Respondent. If the Respondent does not agree to the requested extension then the Principal may exclude the Respondent's Response from assessment or further assessment as the case may be.
- 4.6 (Alternative Responses) If the Respondent wishes to submit an Alternative Response, then the Respondent is encouraged to:
  - (a) also submit a Conforming Response; and
  - (b) submit the Alternative Response on a separate Response Form to the Conforming Response, clearly marked, "ALTERNATIVE RESPONSE" accompanied by a clear summary of all points of difference between the Alternative Response and the Conforming Response.

#### 5. **RESPONDENT'S GENERAL WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS**

- 5.1 (**Warranties and Representations**) By lodging a Response, the Respondent warrants and represents that:
  - (a) (conduct of Respondent) neither the Respondent nor any of its employees or agents has engaged in any Improper Conduct;
  - (b) (**authority**) the Response has been signed and lodged by a person with authority to do so on behalf of the Respondent;
  - (c) (basis of Response) the Respondent:
    - (i) has received or obtained copies of all of the Procurement Documents and all information or documents referred to in the Procurement Documents; and
    - (ii) has not relied on the accuracy, adequacy or completeness of any documents or information provided or any representation made by or on behalf of the Principal in connection with the Procurement Process in preparing its Response;



- (d) (accuracy of Response) all information provided in or with the Response is accurate;
- (e) (ability) the Respondent and its relevant Personnel:
  - hold (and are compliant with all requirements of) all necessary competencies, licences (including if necessary, a licence under the Queensland Building and Construction Commission Act 1991 (Qld)), accreditations, certifications, permits, clearances and other authorisations which will be required for the Respondent to carry out the Scope if it is ultimately engaged to carry out that Scope; and
  - (ii) are not excluded from submitting a tender under any applicable Queensland or Federal Government scheme, code or policy;
- (f) (suitability etc. of works, goods or services) where the Principal has stated in the Procurement Documents the purpose(s) for which the works, goods or services must be suitable, appropriate, adequate or fit, the works, goods or services shall be suitable, appropriate, adequate and fit for those purposes (but this warranty and representation will not apply to the extent (if any) that the Respondent has expressly excluded or limited it in the Respondent's Response);
- (g) (Effect of implied warranties) neither clause 5 nor clause 6 shall operate in any way to limit, exclude or otherwise restrict the operation of any warranty implied by law.

# 6. RESPONDENT'S FURTHER WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS (RFT AND RFQ ONLY)

- 6.1 (Application of clause) This clause 6 only applies in respect of an RFT or an RFQ.
- 6.2 (Warranties and Representations) By lodging a Response, the Respondent warrants and represents that:
  - (a) (**investigations**) the Respondent has undertaken its own enquiries and investigations to satisfy itself of:
    - the nature and extent of the Scope, its contractual obligations and all other risks, contingencies and other circumstances which could have an impact on its ability to carry out and complete the obligations it will have under the Contract if its Response is accepted for the Price; and
    - the suitability, appropriateness and adequacy of the Scope (including, in respect of contracts under which the successful Respondent is required to design works, any preliminary design included in the Scope) for the purposes stated in or to be reasonably inferred from the Scope;
  - (b) (ability) the Respondent and its relevant Personnel:
    - (i) have and will maintain the necessary experience, expertise and skill to perform its obligations under the Contract in accordance with the requirements of the Contract in the event that its Response is accepted; and
    - (ii) have and will maintain the resources necessary to comply with the timeframes for the performance of the Contract stated in the Procurement Documents (as amended if at all, pursuant to these Procurement Process Conditions);
  - (c) (price) the Price, and all rates, sums and prices included in the Response allow for:
    - all of the risks, contingencies and other circumstances which could have an effect on the Respondent's ability to carry out and complete the obligations it will have under the Contract if its Response is accepted for the Price, except to the extent that the Contract expressly allows an adjustment;



- (ii) the provision of all materials, plant, labour and other services necessary for the proper completion of the obligations it will have under the Contract if its Response is accepted, whether or not those items are expressly mentioned in the Contract; and
- (iii) unless the Contract expressly allows an adjustment, rise and fall in costs;
- (d) (competitive neutrality) if the Respondent is required by law to comply with principles of competitive neutrality, the Respondent has properly considered, assessed and complied with the applicable competitive neutrality principles in relation to the Procurement Process and the acceptance by the Principal of the Respondent's Response will not breach those principles;
- (e) (**notice**) the Respondent has notified the Principal in its Response of any:
  - (i) ambiguity, inconsistency, uncertainty, error or omission which it has discovered in or from the Procurement Documents;
  - (ii) any assumptions that it has made in determining its Price;
  - (iii) further information or investigations which it considers that it requires to enable it to give the warranties and make the representations in this clause 6,

and otherwise gives all warranties and makes all representations which the Contract requires to be given or made by the successful Respondent. The Respondent acknowledges that the Principal will rely on these warranties and representations in entering into a contract with the successful Respondent.

# 7. LODGEMENT AND OPENING OF RESPONSES

- 7.1 (Method of lodgement) A Response must be lodged:
  - (a) if the Tender Box is a website, by uploading it to the Tender Box;
  - (b) if the Tender Box is an email address, by sending it as an attachment to an email to the Tender Box; or
  - (c) if the Tender Box is a physical address, by delivering it to the Tender Box.

The Principal may direct or allow the Response to be lodged by an alternative method.

- 7.2 (**Time of lodgement**) A document forming part of a Response shall be deemed to have been lodged:
  - where the Tender Box is a website, at the time that the document is successfully uploaded to the Tender Box, as indicated on the electronic receipt issued to the Respondent;
  - (b) where the Tender Box is an email address, at the time that an email attaching the document is successfully delivered to the Tender Box, as indicated on the email system on which the Tender Box is hosted;
  - (c) where the Tender Box is a physical address, at the time that the document is physically received at the Tender Box; or
  - (d) where the Response is lodged by an alternative method allowed by the Principal, when it is received by the Principal by that method.
- 7.3 (**Response opening**) Responses will not be opened publicly and the Respondent will not be permitted to attend the opening of Responses.



## 8. ASSESSMENT OF RESPONSES

- 8.1 (Evaluation Criteria) In determining which Response(s) are most advantageous to the Principal, each Response evaluated in accordance with these Procurement Process Conditions will be assessed, but not necessarily exclusively, against the Evaluation Criteria (if any).
- 8.2 (**Considerations**) In assessing Responses, the Principal may consider any information which the Principal reasonably considers to be relevant to its assessment (however obtained), including:
  - (a) information contained in the Response or any amendment to or clarification of a Response;
  - (b) information provided at a meeting with or presentation by the Respondent;
  - (c) outcomes from discussions with a Respondent's referees (if any);
  - (d) information obtained pursuant to clause 8.5;
  - (e) the Respondent's past performance under other contracts with the Principal or third parties; and
  - (f) the reasonably held subjective opinions of the persons appointed by the Principal to evaluate Responses or any advisor to such persons.
- 8.3 (**Uncertainties**) The Principal may ignore any part of a Response which is ambiguous, uncertain, unclear or illegible without seeking clarification from the Respondent and may assess the balance of the Response.
- 8.4 (**Right to exclude**) The Principal may, but shall not be obliged to, reject or exclude from assessment any Response including:
  - (a) a Non-Conforming Response, an Alternative Response or a Late Response;
  - (b) a Response, in respect of which the Principal reasonably believes that the Respondent has:
    - failed to comply with these Procurement Process Conditions or any request made by or on behalf of the Principal pursuant to them within the time required; or
    - breached a warranty given or representation made pursuant to these Procurement Process Conditions or that a warranty, declaration or representation in the Respondent's Response is false or misleading in any material respect;
  - (c) a Response in respect of which the Principal reasonably believes that the Respondent cannot reasonably comply with the obligations which it will have under the Contract (in the event that its Response is successful) for the Price; or
  - (d) a Response which fails to achieve a satisfactory score against any of the Evaluation Criteria, even if the overall score of the Response is satisfactory;
- 8.5 (Other information or assistance) The Principal may undertake its own investigations, or engage third parties to do so on its behalf, in relation to any aspect of a Response (including verifying any warranty, representation or declaration made or given in the Response or pursuant to these Procurement Process Conditions) or any other matter which it considers relevant to the conduct of the Procurement Process. The Respondent must cooperate with such investigations and provide all information and assistance reasonably requested by or on behalf of the Principal in connection with the investigation.



# 9. SHORTLISTING (RFEOI ONLY)

- 9.1 (Application of clause) This clause 9 only applies in respect of an RFEOI.
- 9.2 (**Shortlisting**) The Principal intends, but is not bound, to create a shortlist of Respondents and invite tenders from the shortlisted Respondents.
- 9.3 (**No obligation**) The Principal is not bound to shortlist or invite a tender from any Respondent, including the Respondents with the highest scores against the Evaluation Criteria. The Principal may shortlist and invite tenders from as many or as few Respondents as the Principal sees fit and may choose not to shortlist any Responses or invite any tenders.
- 9.4 (Local preference) The Principal may shortlist an EOI that is from a Local Supplier in preference to comparable EOIs from Non-Local Suppliers even if the EOIs from the Non-Local Suppliers have been assessed as more favourable in terms of one or more Evaluation Criteria.
- 9.5 (**RFT**) A Respondent shall not be entitled to submit a tender unless and until the Principal expressly invites the Respondent to submit a tender in writing.
- 9.6 (Unsuccessful Respondents) Unsuccessful Respondents will be notified after the Procurement Process is concluded. The Principal may provide feedback to unsuccessful Respondents if requested to do so, but such feedback may be general in nature, will be limited to the Respondent's EOI only and may be postponed until after any related Request for Tender process is finalised.

## 10. ACCEPTANCE (RFT AND RFQ ONLY)

- 10.1 (Application of clause) This clause 10 only applies in respect of an RFT or an RFQ.
- 10.2 (Ability to accept) The Principal is not bound to accept the Response with the lowest Price or the Response with the highest score against the Evaluation Criteria, or any Response. The Principal will, if it accepts a Response, accept the Response(s) which it reasonably believes are the most advantageous to it having regard to the Sound Contracting Principles and the requirements of the *Local Government Regulation 2012* (Qld) to the extent that they are applicable and relevant to the Procurement Process.
- 10.3 (Local preference) The Principal may accept a Response lodged by a Local Supplier in preference to comparable Responses from Non-Local Suppliers even if the Responses from the Non-Local Suppliers have been assessed as more favourable in terms of one or more Evaluation Criteria, so long as the overall differences are not substantial, and so long as it is clear that the Local Supplier can meet the Principal's requirements at an acceptable standard which is generally comparable to that of the Non-Local Suppliers.
- 10.4 (Acceptance of more than one Response and acceptance of part of a Response) The Principal may accept a Response in whole or in part. Without limiting this, where the Scope comprises distinct portions of works, goods or services, the Principal may accept a Response from one or more Respondents in relation to different portions of the works, goods or services as if those portions had been the subject of separate Procurement Processes.
- 10.5 (**No contract or appointment until formal acceptance**) Unless and until the Principal expressly notifies the Respondent in writing that the Respondent's Response (as amended by any post-Response negotiation, if any) has been successful or the parties execute a contract:
  - (a) no binding contract for the provision of any work, services and/or goods by the Respondent will exist between the parties; and
  - (b) in respect of an RFT for appointment as a Pre-qualified Supplier or Preferred Supplier, the Respondent will not be considered to be appointed as a Pre-qualified Supplier or Preferred Supplier.



For clarity, a statement published by the Principal but not specifically notified to the Respondent (including a record of a council resolution) to the effect that a Response has been accepted or a contract has been awarded does not, of itself, constitute an acceptance of the Response or notice that the Response has been successful or constitute a rejection of any other Response.

- 10.6 (**Form of Contract**) Unless the RFT or RFQ stated that the Respondent would not be required to enter into a contract until it is separately engaged by the Principal to provide works, goods or services, if a Response is accepted, the successful Respondent will be required to enter into a contract in the form of the Contract, as amended by agreement between the parties.
- 10.7 (**Unsuccessful Respondents)** Unsuccessful Respondents will be notified after a Response has been accepted. The Principal may, at its discretion, notify unsuccessful Respondents of the name of, and Price submitted by, the successful Respondent. The Principal may provide feedback to unsuccessful Respondents if requested to do so, but such feedback may be general in nature and will be limited to the Respondent's Response only.
- 10.8 (Arrangement with other local governments) The Respondent acknowledges that if, pursuant to the Procurement Process, the Respondent is selected to be a Preferred Supplier or Pre-qualified Supplier for goods and/or services then any Related Local Government may make a contract with the Respondent for the supply of those goods and/or services, as if that Related Local Government had itself selected the Respondent to be a Preferred Supplier or Pre-qualified Supplier of those goods and/or services.

# 11. DOCUMENTS AND INFORMATION

- 11.1 (**Ownership**) The Procurement Documents remain the property of the Principal. The Response will become the property of the Principal upon lodgement.
- 11.2 (Intellectual Property Rights) Intellectual Property Rights in documents and information provided on behalf of a party in connection with the Procurement Process remain, as between the parties, with the party on whose behalf they were provided. The Principal and the Respondent grant each other a perpetual, non-exclusive, royalty free licence to do the things contemplated by clause 11.9. The licence so granted by the Respondent is irrevocable. The licence granted by the Principal may be revoked at any time on the giving of written notice.
- 11.3 (Warranty and representation) The Respondent warrants and represents that:
  - (a) it owns or has a right to use the Intellectual Property Rights in its Response for the purpose of lodging a Response and undertaking the obligations which it will have under a contract with the Principal in the event that the Respondent's Response is accepted; and
  - (b) it has the right and authority to grant the licence in clause 11.2 and the Principal's exercise of the rights so granted will not infringe the Intellectual Property Rights of a third party.
- 11.4 (**Confidentiality**) Except to the extent otherwise provided in these Procurement Process Conditions, each party shall keep Confidential Information of the other party confidential. The Respondent must inform each of its Personnel and any other person to whom Confidential Information of the Principal is disclosed of the Respondent's obligations under this clause 11.4. Subject to clause 11.9(b), the Respondent must return any and all Confidential Information when requested to do so by the Principal.
- 11.5 (Information Privacy Act) If the Respondent collects or has access to 'Personal Information' as that term is defined in the *Information Privacy Act 2009* (Qld) in connection with the Procurement Process, the Respondent must comply with Parts 1 and 3 of Chapter 2 of that Act as if the Respondent was the Principal. The Principal collects and uses personal information and non-personal information in the Response so that it can properly conduct the Procurement Process and otherwise carry out its functions as a Local Government. The Principal is authorised to collect this information under the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld) and the *Local Government Regulation 2012* (Qld) and other law. The information in the Respondent's Response will be accessible by employees of the Principal and third party personnel engaged



to assist the Principal in conducting the Procurement Process or otherwise carrying out the functions of the Principal. Information in the Response may also be disclosed as required by the *Local Government Regulation 2012* (Qld) and the *Right to Information Act 2009* (Qld) as described below.

- 11.6 (Local Government Regulation) The Local Government Regulation 2012 (Qld) provides that the Principal must, as soon as possible after entering into a contractual arrangement worth \$200,000 or more (exclusive of GST) publish relevant details of the contract (including the person with whom the Principal has entered into the contractual arrangement, the value of the contractual arrangement and the purpose of the contractual arrangement) on the Principal's website and display those details in a conspicuous place in the Principal's public office. The relevant details must be published or displayed in this manner for a period of at least 12 months.
- 11.7 The *Local Government Regulation 2012* (Qld) may also require the Principal to make documentation and information contained in, or provided by the Respondent in connection with, a Response (including documentation and information identified by the Respondent as confidential) publicly available where that documentation or information is:
  - (a) discussed in a Local Government Meeting;
  - (b) included in a report or other document that:
    - (i) relates to an item on the agenda for a Local Government Meeting and is made available to Councillors or committee members for the purposes of the meeting;
    - (ii) is directly relevant to a matter considered or voted on at a Local Government Meeting; or
    - (iii) is presented at a Local Government Meeting for the consideration or information of the Local Government or committee; or
  - (c) otherwise required to be disclosed pursuant to a provision of *the Local Government Act* 2009 (Qld) or the *Local Government Regulation* 2012 (Qld).
- 11.8 (**Right to Information**) The *Right to Information Act 2009* (Qld) provides members of the public with a legally enforceable right to access documents held by Queensland Government agencies (including the Principal). The Act requires that documents be disclosed upon request, unless the documents are exempt or on balance, disclosure is contrary to public interest. Information or documentation contained in or provided by the Respondent in connection with a Response is potentially subject to disclosure to third parties, including documentation and information identified by the Respondent as confidential. Any application for disclosure will be assessed in accordance with the terms of the Act. Notwithstanding any other provision of the Procurement Documents or a Response, if a Response is accepted, the Principal may publish on a Queensland Government website or by any other means, contract information including:
  - (a) the name and address of the Principal and the successful Respondent;
  - (b) a description of the goods and/or services to be provided or works to be carried out pursuant to the contract;
  - (c) the date of award of the contract (including the relevant stages if the contract involves more than one stage);
  - (d) the contract value (including the value for each stage if the contract involves more than one stage and advice as to whether any non-price criteria were used in the evaluation of Responses);
  - (e) the procurement method used; and
  - (f) for contracts with a value over \$10 million, the contract, or summary information in respect of the contract, between the Principal and the Respondent.
- 11.9 (**Use of documents and information**) Documents and information provided on behalf of a party to the other party in connection with the Procurement Process (including documentation and



information identified by the Respondent as confidential) may be used, copied, modified or disclosed as required by any law and otherwise:

- (a) by the Principal, as the Principal considers to be reasonably necessary to:
  - (i) properly conduct the Procurement Process;
  - (ii) exercise the rights granted to it in these Procurement Process Conditions;
  - (iii) obtain legal, accounting or other professional advice in connection with the Response;
  - (iv) report any actual or suspected Improper Conduct to the appropriate Authority; and/or;
  - (v) to otherwise properly carry out its functions as a Local Government;
- (b) by the Respondent, as is reasonably necessary to enable the Respondent to:
  - (i) prepare the Response;
  - (ii) obtain legal, accounting or other professional advice in connection with the Response; or
  - (iii) comply with the Respondent's corporate governance requirements.

If the Respondent is required by law to disclose Confidential Information of the Principal, the Respondent must notify the Principal of this prior to making such disclosure and must only disclose the minimum amount of information required to meet is obligation to disclose.

11.10 (Media) The Respondent must not, either on its own account or in conjunction with other parties, issue any publication, advertisement, document, article or information whether verbal or written, in connection with the Procurement Process in any media without the prior approval of the Principal.

## 12. DEFINITIONS

- 12.1 (**Definitions**) In these Procurement Process Conditions, unless the context otherwise requires:
  - (a) Addenda and Addendum means any communication issued to Respondents in accordance with these Procurement Process Conditions which is identified as an Addendum;
  - (b) **Alternative Response** means a Response which is otherwise a Conforming Response but which in the opinion of the Principal, contains significant alternatives, qualifications or amendments to or departures from the Contract or the Scope;
  - (c) Authority means a local government, the State of Queensland, the Commonwealth or other any Federal, State, or local government authority, administrative or judicial body or tribunal, department, commission, agency, government owned corporation, statutory body or instrumentality having jurisdiction over the project;
  - (d) **Business Day** means a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or public holiday at Biloela;
  - (e) Claim includes any claim, action, demand, proceeding, suit, defence or set-off, however arising including at law (including a breach of an express or implied term of contract), under statute, in equity, in tort (including for negligence), in quasi-contract, for unjust enrichment and to the extent permitted by law, pursuant to any other principle of law, in connection with the Procurement Process;



- (f) **Communication Closing Time** means the time identified in the General Information as the time by which communications by Respondents must be submitted;
- (g) **Communication Method** means submitting an enquiry through the website forum or sending an email to the email address nominated for communications by Respondents in the General Information;
- (h) **Complaints Manager** means the person identified in the General Information as the person to whom complaints regarding the Procurement Process should be directed;
- (i) Confidential Information means documents and information provided or made available by or on behalf of one party to the other party in connection with the Procurement Process which are of their nature confidential (including copies of such documents and information) but not including documents and information which are in the public domain other than through a breach of clause 11.4;
- (j) **Conforming Response** means a Response which, in the opinion of the Principal:
  - is substantially in the form and contains substantially all of the documentation, information, acknowledgements, warranties, declarations and undertakings required by the Response Schedules;
  - (ii) contains no significant alternatives, qualifications or amendments to or departures from the Contract or the Scope; and
  - (iii) in respect of Tenders or EOIs only, does not substantially exceed the Maximum Page Limit (if any);
- (k) **Contract** means:
  - a contract which may be entered into between the Principal and a Respondent pursuant to an RFT or RFQ and which will be in the form referenced in Part 4 – Contract of the RFT or RFQ, as amended (if at all) by the express written agreement of the Principal; and
  - (ii) where an RFT is for appointment as a Preferred Supplier or Pre-qualified Supplier, also includes a contract which may be entered into during the term of the appointment unless the context requires otherwise;
- (I) **Councillor** has the same meaning as in the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld);
- (m) EOI (Expression of Interest) means a Response lodged by a Respondent in response to an RFEOI and includes all documents and information lodged with or as part of the expression of interest;
- (n) **Evaluation Criteria** means:
  - (i) for an RFT or an RFEOI, the evaluation criteria (if any) set out in the General Information; and
  - (ii) for an RFQ, the evaluation criteria (if any) set out in the RFQ;
- (o) **General Information** means Part 2 General Information of the RFQ, RFT or RFEOI (as the case may be);
- (p) **GST** has the same meaning as in the *A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999* (Cth);
- (q) **Improper Conduct** means:



- engaging in any activity or obtaining any interest which results in or is likely to result in any actual, potential or perceived conflict between the interests of the Respondent and the Respondent's obligations to the Principal in connection with the Procurement Process;
- (ii) engaging in misleading or deceptive conduct in connection with the Procurement Process;
- (iii) engaging in any collusive tendering, anticompetitive conduct, or any other unlawful or unethical conduct with any other Respondent, or any other person in connection with the Procurement Process;
- (iv) canvassing, attempting to improperly influence, offering any inducement to or accepting or inviting improper assistance from any Councillor or other Personnel (or former Personnel) of the Principal in connection with the Procurement Process;
- (v) using any information improperly obtained, or obtained in breach of any obligation of confidentiality in preparing the Respondent's Response;
- (vi) breaching any law in connection with the Procurement Process;
- (vii) engaging in aggressive, threatening, abusive, offensive or other inappropriate behaviour or committing a criminal offence; or
- (viii) engaging in conduct contrary to sections 199 and 200 of the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld);
- (r) Intellectual Property Rights means copyright, patents and all rights in relation to inventions, registered and unregistered trademarks (including service marks), registered designs, circuit layouts and all other rights resulting from intellectual activity in the industrial, scientific, literary or artistic fields;
- (s) **Late Response** means any Response that is not received in the Tender Box (or otherwise received by the Principal by an alternative method permitted under the Procurement Process Conditions) by the Response Closing Time;
- (t) **Local Government** has the same meaning as in the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld);
- (u) **Local Government Meeting** has the has the same meaning as in the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld);
- (v) Local Supplier:
  - (i) where the Principal's procurement policy provides a meaning of local supplier, has the meaning given in the Principal's procurement policy, a copy of which can be obtained from the Principal upon request; or
  - (ii) where the Principal does not have a procurement policy, or the procurement policy does not provide a meaning of local supplier, means a supplier that:
    - (A) is beneficially owned and operated by persons who are residents or ratepayers of the local government area of the Principal as determined under the *Local Government Regulation 2012* (Qld); or
    - (B) has its principal place of business within that local government area; or
    - (C) otherwise has a place of business within that local government area that solely or primarily employs persons who are residents or ratepayers of that local government area;



- (w) **Maximum Page Limit** means the number of pages which may be lodged as, with or in relation to the Response (including, unless otherwise indicated, all attachments, annexures, supplements, parts, schedules or appendices), which the General Information states a Response should not be longer than;
- (x) **Non-Conforming Response** means a Response which is not a Conforming Response or an Alternative Response;
- (y) **Non-Local Supplier** means a supplier (including a Respondent) that is not a Local Supplier;
- (z) **Personnel** includes the officers, employees, agents, representatives, contractors and consultants of a party and any other person or entity for whom that party is vicariously liable;
- (aa) **Preamble** means Part 1 Preamble of the RFEOI, RFT or RFQ (as the case may be);
- (bb) **Preferred Supplier** means a supplier that has been selected as a preferred supplier pursuant to section 233 of the *Local Government Regulation 2012* (Qld);
- (cc) **Pre-qualified Supplier** means a supplier that has been selected as a pre-qualified supplier pursuant to section 232 of the *Local Government Regulation 2012* (Qld);
- (dd) **Price** means:
  - (i) where the Procurement Process is for appointment as a Preferred Supplier or Pre-qualified Supplier, the rates, sums or prices stated in the Response;
  - (ii) otherwise, subject to clause 4.4, the total price stated in the Response;
- (ee) **Price Schedule** means a Response Schedule which provides a breakdown of the Price, and which may include rates, lump sums, prices, provisional sums, estimated quantities and other information;
- (ff) **Principal** or **Purchaser** means Banana Shire Council;
- (gg) **Procurement Documents** means:
  - (i) the RFEOI, RFT or RFQ (as the case may be); and
  - (ii) any Addenda issued pursuant to these Procurement Process Conditions,

and includes all documents included in or incorporated by reference into these documents;

- (hh) **Procurement Process** means the process by which the Principal intends to, or does, invite, assess and where applicable, accept or reject Responses in respect of the Scope;
- (ii) **Procurement Process Conditions** means these procurement process conditions;
- (jj) **Quotation** means a Response lodged by a Respondent in response to an RFQ and includes all documents and information lodged with or as part of the quotation;
- (kk) Related Local Government means a local government that has entered into an arrangement with the Principal, as contemplated in section 235(f) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 (Qld), to the effect that the local government may make a contract with a supplier that has been selected by the Principal to be a Preferred Supplier or Pre-qualified Supplier of goods and/or services, as if that local government had itself selected that supplier to be a Preferred Supplier or Pre-qualified Supplier of those goods and/or services.



## (II) **Respondent** means:

- (i) any person who lodges a Response; and
- (ii) to the extent to which the term can apply to any other person who obtains a copy of any of the Procurement Documents during the Procurement Process, also includes such other persons,

and includes a Tenderer;

- (mm) **Response** means, where these Procurement Process Conditions are incorporated into an:
  - (i) RFEOI, an EOI;
  - (ii) RFT, a Tender; or
  - (iii) RFQ, a Quotation;
- (nn) **Response Closing Time** means the time identified in the General Information as the time by which Responses must be submitted as varied (if at all) pursuant to these Procurement Process Conditions;
- (oo) **Response Form** means in respect of an:
  - (i) RFEOI, the document identified as the EOI form in the Response Schedules;
  - (ii) RFT or RFQ:
    - (A) the document identified as the tender form or the quotation form (as the case may be) in the Response Schedules; or
    - (B) otherwise where there is no document identified as the tender form or quotation form, any document (other than a Price Schedule) which states the total price offered by the Respondent in the Response;
- (pp) Response Schedules means the schedules identified in Part 5 Response Schedules of the RFEOI or Part 6 – Response Schedules of the RFT or RFQ (as the case may be);
- (qq) **Response Validity Period** means the period stated in the General Information as the time for which Responses are to be valid as extended (if at all) pursuant to clause 4.5;
- (rr) RFEOI (or Request for Expressions of Interest) means the request for expressions of interest issued by the Principal and all documents included in or incorporated by reference into it (including these Procurement Process Conditions and the Scope);
- (ss) **RFQ (or Request for Quotation)** means the request for quotations issued by the Principal and all documents included in or incorporated by reference into it (including these Procurement Process Conditions, the Contract and the Scope);
- (tt) **RFT (or Request for Tender)** means the request for tenders issued by the Principal and all documents included in or incorporated by reference into it (including these Procurement Process Conditions, the Contract and the Scope);
- (uu) Scope means the scope described in Part 4 Scope of the RFEOI or Part 5 Scope of the RFT or RFQ (as the case may be) and all documents incorporated into it (whether physically or by reference), and includes any amendments provided for in an Addendum;
- (vv) **Sound Contracting Principles** has the meaning given in section 104(3) of the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld);



# (ww) **Specified Loss** means:

- any loss of, or loss of anticipated, profit, income, revenue, saving, production; business, contract or opportunity; increase in financing or operating costs; liability for loss or damage suffered by third parties; legal costs (on a solicitor and client basis); fines levied; loss of reputation or embarrassment and the cost of abating or reducing such; any other financial or economic loss; and
- (ii) any indirect, special or consequential loss, damage, cost, expense or penalty not expressly referred to in the preceding paragraph, howsoever arising;
- (xx) **Tender** means a Response lodged by a Tenderer in response to an RFT and includes all documents and information lodged with or as part of the tender;
- (yy) **Tender Box** means the website, email address or physical location at which the General Information states that Responses are to be submitted;
- (zz) **Tenderer** means:
  - (i) any person who lodges a Tender; and
  - (ii) to the extent to which the term can apply to any other person who obtains a copy of any of the Procurement Documents during the Procurement Process, also includes such other persons,

and words or terms not defined in these Procurement Process Conditions but defined in a Contract have the same meaning as in the Contract, except where the context otherwise requires.

## 13. GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 13.1 (Interpretation of Procurement Documents) The Procurement Documents must be read and construed together and are intended to be mutually explanatory.
- 13.2 (**Joint and several obligations**) An obligation of two or more parties binds them jointly and each of them severally and an obligation incurred in favour of two or more parties is enforceable by them severally.
- 13.3 (Headings) Clause headings are for reference purposes only and must not be used in interpretation.
- 13.4 (**No limitation**) The words 'include', 'includes' and 'including' shall be read as if followed by 'without limitation'.
- 13.5 (**Grammatical Forms**) Where any word or phrase is given a defined meaning, any other part of speech or other grammatical form concerning the word or phrase has a corresponding meaning. Words importing the singular number include the plural number and words importing the plural number include the singular number.
- 13.6 (**Time**) References to time are to local time in Queensland. Where time is to be reckoned from a day or event, the day or the day of the event must be excluded. If any time period specified in the Procurement Documents expires on a day which is not a Business Day, the period will expire at the end of the next Business Day.
- 13.7 (**Discretion**) Unless expressly provided otherwise:
  - (a) any right of the Principal pursuant to these Procurement Process Conditions may be exercised; and
  - (b) any consent of the Principal required under these Procurement Process Conditions may be given, withheld or given subject to conditions,



in the absolute discretion of the Principal without giving reasons and without reference to the Respondent unless, and then only to the extent that the Procurement Process Conditions provide otherwise.

- 13.8 (Law) A reference to 'law' includes:
  - (a) legislation (including subordinate legislation), local laws, by-laws, orders, ordinances, awards, requirements and proclamations of an Authority having jurisdiction and any related fees and charges; and
  - (b) certificates, licences, accreditations, clearances, authorisations, approvals, consents, and permits and any related fees and charges,

which are applicable to the Procurement Documents, the Procurement Process or the Contract or which are otherwise in force at any place where an obligation under the Contract is to be carried out.

- 13.9 (**Governing Law**) The Procurement Process is governed by the laws of Queensland and the Commonwealth of Australia which are in force in Queensland. The Principal and the Respondent submit to the jurisdiction of the Courts of Queensland, relevant Federal Courts and Courts competent to hear appeals from them.
- 13.10 (**Contra proferentem**) The *contra proferentem* rule and other rules of construction will not apply to disadvantage a party whether that party put the clause forward, was responsible for drafting all or part of it or would otherwise benefit from it.
- 13.11 (**Rights Cumulative)** The rights and remedies of the Principal and the Respondent provided in the Procurement Process Conditions are cumulative on each other and on any rights or remedies conferred at law or in equity.
- 13.12 (**Severance**) If a provision of the Procurement Process Conditions is void or unenforceable it must be severed and the provisions that are not void or unenforceable are unaffected by the severance.
- 13.13 (**No waiver**) No waiver by the Principal of a provision of these Procurement Process Conditions is binding unless made in writing.
- 13.14 (Other references) A reference to:
  - (a) a person includes any other legal entity and a reference to a legal entity includes a person;
  - (b) the Respondent or the Principal includes their respective heirs, executors, successors and permitted assigns;
  - (c) writing includes any mode of representing or reproducing words in tangible and permanently visible form, and includes email and facsimile;
  - (d) a monetary amount is a reference to an Australian currency amount; and
  - (e) a measurement or quantity is a reference to an Australian legal unit of measurement as defined under the *National Measurement Act 1960* (Cth).



# CONTRACT

Register of Prequalified Suppliers (ROPS) Trade Maintenance and Associated Services

CONTRACT NO: T2324.46

# Contents

# **REFERENCE SCHEDULE**

1. DEFINITIONS       5         2. CONTRACT       12         3. PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT       13         4. TERM       13         5. APPOINTMENT AS PREFERRED SUPPLIER OR PRE-QUALIFIED SUPPLIER       13         6. ENGAGEMENT OF SUPPLIER       13         7. EXCLUSIVITY       14         8. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES       14         9. PRINCIPAL'S REPRESENTATIVE       15         10. SUPPLIER'S REPRESENTATIVE       15         11. PRIMARY OBLIGATIONS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS       15         12. SUPPLIER'S PERSONNEL       17         13. SUBCONTRACTING, ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION       19         14. SITE       19         15. MEETINGS       20         16. TIMING       20         17. VARIATIONS       21         18. INVOICES AND PAYMENT       21         18. INVOICES AND PAYMENT       21			Page No.
3. PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT       13         4. TERM       13         5. APPOINTMENT AS PREFERRED SUPPLIER OR PRE-QUALIFIED SUPPLIER       13         6. ENGAGEMENT OF SUPPLIER       13         7. EXCLUSIVITY       14         8. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES       14         9. PRINCIPAL'S REPRESENTATIVE       15         10. SUPPLIER'S REPRESENTATIVE       15         11. PRIMARY OBLIGATIONS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS       15         12. SUPPLIER'S PERSONNEL       17         13. SUBCONTRACTING, ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION       19         14. SITE       19         15. MEETINGS       20         16. TIMING       20         17. VARIATIONS       21         18. INVOICES AND PAYMENT       21	1.	DEFINITIONS	5
4. TERM       13         5. APPOINTMENT AS PREFERRED SUPPLIER OR PRE-QUALIFIED SUPPLIER       13         6. ENGAGEMENT OF SUPPLIER       13         7. EXCLUSIVITY       14         8. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES       14         9. PRINCIPAL'S REPRESENTATIVE       15         10. SUPPLIER'S REPRESENTATIVE       15         11. PRIMARY OBLIGATIONS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS       15         12. SUPPLIER'S PERSONNEL       17         13. SUBCONTRACTING, ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION       19         14. SITE       19         15. MEETINGS       20         16. TIMING       20         17. VARIATIONS       21         18. INVOICES AND PAYMENT       21	2.	CONTRACT	12
5. APPOINTMENT AS PREFERRED SUPPLIER OR PRE-QUALIFIED SUPPLIER       13         6. ENGAGEMENT OF SUPPLIER       13         7. EXCLUSIVITY       14         8. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES       14         9. PRINCIPAL'S REPRESENTATIVE       15         10. SUPPLIER'S REPRESENTATIVE       15         11. PRIMARY OBLIGATIONS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS       15         12. SUPPLIER'S PERSONNEL       17         13. SUBCONTRACTING, ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION       19         14. SITE       19         15. MEETINGS       20         16. TIMING       20         17. VARIATIONS       21         18. INVOICES AND PAYMENT       21	3.	PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT	13
6. ENGAGEMENT OF SUPPLIER	4.	TERM	13
7. EXCLUSIVITY       14         8. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES       14         9. PRINCIPAL'S REPRESENTATIVE       15         10. SUPPLIER'S REPRESENTATIVE       15         11. PRIMARY OBLIGATIONS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS       15         12. SUPPLIER'S PERSONNEL       17         13. SUBCONTRACTING, ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION       19         14. SITE       19         15. MEETINGS       20         16. TIMING       20         17. VARIATIONS       21         18. INVOICES AND PAYMENT       21	5.	APPOINTMENT AS PREFERRED SUPPLIER OR PRE-QUALIFIED SUPPLIER	13
8.       RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES	6.	ENGAGEMENT OF SUPPLIER	13
9.PRINCIPAL'S REPRESENTATIVE1510.SUPPLIER'S REPRESENTATIVE1511.PRIMARY OBLIGATIONS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS1512.SUPPLIER'S PERSONNEL1713.SUBCONTRACTING, ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION1914.SITE1915.MEETINGS2016.TIMING2017.VARIATIONS2118.INVOICES AND PAYMENT21	7.	EXCLUSIVITY	14
10.SUPPLIER'S REPRESENTATIVE1511.PRIMARY OBLIGATIONS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS1512.SUPPLIER'S PERSONNEL1713.SUBCONTRACTING, ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION1914.SITE1915.MEETINGS2016.TIMING2017.VARIATIONS2118.INVOICES AND PAYMENT21	8.	RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES	14
11. PRIMARY OBLIGATIONS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS.1512. SUPPLIER'S PERSONNEL1713. SUBCONTRACTING, ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION1914. SITE.1915. MEETINGS.2016. TIMING2017. VARIATIONS2118. INVOICES AND PAYMENT.21	9.	PRINCIPAL'S REPRESENTATIVE	15
12.SUPPLIER'S PERSONNEL1713.SUBCONTRACTING, ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION1914.SITE1915.MEETINGS2016.TIMING2017.VARIATIONS2118.INVOICES AND PAYMENT21	10.	SUPPLIER'S REPRESENTATIVE	15
13. SUBCONTRACTING, ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION1914. SITE1915. MEETINGS2016. TIMING2017. VARIATIONS2118. INVOICES AND PAYMENT21	11.	PRIMARY OBLIGATIONS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS	15
14. SITE	12.	SUPPLIER'S PERSONNEL	17
14. SITE	13.	SUBCONTRACTING, ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION	19
16. TIMING			
17. VARIATIONS	15.	MEETINGS	20
18. INVOICES AND PAYMENT	16.	TIMING	20
	17.	VARIATIONS	21
	18.	INVOICES AND PAYMENT	
19. LAW AND FULICIES		LAW AND POLICIES	
20. WORK HEALTH AND SAFETY			
21. HEAVY VEHICLE NATIONAL LAW			
22. PROTECTION OF PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT			
23. INDEMNITY			
24. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY	-		-
25. INSURANCE			
26. INSPECTIONS AND TESTS			
27. HANDLING OF INFORMATION	-		-
28. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY			
29. NON-CONFORMANCE			
30. SUSPENSION	-		
31. FORCE MAJEURE			
32. CANCELLATION OF WORK ORDER	-		-
33. TERMINATION, DEFAULT AND INSOLVENCY	-		-
34. DISPUTE RESOLUTION			
35. CLAIMS			
36. INTERPRETATION			
37. GENERAL PROVISIONS			
37. GENERAL PROVISIONS			
39. USES BY OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENTS			
SCHEDULE 1 – SCOPE AND PRICE			

# **Reference Schedule**

Item		Details			
1	Term				
	(Clause 4)				
	(a) Term Start Date:				
	(b) Term End Date:				
	(c) Extension Periods:	6 months			
2	Exclusivity (Clause 7)	The Contract is: □ Exclusive ⊠ Not exclusive If nothing selected, the Contract is	not exclusive		
3	Principal's Representative (Clause 9)				
	(a) Name:	Gary Hendars			
	(b) Address:	62 Valentine Plains Road Biloela QLD 4715			
	(c) Telephone:	(07) 49 929 500			
	(d) Email:	enquiries@banana.qld.gov.au			
4	Supplier's Representative (Clause 10) (a) Name: (b) Address: (c) Telephone: (d) Email: Key Personnel (Clause 12.2)	Name	Role	Period (If nothing stated, for the duration of the Term)	
6	Time for Meetings (Clause 15)	If nothing stated, as reasonably re	quired by the Principal.		
7	Invoices: (Clause 18) (a) Invoices may be submitted on:	21 <sup>st</sup> Day of each month for Services provided up to the 21 <sup>st</sup> of that month			
		If nothing stated, on the 21st day of that month.	of each month for Services pr	rovided up to the 21st of	
	(b) Invoices should be emailed to:	accounts.payable@banana.qld.gov.au			
	(c) Other requirements for invoices:	Signed Daily Work Sheets and the works completed during the		ntal permits required for	

# Reference Schedule

Item		Details		
8	Applicable policies, guidelines, procedures and codes of the Principal (Clause 19.1)	Can be found at <u>www.banana.qld.gov.au</u>		
9	Liability Limit (Clause 24) (a) The Principal's liability is limited to:	If nothing stated, the Principal's liability is limited to an amount equal to the Price paid in the 12 months preceding the relevant Claim.		
	(b) The Supplier's liability is limited to:	If nothing stated, the Supplier's liability is not limited.		
10	The Supplier must effect the following insurances: (Clause 25)	<ul> <li>Public and product liability insurance in the amount of at least \$20,000,000 in respect of any one occurrence and for an unlimited number of claims</li> <li>Professional indemnity insurance in the amount of at least \$5,000,000 in respect of any one occurrence and for an unlimited number of claims</li> <li>Third party and comprehensive motor vehicle insurance for each vehicle used by the Supplier in performing its obligations under the Contract</li> <li>Plant and equipment insurance for each item of plant for the full replacement value of the plant</li> <li>Workers' compensation insurance in respect of the Supplier's Personnel as required by law</li> </ul>		
11	Intellectual Property (Clause 28) (a) Project IP, the alternative applying: (b) Moral Rights consent	<ul> <li>Alternative 1 – Project IP vests in the Principal</li> <li>Alternative 2 – Project IP vests in the Supplier</li> <li>If nothing stated, Alternative 1 applies.</li> <li>Moral Rights consent is required</li> <li>Moral Rights consent is not required</li> <li>If nothing selected, a Moral Rights consent is required.</li> </ul>		





# PARTIES:

Banana Shire Council ABN 85 946 116 646 of 62 Valentine Plains Road Biloela in the State of Queensland.

(Principal)

[Insert Supplier's Name] of [Insert Supplier's address].

(Supplier)

# BACKGROUND:

- A. The Supplier has offered to provide the Services to the Principal and has made the representations and given the warranties stated in this Contract to the Principal in connection with its offer.
- B. In reliance on those representations and warranties, the Principal has accepted the Supplier's offer.
- C. The Parties wish to enter into the Contract to record the terms on which the Supplier will provide the Services to the Principal during the Term.

## THE PARTIES AGREE:

#### 1. DEFINITIONS

- 1.1 In the Contract, unless inconsistent with the context or subject matter:
  - (a) Affected Party has the meaning given in clause 31.1;
  - (b) Applicable Standards means the standards, plans, requirements, codes, guidelines, policies, standard drawings or standard specifications included or incorporated by reference into the Contract or a Work Order, or, if none is included or incorporated, any Australian standards applicable to the Goods, as current at the Time for Work Order Commencement;
  - (c) Approvals means certificates, licences, accreditations, clearances, authorisations, consents, permits, approvals, determinations and permissions from any Authority and any related fees and charges;
  - (d) Authority means a local government, the State of Queensland, the Commonwealth or any other Federal, State, or local government authority, administrative or judicial body or tribunal, department, commission, agency, government owned corporation, statutory body or instrumentality (including a stock exchange) having jurisdiction over the Contract or the obligations to be performed under the Contract;
  - (e) **Background IP** of a Party means all Intellectual Property Rights which are made available by a Party for the purpose of the provision of the which are in existence at the date of the Contract or brought into existence after the date of the Contract other than in connection with the Contract;
  - (f) **Business Day** means a day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or any other day which is a public holiday or a bank holiday in the place where an act is to be performed or a payment is to be made in connection with the Contract;
  - (g) **Claim** includes any claim, action, demand, proceeding, suit, defence or set-off, however arising including under the Contract, at law (including a breach of contract), under statute, in equity, in tort (including for negligence), in quasi-contract, for unjust enrichment and to the extent permitted by law pursuant to any other principle of law



(including without limitation any claim by the Supplier for an extension of time, Variation or other adjustment to the Price);

- (h) Confidential Information means the Contract and all documents and information provided or made available by one Party (Discloser) to the other (Disclosee), or which comes to the knowledge of a Party in connection with the Contract which are of their nature confidential or which the Discloser has identified to the Disclosee as being confidential, but does not include documents and information which are in the public domain other than through a breach of clause 27;
- (i) **Conflict of Interest** means any actual, potential or perceived conflict between the interests of the Supplier and the Supplier's obligations under the Contract;
- (j) **Contract** means the documents identified in clause 2.1;
- (k) **Discloser and Disclosee** have the meanings given in clause 1.1(h);
- (I) **Exceptional Circumstances** means disclosure:
  - (i) for the purpose of complying with the Disclosee's obligations or exercising the Disclosee's rights in connection with the Contract;
  - (ii) with the Discloser's prior consent;
  - (iii) to a professional adviser, banker, financier or auditor if that person is obliged to keep the information disclosed confidential and to whom it is necessary to disclose the information;
  - (iv) to the extent necessary to comply with the Disclosee's reasonable corporate governance or insurance requirements;
  - to any of its Personnel who are bound to keep the information confidential and to whom it is necessary to disclose the information;
  - (vi) to comply with the law or a requirement of an Authority;
  - (vii) to the extent necessary to enforce its rights or defend a Claim in connection with the Contract;
  - (viii) by the Principal for the purposes of enabling the Principal to properly discharge its functions as a local government authority; and
  - (ix) to the extent otherwise expressly permitted by the Contract;
- (m) Force Majeure means:
  - (i) an act of God, earthquake, lightning, cyclone, tsunami, flooding, fire emanating from outside the Site, explosion, landslide, drought or meteor, but excluding any other weather conditions regardless of severity;
  - (ii) war (declared or undeclared), invasion, act of a foreign enemy, hostilities between nations, civil insurrection or militarily usurped power;
  - (iii) act of public enemy, sabotage, malicious damage, terrorism or civil unrest;
  - (iv) embargo;
  - (v) illness declared by the World Health Organisation to be a pandemic;
  - (vi) State-wide or nationwide industrial action that is not limited to or primarily directed at the Supplier or otherwise caused by or contributed to by the Supplier



and which affects an essential portion of the Supplier's obligations under the Contract;

which:

- (A) is beyond the immediate or reasonable control of the Affected Party;
- (B) is not directly or indirectly caused or contributed to by the Affected Party or the Affected Party's Personnel; and
- (C) cannot reasonably be avoided, remedied or overcome by the Affected Party by a standard of care and diligence expected of a prudent and competent local government or supplier (as the case may be) or the expenditure of a reasonable sum of money;
- (n) **General Conditions** means these general conditions;

## (o) **Good Industry Practice** means:

- (i) the standard of skill, care and diligence; and
- (ii) practices, methods, techniques and acts,

of a skilled and competent supplier engaged in the business of providing goods, services or work similar to the Services;

- (p) **Goods** means any plant, equipment, materials, parts, consumables or other goods provided, or to be provided by the Supplier in connection with the Services and includes Goods which are required for the proper performance of the Services in accordance with the Contract, whether or not specifically mentioned in the Contract;
- (q) **GST** means GST as that term is defined in the GST Law, and any interest, penalties, fines or expenses relating to such GST;
- (r) **GST Law** means the *A New Tax System (Goods and Services Tax) Act 1999* (Cth) and/or associated Commonwealth legislation, regulations and publicly available rulings;
- (s) **HVNL** means the Heavy Vehicle National Law (Queensland) and the regulations made under that law, as may be amended or replaced from time to time;
- (t) **Improper Conduct** means:
  - (i) engaging in misleading or deceptive conduct in relation to the Procurement Process or the Contract;
  - engaging in any collusive tendering, anticompetitive conduct, or any other unlawful or unethical conduct with any other tenderer, or any other person in connection with the Procurement Process;
  - (iii) failing to disclose a Conflict of Interest in breach of clause 8.3;
  - (iv) attempting to improperly influence any Personnel of the Principal, or violate any applicable law regarding the offering of inducements in connection with the Procurement Process or the Contract;
  - accepting or inviting improper assistance of employees or former employees of the Principal in preparing its tender or any Claim against the Principal in connection with the Contract;



- (vi) using any information improperly obtained, or obtained in breach of any obligation of confidentiality in connection with the Procurement Process or the Contract;
- (vii) engaging in aggressive, threatening, abusive, offensive or other inappropriate behaviour or committing a criminal offence; or
- (viii) engaging in conduct contrary to sections 199 and 200 of the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld).
- (u) **Insolvency Event** in respect of a Party, means the Party:
  - (i) becomes insolvent or bankrupt, or being a company goes into liquidation, or takes or has instituted against it any action or proceedings which has as an object or may result in bankruptcy or liquidation; or
  - (ii) enters into a debt agreement, a deed of assignment or a deed of arrangement under the *Bankruptcy Act 1966* (Cth), or, being a company, enters into a deed of company arrangement with its creditors, or an administrator or controller is appointed; or
  - (iii) has a receiver or a receiver and manager appointed or a mortgagee goes into possession of any of its assets;
- (v) Intellectual Property Rights means copyright, patents and all rights in relation to inventions, registered and unregistered trademarks (including service marks), registered designs, drawings, circuit layouts and all other rights resulting from intellectual activity in the construction, project management, industrial, scientific, literary or artistic fields, whether foreign or domestic and includes Moral Rights;
- (w) **Key Personnel** means the Personnel (if any) nominated as key personnel in the Reference Schedule;
- (x) Liability Limit means:
  - (i) in respect of the Principal, the sum of:
    - (A) the amount specified in item 9(a) of the Reference Schedule; and
    - (B) the amount of any excess payable under a policy of insurance required to be effected and maintained by the Principal under the Contract;
  - (i) in respect of the Supplier, the sum of:
    - (A) the amount specified in item 9(b) of the Reference Schedule; and
    - (B) the amount of any excess payable under a policy of insurance required to be effected and maintained by the Supplier under the Contract;
- (y) **Local Government Worker** has the same meaning as in the *Local Government Act* 2009 (Qld);
- (z) **Modern Slavery** has the meaning given in the *Modern Slavery Act 2018* (Cth);
- (aa) Moral Rights has the meaning given in the Copyright Act 1968 (Cth);
- (bb) **National Police Certificate** means a hard copy or digital national police certificate issued by the Queensland Police Service;
- (cc) Notifiable Incident has the meaning given in the WHS Act and the WHS Regulation;



- (dd) **Party or Parties** means one or both of the Principal and the Supplier as the context requires;
- (ee) **Payment Period** means:
  - (i) if the Contract is a 'building contract' as that term is defined in the Queensland Building and Construction Commission Act 1991 (Qld), the period ending 15 Business Days after receipt by the Principal of the claim;
  - (ii) otherwise, the period ending 25 Business Days after receipt by the Principal of the claim.
- (ff) **Personal Information** has the meaning given in the *Information Privacy Act 2009* (Qld);
- (gg) **Personnel** includes the officers, employees, agents, representatives, consultants, subconsultants, suppliers, contractors and subcontractors of a Party and any other person or entity for whom that Party is vicariously liable but in respect of the Principal, does not include the Supplier;
- (hh) **Price** means the amount payable for the provision of Services as determined in accordance with Schedule 1 and the relevant Work Order;
- (ii) **Principal** means the entity identified as the Principal on page 5 of the Contract;
- (jj) Principal's Representative means the person identified in the Reference Schedule or otherwise notified to the Supplier pursuant to clause 9.1 and includes, except where the context requires otherwise, a person authorised as a delegate of the Principal's Representative pursuant to clause 9.3;
- (kk) **Procurement Process** means the procurement process undertaken by the Principal pursuant to which the Parties have entered into the Contract;
- (II) **Project IP** means the Intellectual Property Rights in the Supplier Documents and all goods, materials, documents or data created in the performance of the Supplier's obligations under the Contract;
- (mm) Qualifying Cause of Delay means:
  - (i) an act or omission of the Principal or the Principal's Personnel;
  - (ii) Force Majeure; or
  - (iii) any other cause of delay identified elsewhere in the Contract or Work Order as entitling the Supplier to an extension of the Time for Work Order Completion;
- (nn) Reference Schedule means the schedule of that name included in the Contract;
- (oo) **Regulator** has the meaning given in the WHS Act and WHS Regulation;
- (pp) **Scope** means the documents describing the Principal's requirements for the Services, Goods or Works which are provided at Schedule 1 and also provided with or as part of, or are identified in, the Work Order;
- (qq) Services means the services to be provided or the work to be carried out by the Supplier as described in Schedule 1 (including the supply, use or installation of any Goods, the construction of any Works and the provision of Supplier Documents) and any services or work not specifically mentioned in Schedule 1 but that are obviously and indispensably necessary for the performance of the services or work that is mentioned;



- (rr) **Site** means the site or sites made available by the Principal to the Supplier for the purpose of the Supplier carrying out its obligations under the Contract;
- (ss) Substantial Breach includes:
  - (i) in respect of the Supplier:
    - (A) a material breach of the Contract including:
      - I a material breach of clause 11.1;
      - II the Supplier or any of the Supplier's Personnel engaging in:
        - (1) any Improper Conduct in connection with the Contract; or
        - (2) otherwise engaging in any Improper Conduct (whether or not in connection with the Contract) in a manner which, in the Principal's opinion, causes harm to the Principal's reputation;
      - III failing to make a payment to the Principal within 20 Business Days after the due date for the making of the payment in clause 18.6;
      - IV failing to effect and maintain the insurance policies required under clause 25;
      - V failing to comply with a direction given or purportedly given under clause 29;
      - VI a warranty given or representation made in or pursuant to this Contract is found to be incorrect, false or misleading in any material respect;
      - VII a material breach of a law in connection with the Contract;
    - (B) a material departure from any program or schedule included in the Contract without reasonable cause or the Principal's approval or, where there is no program, failing to proceed with due expedition and without delay;
    - (C) suspending performance of its obligations under the Contract without the prior written consent of the Principal;
    - (D) the consistent or repeated breach of the Contract by the Supplier, even though those breaches would not otherwise constitute a substantial breach of the Contract and even though those breaches may be promptly remedied by the Supplier;
    - (E) anything else which the Contract elsewhere provides is a substantial breach of the Contract;
  - (ii) in respect of the Principal:
    - (A) failing to make payment to the Supplier within 20 Business Days after the due date for the making of the payment in clause 18.6 or 18.7 as the case may be;
    - (B) otherwise committing a material breach of the Contract; or



- (C) anything else which the Contract elsewhere provides is a substantial breach of the Contract;
- (tt) **Supplier** means the person or entity identified as the Supplier on page 5 of the Contract;
- (uu) Supplier Documents means those records, reports, designs, specifications, certificates, plans and other documents, whether electronic documents or hard copy format, required by the Contract to be handed over to the Principal by the Supplier (including any WHS documentation and management plans required by the Contract) and all information advice, procedures, undertakings designs, calculations and recommendations in those documents;
- (vv) **Supplier's Representative** means the person identified as the Supplier's representative in the Reference Schedule or as otherwise approved by the Principal pursuant to clause 10.2;
- (ww) **Term** means the period determined pursuant to clause 4.1;
- (xx) **Term End Date** means the date described as such in the Reference Schedule as extended (if at all) pursuant to the Contract;
- (yy) **Term Start Date** means the time stated in the Reference Schedule by which the Supplier is required to commence performing its obligations under the Contract (or where no time is stated, promptly after the date of the Contract);
- (zz) **Time for Work Order Commencement** means the time stated in a Work Order by which the Supplier is required to commence performing its obligations under the Work Order (or where no time is stated, as directed by the Principal) as extended (if at all) by agreement between the Parties;
- (aaa) **Time for Work Order Completion** means the time (if any) stated in a Work Order by which the Supplier is required to achieve Work Order Completion as extended (if at all) pursuant to the Contract;
- (bbb) **Variation** means any material increase, decrease or change to the Services described in a Work Order or the Supplier's obligations under the Contract;
- (ccc) Warranty Period for Goods means the longer of:
  - (i) the period stated in Contract or where no period is stated, 12 months after Work Order Completion; and
  - (ii) such further period required under or implied by any applicable law;
- (ddd) **WHS** means work, health and safety;
- (eee) WHS Act means Work Health and Safety Act 2011 (Qld) as amended or replaced from time to time;
- (fff) **WHS Regulation** means the *Work Health and Safety Regulation 2011* (Qld) as amended or replaced from time to time;
- (ggg) **Wilful Misconduct** means an intentional act or omission by or on behalf of a Party committed with reckless disregard for its foreseeable and potentially harmful consequences in circumstances where the breaching Party knows or ought to know that those consequences would likely result from the act or omission but which is not due to an honest mistake oversight, error of judgement, accident or negligence;
- (hhh) Work Order means, unless the Parties expressly agree otherwise:



- (i) where a written request or order for Services is issued by the Principal, the written document(s) issued by the Principal to the Supplier which:
  - (A) detail the Principal's requirements for the provision of Services by the Supplier; and
  - (B) either request the Supplier to provide, or accept the Supplier's offer to provide, those Services to the Principal,

including all documents attached to or incorporated by reference into those written documents and which may include a request for quotation, quotation, scope, specifications, drawings, product description, price list or other documents; and

- where a oral request or order for Services is made by the Principal, means the information provided by the Principal orally, and the information contained in any documents to which the Supplier's attention is directed by the Principal;
- (iii) **Work Order Completion** means that stage in the performance of the Supplier's obligations under the Contract at which:
  - each and every part of the Services has been carried out and completed in accordance with the Contract and the relevant Work Order, except for minor omissions which do not reasonably affect the benefit to the Principal of the Services or prevent the Principal from using the Supplier Documents for the purpose or purposes stated in or to be reasonably inferred from the Contract or the Work Order;
  - (ii) all Supplier Documents have been updated and provided to the Principal in accordance with the Contract and the relevant Work Order;
  - (iii) other obligations of the Supplier which are stated in the Contract or the relevant Work Order to be a requirement of Work Order Completion, or which are otherwise required to be undertaken prior to Work Order Completion have been completed;
- (jjj) **Workplace** has the meaning given in the WHS Act and the WHS Regulation; and
- (kkk) Works means any work which by the Contract, is to be handed over to the Principal.

# 2. CONTRACT

- 2.1 (**Documents comprising Contract**) The Contract comprises:
  - (a) the Reference Schedule;
  - (b) these General Conditions; and
  - (c) Schedule 1 Scope and Price.
- 2.2 (**Final agreement**) The Contract constitutes the entire, final and concluded agreement between the Parties as to its subject matter. It supersedes all prior representations, agreements, statements and understandings between the Supplier and the Principal (whether oral or in writing).
- 2.3 (**Order of precedence**) If there is any ambiguity, inconsistency, conflict or discrepancy between any of the documents listed in clause 2.1, then the documents will take precedence in the order set out in clause 2.1 with the document described in clause 2.1(a) being the highest in the order.
- 2.4 (**Early Services**) Where any obligation described in the Contract has been carried out by the Principal or the Supplier prior to the date on which the Contract is executed, that obligation shall



be taken to have been carried out pursuant to, and the carrying out of that obligation shall be governed by, the Contract as if the obligation had been carried out after the Contract was executed.

# 3. PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT

- 3.1 (**Performance**) Subject to clause 6.1, the Supplier must, at the Supplier's expense:
  - (a) provide any Services described in a Work Order issued during the Term; and
  - (b) perform the Supplier's other obligations under the Contract and all Work Orders issued pursuant to it,

in accordance with the Contract and all directions of the Principal issued pursuant to it.

3.2 (**Payment**) Subject to the Contract, the Principal must pay the Supplier the Price for Services provided in accordance with the Contract and Work Orders issued pursuant to it.

## 4. TERM

- 4.1 (**Term**) Subject to clause 4.2, the Term shall commence on the Term Start Date and end on the Term End Date, unless the Contract is earlier terminated.
- 4.2 (Extension of Term) The Principal may, in its absolute discretion, extend the Term End Date by the periods stated in the Reference Schedule on the same terms as the Contract, by giving written notice to this effect to the Supplier at any time prior to the Term End Date. For clarity:
  - (a) the Principal may extend by a period shorter than that provided in the Reference Schedule; and
  - (b) the Parties may agree to extend for further periods in addition to those contemplated in the Reference Schedule.
- 4.3 (**Continuation of obligations**) The Contract shall remain in force until the later of the expiration of the Term and the time at which all obligations of the Parties pursuant to it have been satisfied, unless the Contract is earlier terminated.

# 5. APPOINTMENT AS PREFERRED SUPPLIER OR PRE-QUALIFIED SUPPLIER

- 5.1 (Effect of appointment) The Supplier's appointment as a preferred supplier or pre-qualified supplier pursuant to the *Local Government Regulation 2012* (Qld) entitles the Principal to engage the Supplier during the term of that appointment without first seeking quotes or tenders but does not give rise to any obligation on the Principal to do so.
- 5.2 (**No liability**) The Principal shall not be liable upon any Claim by the Supplier in connection with the Principal ordering a greater or lesser quantity or value of Services from the Supplier than the Supplier anticipated or desired, or for the Principal engaging other suppliers to supply similar or the same services.
- 5.3 (**Refresh**) The Principal may, during the Term, select other suppliers to become preferred suppliers or pre-qualified suppliers of the same or similar services to the Services pursuant to the *Local Government Regulation 2012* (Qld).

# 6. ENGAGEMENT OF SUPPLIER

6.1 (Engagement by Work Order) At any time during the Term, the Principal may but shall not be obliged to, issue a Work Order to the Supplier for the provision of Services. The Supplier must promptly after receiving the Work Order and within any timeframes stated in the Contract or the Work Order, notify the Principal as to whether or not it accepts the Work Order. The Supplier must accept a Work Order which is consistent with the Contract unless it cannot reasonably



comply with the Work Order. The Principal may withdraw a Work Order at any time prior to the Supplier notifying the Principal in writing that the Work Order is accepted.

- 6.2 (**No separate contract**) The Principal's acceptance of a Work Order under clause 6.1 does not create a separate contract. Subject to clause 6.3, any services of the same or a similar type to the Services provided by the Supplier to the Principal during the Term shall be taken to have been provided pursuant to this Contract.
- 6.3 (Alternative terms and conditions) Nothing in this Contract shall be taken to prevent the Parties from entering into one or more separate contracts, on different terms to the Contract, for the provision by the Supplier of services of the same or a similar type to the Services during the Term.

# 7. EXCLUSIVITY

- 7.1 (Alternative 1 Not exclusive) If the Reference Schedule provides that the Contract is not exclusive, the Supplier is not the exclusive supplier of the Services, or of services of the same or a similar type to the Services, during the Term. The Principal may engage other suppliers to provide services of the same or a similar type to the Services during the Term.
- 7.2 (Alternative 2 Exclusive) If the Reference Schedule provides that the Contract is exclusive, then subject to this clause 7.2, the Supplier is the exclusive supplier of the Services at the Site during the Term. During the Term, the Principal may:
  - (a) itself provide, or engage other contractors to provide, the Services or services of the same or a similar type to the Services:
    - (i) during any period for which the Principal acting reasonably determines that the Supplier is, for any reason, unable or unwilling to properly perform the Services in accordance with the Contract; and
    - (ii) otherwise where expressly or impliedly permitted by the Contract; and
  - (b) undertake any procurement process or other activities necessary or prudent for the appointment of a supplier to supply similar or the same services as the Services after the expiry or termination of the Contract.
- 7.3 (**No liability**) The Principal shall not be liable upon any Claim by the Supplier in connection with the Principal engaging other suppliers to supply similar or the same services as the Services consistently with this clause 7.

# 8. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES

- 8.1 (**Relationship**) The Supplier is an independent contractor of the Principal. The Contract does not create any partnership, joint venture or employment relationship. The Supplier is solely responsible for payments required to be made to its Personnel for the performance of services in connection with the Contract and solely responsible for determining the manner in which it complies with its obligations under the Contract. The Supplier must provide such materials, equipment, knowledge and Personnel as the Supplier deems necessary to comply with its obligations and under the Contract.
- 8.2 (**Representations**) The Supplier must not represent itself or allow anyone else to represent that the Supplier is a partner, joint venturer, officer or employee of the Principal. Except to the extent expressly contemplated in the Contract, the Supplier must not represent itself or allow anyone else to represent that the Supplier is an agent of the Principal.
- 8.3 (**Conflict of Interest**) The Supplier warrants and represents that as at the date of the Contract, the Supplier is not aware of any Conflict of Interest. The Supplier must not, and must ensure that its Personnel do not, engage in any activity or obtain any interest which does, or is likely to, result in a Conflict of Interest during the Contract and must immediately notify the Principal



in the event that a Conflict of Interest that has not previously been disclosed arises or is likely to arise.

## 9. PRINCIPAL'S REPRESENTATIVE

- 9.1 (**The Principal's Representative**) The Principal's Representative is appointed as the Principal's agent to exercise any of the Principal's rights or functions under the Contract. The Principal's Representative is not an independent certifier or valuer.
- 9.2 (**Rights and powers of the Principal's Representative**) The Principal's Representative may exercise any rights and powers granted to the Principal under this Contract. The Principal's Representative may give a direction in respect of any matter relating to this Contract, including the protection of people, property and the environment and the Supplier's performance of the Services.
- 9.3 (Authorised delegates) The Principal's Representative may, by giving written notice to the Supplier setting out the rights and powers which may be exercised, authorise another person to exercise all or some of the rights and powers under clause 9.2. Subject to clause 9.5, no other person is permitted to exercise any right or function of the Principal. The Supplier must notify the Principal immediately if it receives a purported direction in connection with the Contract from any other person. The Principal shall not be liable upon any Claim relating to a direction given to the Supplier by any other person.
- 9.4 (**Compliance**) The Supplier must, and must ensure that its Personnel, comply with all directions given by the Principal's Representative, within the time specified in the direction, or where no time is stated, as soon as is reasonably practicable.
- 9.5 (**Change**) The Principal may notify the Supplier of a change in the Principal's Representative at any time.

#### 10. SUPPLIER'S REPRESENTATIVE

- 10.1 (**Supplier's Representative**) The Supplier's Representative is appointed by the Supplier to manage the Supplier's performance of the Contract. Matters which are in the knowledge of the Supplier's Representative are deemed to be within the knowledge of the Supplier.
- 10.2 (**Change**) The Supplier may seek the approval of the Principal to change the Supplier's Representative. The Supplier must provide any information reasonably required by the Principal in connection with such a request. The Principal may refuse to approve a replacement person if the Principal reasonably believes that the person is inappropriate to take the role of Supplier's Representative or is of lesser skill, experience and competency to the person being replaced. If the Principal reasonably objects to the nominated representative, the Supplier shall promptly nominate another representative.

# 11. PRIMARY OBLIGATIONS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS

- 11.1 (Obligations, Warranties and Representations) The Supplier:
  - (a) (**ability**) must ensure, and warrants and represents that the Supplier and, to the extent applicable to them, its Personnel:
    - (i) have the experience, skills, expertise, resources and judgement;
    - (ii) hold all necessary competencies, licences, accreditations, qualifications, permits, clearances or other authorisations,

which are required for the Supplier to comply with its obligations under the Contract and will maintain such competencies, licences, accreditations, qualifications, permits, clearances or other authorisations at all times until the Supplier's obligations under the Contract are at an end;



- (b) (standard) must, and to the extent applicable to them must ensure that its Personnel, provide the Services and carry out the Supplier's other obligations in connection with the Contract in accordance with Good Industry Practice and so that the Services are suitable and adequate for the purpose or purposes stated in the Contract;
- (c) (workmanship) where the Services require the carrying out and completion of any Works, must ensure that at Work Order Completion those Works:
  - (i) are free from defects; and
  - (ii) comply in all respects with:
    - (A) the Contract;
    - (B) the Work Order;
    - (C) any approved design of the Works; and
    - (D) Applicable Standards;
  - (iii) are suitable and adequate for the purpose stated in the Contract and/or the relevant Work Order,

and that any design prepared by the Supplier in relation to the Works is in accordance with the requirements of the Contract;

- (d) (condition of Goods) must ensure that all Goods used or supplied in the performance of the Services:
  - (i) at the time at which they are used or supplied and for the duration of any applicable Warranty Period:
    - (A) are free from defects and of merchantable quality;
    - (B) comply in all respects with the Contract and/or the relevant Work Order including as to quality, quantity, performance, functionality and description;
    - (C) conform to any sample goods approved by the Principal; and
    - (D) are suitable and adequate for the purpose or purposes for which they are used or supplied;
  - (ii) at the time at which they are used or supplied, comply with applicable law and Applicable Standards and where manufactured, are new; and
  - (iii) when title passes, are free from all encumbrances and interests, except for an encumbrance or interest which arises by operation of a law and which cannot be excluded by agreement;
- (e) (**Supplier Documents**) must ensure that where the Supplier provides Supplier Documents under the Contract:
  - (i) those Supplier Documents:
    - (A) comply with the requirements of the Contract, the relevant Work Order and applicable law;
    - (B) are of a standard and quality reasonably expected of a skilled and competent supplier using Good Industry Practice;



- (C) are suitable and adequate for the purpose for which they are provided; and
- (ii) except to the extent that they are prepared strictly in accordance with technical plans or drawings provided to the Supplier by the Principal:
  - (A) the Supplier Documents; and
  - (B) the Principal's use of the Supplier Documents for a purpose stated in or to be reasonably inferred from the Contract or the relevant Work Order,

will not infringe Intellectual Property Rights;

- (f) (investigations) warrants and represents that the Supplier has carefully reviewed the Contract and will carefully review each Work Order (including the Scope and all other information contained or referenced in the Work Order) prior to acceptance of it to satisfy itself that the Scope and other information is appropriate and adequate to enable the Supplier to comply with its obligations under the Contract;
- (g) (**legal capacity**) must ensure, and warrants and represents that the Supplier has the full power, authority and capacity to enter into the Contract and that the Supplier's obligations under the Contract are valid and binding on it, and enforceable against it;
- (h) (**Price**) warrants and represents that the rates and prices in the Contract include compliance with all of the Supplier's other obligations under the Contract except, and then only to the extent, that the Contract provides otherwise.
- 11.2 (**Improper Conduct**) The Supplier warrants and represents that neither the Supplier nor any of its Personnel engaged in any Improper Conduct in connection with the Procurement Process. The Supplier must not engage in any Improper Conduct in connection with the Contract.
- 11.3 (**Notice of breach**) The Supplier must notify the Principal immediately if it becomes aware of or reasonably suspects in the course of carrying out its obligations under the Contract, that the Supplier has breached a warranty given, representation made or obligation provided for, in clause 11.1 or 11.2.
- 11.4 (**Obligations, warranties and representations not affected**) The obligations, warranties and representations in clause 11.1 remain unaffected notwithstanding:
  - (a) that the Scope was prepared by the Principal or the Principal's Personnel;
  - (b) any inspection, test, receipt, review, permission, approval or comment on, of or in relation to the Services by the Principal or the Principal's Personnel;
  - (c) any Variation or other direction by the Principal or the Principal's Personnel; or
  - (d) the adoption or incorporation into the Supplier Documents by the Supplier of any industry standard or any information or documentation provided by others (including any information or documentation provided by or on behalf of the Principal),

except that clauses 11.4(c) and 11.4(d) do not apply to the extent that the Supplier has, prior to acting or omitting to act in reliance on the direction or the affected Supplier Documents, given the Principal written notice expressly stating that the Variation, direction, adoption, or incorporation would affect a warranty or obligation and the warranty or obligation was affected in the manner so notified.

#### 12. SUPPLIER'S PERSONNEL

12.1 (**General**) The Supplier must ensure that its Personnel involved in the performance of the Supplier's obligations under the Contract:



- (a) act professionally and courteously in all dealings with the Principal, the Principal's Personnel and the general public in connection with the Contract;
- (b) do not engage in any Improper Conduct;
- (c) do not directly or indirectly cause any unreasonable nuisance or interference to the owners, tenants or occupiers of properties on or adjacent to the places where the Services are to be carried out or to the public generally;
- (d) are familiar with and properly trained for their allocated role;
- (e) perform their allocated role competently, safely and in accordance with Good Industry Practice and where the role involves the operation of plant or equipment, in accordance with all manufacturer's recommendations; and
- (f) are not affected by alcohol or drugs whilst performing any part of the Supplier's obligations under the Contract (other than prescription medication which does not affect the ability of the person to perform the relevant obligations under the Contract).
- 12.2 (**Key Personnel**) The Supplier must ensure that only Key Personnel perform the roles identified in the Reference Schedule and that the nominated Key Personnel perform those roles for the period identified in the Reference Schedule. The Supplier may seek the approval of the Principal to change the identity or role of any Key Personnel or to engage additional persons as Key Personnel. The Supplier must provide any information reasonably required by the Principal in connection with such a request. The Principal cannot unreasonably refuse to approve a replacement or additional key person that is of equal or greater skill, experience and competency to the person nominated in the Contract as the key person for that role.
- 12.3 (Local Government Worker) The Supplier must ensure that when acting as a Local Government Worker, the Supplier's Personnel:
  - have all appropriate qualifications, skills and training to exercise a power or perform a responsibility under Chapter 5, Part 2, Division 2 of the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld);
  - (b) do not exercise any power or perform a responsibility under Division 2, Chapter 5 of the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld) unless the Personnel are authorised as Local Government Workers by the Principal; and
  - (c) comply with all obligations of a Local Government Worker imposed under the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld).
- 12.4 (**Police checks**) If the Principal directs the Supplier to obtain a National Police Certificate in respect of any of the Supplier's Personnel then the Supplier must not permit those Personnel to perform any part of the Services or to have access to any Confidential Information of the Principal or the Site unless and until 5 Business Days after the Supplier has given the Principal a written copy of the National Police Certificate for those Personnel. If the National Police Certificate contains any entries, the Principal may, in its absolute discretion, notify the Supplier that the person is not permitted to perform the Services or may otherwise place conditions upon that person's role in performing the Services. The Supplier must use its best endeavours to provide any additional information which the Principal may reasonably request in relation to a National Police Certificate.
- 12.5 (Industrial relations) The Supplier remains solely responsible for the management of industrial relations relating to its Personnel. The Supplier must promptly inform, and keep informed, the Principal in relation to any potential or actual industrial relations issues which could affect the ability of the Supplier to comply with its obligations under the Contract.
- 12.6 (Modern Slavery) The Supplier:



- (a) must not engage in Modern Slavery and warrants and represents that it has not engaged in any Modern Slavery;
- (b) must take, and warrants and represents that it has taken, all reasonable steps to identify and eliminate Modern Slavery in the business and operations of its subcontractors, suppliers and consultants;
- (c) immediately notify the Principal in writing if it becomes aware of any Modern Slavery in the Supplier's business or operations or the business or operations of its subcontractors, suppliers or consultants.
- 12.7 (Labour Hire) The Supplier must not provide or utilise any labour for any part of the Services, unless the provider of that labour hire is registered under the Labour Hire Licensing Act 2017 (Qld)
- 12.8 (**Removal**) The Principal may at any time direct the Supplier to remove any of the Supplier's Personnel from the performance of the whole or part of the Supplier's obligations under the Contract if the Principal reasonably believes that the Supplier is in breach of any clauses 11.1(a), 11.2, 12.1, 12.3, 12.6 or 12.7 or if a National Police Certificate contains any entries in respect of that person, or that the person is otherwise responsible for a breach of the Contract by the Supplier.

### 13. SUBCONTRACTING, ASSIGNMENT AND NOVATION

- 13.1 (**By the Supplier**) The Supplier must not subcontract, assign or novate the whole or any part of its rights and/or obligations under the Contract unless it has first obtained the written consent of the Principal. Subcontracting of the Supplier's obligations shall not relieve the Supplier from any liability or obligation under the Contract. As between the Principal and the Supplier, the Supplier shall be responsible, and liable to the Principal, for the acts and omissions of the Supplier's Personnel in connection with the Contract as if they were the acts or omissions of the Supplier.
- 13.2 (**By the Principal**) The Principal may contract, assign or novate the whole or any part of its rights and/or obligations under the Contract in its absolute discretion and without obtaining the consent of the Supplier.
- 13.3 (**Third party warranties**) The Supplier shall obtain and provide to the Principal, the warranties required by the Contract. Unless otherwise directed by the Principal, the Supplier shall also obtain a warranty from each subcontractor, supplier, retailer or manufacturer on terms commonly provided by those subcontractors, suppliers, retailers or manufacturers for their parts of the Services, in the name of both the Principal and the Supplier.
- 13.4 (**Subcontracts**) The Supplier must ensure that any subcontracts into which it enters place the same obligations, responsibilities and liabilities on the subcontractor that this Contract places on the Supplier to the extent that they are relevant to the services provided by the subcontractor.

#### 14. SITE

- 14.1 (Access for Supplier) The Principal will give the Supplier sufficient, but non-exclusive, access to the Site to carry out the Supplier's obligations under the Contract. The Principal may refuse to give such access until the Supplier has given the Principal:
  - (a) evidence of insurance required by clause 25.3;
  - (b) copies of all competencies, licences, accreditations, qualifications, permits, clearances or other authorisations which are required for the Supplier to comply with its obligations under the Contract;
  - (c) any other documents or information which the Contract requires to be given to the Principal before access to the Site shall be given, including those identified in the Work Order or elsewhere in the Contract; and



- (d) evidence that the Supplier has done all other things which the Contract requires to be done before access to the Site shall be given, including those identified in the Work Order or elsewhere in the Contract.
- 14.2 (Access for Principal) The Principal and its Personnel shall be entitled to access the Site and any other place where any obligation of the Supplier under the Contract is or is to be carried out on the giving of reasonable written notice, including to conduct tests, inspections or audit of the Supplier's compliance with the Contract or to carry out other services or work at the Site. The Supplier must cooperate, communicate and co-ordinate with the Principal and the Principal's Personnel in relation to the access by the Principal and the Principal's Personnel. The Principal must use reasonable endeavours to ensure none of the Principal's Personnel impedes the Supplier in the performance of the Services.
- 14.3 (**Site specific requirements**) The Supplier must comply with the reasonable requirements of the Principal in relation to the Supplier's access to or conduct on the Site.

#### 15. MEETINGS

15.1 The Supplier must, at the times required by the Contract or the relevant Work Order and when otherwise reasonably required by the Principal, meet and discuss the performance of the Supplier and/or any other matter concerning the Principal in connection with the Contract.

#### 16. TIMING

- 16.1 (Work Orders) The Supplier must commence performing its obligations described in a Work Order by the Time for Work Order Commencement or where no time is stated, promptly after the Supplier receives the Work Order, and must perform those obligations:
  - (a) within any working hours described in the Contract or the Work Order;
  - (b) with due expedition and without delay;
  - (c) in accordance with any requirements of the Contract and the Work Order and any reasonable directions of the Principal as to the order and timing of the performance of those obligations (including any program or schedule included in a Work Order or agreed between the Parties); and
  - (d) so that all Services reach Work Order Completion by the applicable Time for Work Order Completion.
- 16.2 (**Delay or interruption**) The Supplier must promptly notify the Principal's Representative if it suspects, or becomes aware, that the performance of the whole or any part of the Services will be interrupted or delayed and must provide any further information reasonably requested by the Principal's Representative in relation to the delay or interruption.

#### 16.3 (**Extension of time**) If the Supplier:

- (a) is delayed in reaching Work Order Completion by the Time for Work Order Completion because of a Qualifying Cause of Delay; and
- (b) the Supplier gives the Principal a written claim an extension of the Time for Work Order Completion within 10 Business Days of the delay first occurring,

then the Principal shall grant a reasonable extension of the Time for Work Order Completion. The Principal may grant an extension of the Time for Work Order Completion for delay caused by any other cause of delay. The Supplier must provide the Principal with all information reasonably directed by the Principal's Representative in connection with the delay.

16.4 (Monetary compensation) If the Supplier:



- (a) is entitled to an extension of the Time for Work Order Completion under clause 16.3 because of a delay caused by the Principal or the Principal's Personnel; and
- (b) submits a written claim for delay costs within 10 Business Days of the cessation of the delay,

then the Principal shall be liable for the direct costs which the Supplier has reasonably, necessarily and not prematurely incurred by reason of that delay and which it cannot reasonably mitigate. The Supplier shall not otherwise be entitled to any monetary compensation in connection with any delay or disruption to or prolongation of the Supplier's obligations under the Contract or a Work Order however caused.

#### 17. VARIATIONS

- 17.1 (**Direction for Variation**) The Principal may, in respect of any Work Order, at any time prior to the Time for Work Order Completion and for any reason, direct a Variation by giving written notice to the Supplier. The Principal cannot direct a Variation which is outside the general scope of the Contract. The Supplier cannot carry out a Variation without a written direction to do so from the Principal.
- 17.2 (Variation proposal) The Principal may direct the Supplier to provide an estimate or quotation for a Variation and/or a statement as to the impact of a Variation on the Services (including the cost and timing of the Services). The Principal may direct the Supplier to support the estimate, quotation or statement with documentary evidence and may direct the time within which the estimate, quotation or statement is to be provided. The Supplier must comply with such a direction at its expense.
- 17.3 (**Adjustment of Price**) Subject to clause 17.4, the effect of a Variation on the Supplier's entitlement to payment shall be determined using the following order of priority:
  - (a) agreement between the Parties;
  - (b) applicable fees, rates or prices (if any) stated in Schedule 1; or
  - (c) by the Principal (acting reasonably).
- 17.4 (**No entitlement**) The Principal shall not be liable upon any Claim in connection with a direction for a Variation, unless:
  - (a) the Principal's Representative has, expressly stated in writing that the direction is a direction for a Variation; or
  - (b) within 10 Business Days of being given the direction, and where possible before the Supplier complies (in whole or part) with the direction the Supplier has notified the Principal in writing that it considers that the direction constitutes a Variation.
- 17.5 (Variations requested by the Supplier) The Principal may approve a request for a Variation by the Supplier. Unless the Principal agrees otherwise in writing, a Variation approved under this clause 17.5 shall have no effect on the Supplier's entitlement to payment, timing of the Supplier's obligations or any other obligation of the Supplier under the Contract.
- 17.6 (**Omissions**) Where the Principal directs a Variation omitting or reducing any part of the Services described in a Work Order, then the Principal may subsequently provide the omitted or reduced Services itself or engage others to do so on its behalf. The Supplier shall not be entitled to any monetary compensation in connection with an omission or reduction and such omission or reduction shall not invalidate or constitute repudiation of the Contract.

#### 18. INVOICES AND PAYMENT

18.1 (**Timing of invoices**) Subject to clause 18.11, the Supplier may submit invoices to the Principal for Services provided in accordance with the Contract and the relevant Work Order at the times



and for the Services stated in the Reference Schedule. Unless otherwise directed, all invoices should be submitted promptly and final invoices should be submitted no later than 5 Business Days after Work Order Completion.

- 18.2 (**Requirements of invoices**) Each invoice must comply with the GST Law and all other requirements:
  - (a) stated in the Contract or the relevant Work Order; or
  - (b) which the Principal reasonably directs prior to the time for submission of the invoice.
- 18.3 (Further supporting documentation) The Principal may, acting reasonably, direct the Supplier to provide documentary evidence supporting the Supplier's entitlement to payment of the whole or part of the amount claimed. Until such evidence is provided the Principal may assess the claim on the basis that the supporting documentation does not exist.
- 18.4 (**Entitlement to payment**) The Supplier shall only be entitled to payment for Services which are provided in accordance with the requirements of the Contract (including the warranties given and representations made in the Contract).
- 18.5 (Amount due) The Principal may deduct from any amount claimed by the Supplier under or in connection with the Contract (including for a breach of the Contract):
  - (a) any amount which the Contract entitles the Principal to deduct; and
  - (b) any other amount due and owing by the Supplier to the Principal.

The balance remaining after such deductions shall be due by the Principal to the Supplier or by the Supplier to the Principal as the case may be and shall be certified as such by the Principal within 15 Business Days after the invoice is received.

- 18.6 (**Due date for payment**) Subject to the Contract, the Principal shall pay the amount due to the Supplier (if any) including any applicable GST before the end of the Payment Period. If an amount is due from the Supplier to the Principal, the Supplier must pay that amount including any applicable GST within 25 Business Days of receiving written notification to this effect from the Principal.
- 18.7 (**Disputed Invoice**) If the Principal disputes an invoice issued by the Supplier:
  - (a) the Principal will pay the undisputed portion of the relevant invoice (if any) less any deductions provided for under clause 18.5 and dispute the balance; and
  - (b) if the resolution of the dispute determines that the Principal must pay an amount to the Supplier, the Principal will pay that amount upon resolution of that dispute.
- 18.8 (**No admission**) Payments made by the Principal to the Supplier are made on account only and do not constitute an admission that the Supplier is entitled to the payment made or that the Services and/or the Supplier Documents the subject of the payment have been provided, or any other obligation has been carried out, in accordance with the Contract.
- 18.9 (**Sole entitlement**) Except to the extent expressly provided otherwise in the Contract payment of the Price shall be the Supplier's only entitlement to monetary compensation for the provision of the Services and compliance with the Supplier's other obligations under the Contract and any Work Order issued pursuant to it.
- 18.10 (Liability for GST) If GST is imposed on any supply made pursuant to the Contract, the amount payable for the supply is to be increased by the amount of that GST. Each Party agrees to do all things, including providing tax invoices and other documentation, that may be necessary or desirable to enable or assist the other Party to claim any input tax credit, adjustment or refund in relation to any amount of GST paid or payable pursuant to any supply made under or in connection with this Contract.



18.11 (**Recipient created tax invoices**) Where the Principal is the recipient of a taxable supply under this Contract the Principal may issue recipient created tax invoices or recipient created adjustment notes in respect of these supplies in accordance with the GST Law and direct the Supplier not to issue tax invoices or adjustment notes in respect of the same supplies.

#### 19. LAW AND POLICIES

- 19.1 (**Compliance**) The Supplier must, and must ensure that its Personnel involved in the performance of the Services, comply with:
  - (a) all law, standards and codes of practice applicable to the Supplier, the Supplier's business or the Supplier's obligations under the Contract; and
  - (b) any applicable policies, guidelines, procedures and codes of the Principal which are identified in the Contract or the relevant Work Order or which are publicly available or otherwise made known to the Supplier from time to time.
- 19.2 (Change in law) If a law:
  - (a) necessitates:
    - (i) a change to the Services;
    - (ii) a change in a fee or charge; or
    - (iii) the payment of a new fee or charge;
  - (b) comes into effect after the date of the relevant Work Order and could not reasonably then have been anticipated by a competent contractor; and
  - (c) causes the Supplier to incur more or less cost than otherwise would have been incurred,

then the Supplier may notify the Principal in writing of the law and the effect of it on the Supplier.

After the notice is given, the Parties shall attempt to agree on a change to either or both of the Services or the Price. If the Parties have not reached agreement within 45 Business Days after the notice is given, then either Party may give a notice of dispute pursuant to clause 34. Unless otherwise directed by the Principal, but notwithstanding the giving of a notice of dispute, the Supplier must continue to comply with its obligations under the Contract, including by making any payments or doing any things required to comply with the law.

#### 20. WORK HEALTH AND SAFETY

- 20.1 (**Relationship of obligations**) The obligations in this clause 20 are in addition to, and not in substitution for, any other obligation of the Supplier:
  - (a) under the WHS Act and WHS Regulation; or
  - (b) elsewhere in this Contract, a Work Order or at law relating to WHS.

Nothing in this clause 20 is intended to reduce or limit such other obligations and none of those other obligations shall be taken to reduce or limit the Supplier's obligations under this clause 20.

- 20.2 (**Primary obligations of Supplier and Personnel**) The Supplier must itself, and must ensure that its Personnel engaged in performing the Supplier's obligations under the Contract:
  - (a) comply with all law (including the WHS Act and the WHS Regulation) and codes of practice relating to WHS that are in any way applicable to this Contract;



- (b) discharge the duties and comply with all relevant duties, obligations, standards and requirements under the WHS Act and WHS Regulation which are or may become applicable in connection with the Contract including any direction relating to WHS issued by the Regulator or any other Authority;
- (c) at all times identify and take all reasonably practicable steps to ensure health and safety of all persons who may be affected by the performance of the Supplier's obligations under the Contract;
- (d) consult with and co-operate with the Principal in relation to matters of WHS that the Principal (acting reasonably) considers the Supplier cannot resolve to the standard imposed by the WHS Act and the WHS Regulation and to cooperate and coordinate with the Principal to ensure any issues are resolved to that standard;
- (e) except where the Supplier is the principal contractor for a Site under the WHS Regulation, (in which case this clause 20.2(e) does not apply), comply with:
  - (i) the reasonable requirements of any third party appointed by the Principal as principal contractor for the Site; or
  - (ii) if no third party has been so appointed for the Site, the WHS policies and procedures and other WHS requirements of the Principal which are in any way applicable to this Contract for that Site.
- 20.3 (Incident notification) The Supplier must:
  - (a) report any Notifiable Incidents to the Regulator within the specified time frame as per the WHS Act and WHS Regulation;
  - (b) if any of the Supplier's Personnel are involved in an accident or other health and safety incident or otherwise suffer an injury in connection with the performance of the Services:
    - (i) immediately notify the Principal of the accident, incident or injury; and
    - (ii) within 3 Business Days of the accident, incident or injury (or such longer period as the Principal may agree) provide a report giving complete details of the incident, including results of the investigations into the causes, and any recommendations or strategies identified for the preventions in the future; and
  - (c) cooperate and assist (and procure its Personnel to cooperate and assist) the Principal with any investigation by the Principal into any accident, injury or other health and safety incident in connection with the Contract.

### 20.4 (**Supplier's WHS systems**) The Supplier:

- (a) warrants and represents that it has adequate WHS systems in place having regard to the nature of its obligations under the Contract and any hazards specific to any Workplace at which an obligation under the Contract is to be carried out;
- (b) must inform the Principal of all its WHS policies, procedures or measures implemented for the performance of its obligations under this Contract;
- (c) must prepare and adopt WHS documentation which:
  - addresses all the specific WHS hazards and issues relevant to the Supplier's obligations under the Contract which can be reasonably anticipated or ascertained at that time;
  - (ii) documents the system and control methods to be implemented for the performance of its obligations under the Contract,



and must update such documentation as required from time to time to ensure that it complies with clause 20.4(c);

- (d) must, where directed to do so by the Principal:
  - (i) prior to commencing the Services, submit the Supplier's WHS documentation (including the documentation required elsewhere under the Contract) to the Principal for review; and
  - (ii) within the time directed by the Principal submit to the Principal for review any other WHS documentation that the Principal directs it to prepare,

and if the Principal notifies the Supplier that all or part of the WHS documentation is not suitable, at its cost amend and resubmit the relevant WHS documentation;

- (e) must, if the Principal at any time during the performance of the Supplier's obligations under the Contract requests the Supplier to review any of the WHS documentation, promptly and within the time required by the Principal, review any or all of the WHS documentation in accordance with the Principal's request and either:
  - (i) submit revised documentation to the Principal; or
  - (ii) provide written confirmation that the WHS documentation is appropriate to manage the risks associated with the Supplier's obligations under the Contract;
- (f) is not entitled to make any Claim (whether for additional costs or expense) in connection with its obligations under this clause.
- 20.5 (Site specific induction) Unless otherwise directed by the Principal, the Supplier must ensure that each of its Personnel working at the Site receives a site-specific induction and that each person visiting the Supplier or its Personnel at that Site receives a site-specific induction or is accompanied by someone who has received such an induction.

#### 21. HEAVY VEHICLE NATIONAL LAW

- 21.1 (**Definitions**) Terms used in this clause which are defined in the HVNL have the same meaning as in that law unless the context otherwise requires.
- 21.2 (**Primary obligation**) The Supplier must ensure that, so far as is reasonably practicable, the safety of the Supplier's transport activities. Without limiting this, the Supplier must, so far as is reasonably practicable:
  - (a) eliminate public risks and, to the extent it is not reasonably practicable to eliminate public risks, minimise the public risks; and
  - (b) ensure the Supplier's conduct does not directly or indirectly cause or encourage:
    - (i) the driver of the heavy vehicle to contravene the HVNL; or
    - (ii) the driver of the heavy vehicle to exceed a speed limit applying to the driver; or
    - (iii) another person, including another party in the chain of responsibility, to contravene the HVNL.
- 21.3 (Notice) The Supplier must immediately notify the Principal if the Supplier considers that anything in this Contract, or any act or omission of the Principal or the Principal's Personnel has or is likely to directly or indirectly cause or encourage the Supplier or any employee or subcontractor of the Supplier:
  - (a) being the driver of a heavy vehicle to contravene the HVNL; or



- (b) being the driver of a heavy vehicle to exceed a speed limit applying to the driver; or
- (c) being another person, including another party in the chain of responsibility, to contravene the HVNL.

#### 22. PROTECTION OF PROPERTY AND THE ENVIRONMENT

- 22.1 (General) The Supplier must and must ensure that to the extent applicable to them, its Personnel:
  - (a) perform the Supplier's obligations under the Contract safely and in a manner that will prevent pollution, contamination or damage to property or the environment; and
  - (b) take all measures necessary to protect property and the environment in the performance of its obligations under the Contract.
- 22.2 (Rectification of damage) The Supplier must promptly rectify:
  - (a) any damage to any property which is caused by the Supplier or the Supplier's Personnel in connection with the performance of its obligations under the Contract;
  - (b) any damage to any property, which occurs whilst the Supplier is responsible for its care (whether or not due to any act or omission of the Supplier).

The Supplier shall be entitled to claim the cost which it reasonably and necessarily incurs in making good any such damage to the extent that the negligent act or omission or Wilful Misconduct of the Principal or the Principal's Personnel caused or contributed to the damage and/or the Principal failed to act reasonably to mitigate the damage.

#### 23. INDEMNITY

- 23.1 (**Indemnity**) To the extent permitted by law, the Supplier shall indemnify and keep indemnified the Principal and the Principal's officers, employees and related bodies corporate against:
  - (a) any of the following:
    - (i) loss of or damage to property of the Principal (including Supplier Documents);
    - (ii) Claims by any person against the Principal in respect of personal injury or death, or loss of or damage to property of any party; and
    - Claims by any person against the Principal and any cost, expense, fine, penalty, damages or loss which may be imposed upon, suffered or incurred by the Principal,

to the extent caused or contributed to by the negligence or Wilful Misconduct of the Supplier or its Personnel in connection with the Contract and/or the breach of Contract by the Supplier; and

(b) Claims by any person against the Principal and any cost, expense, fine, penalty, damages or loss which may be imposed upon, suffered or incurred by the Principal resulting from an infringement or alleged infringement of Intellectual Property Rights in connection with the Services by the Supplier or its Personnel,

but the indemnity will be reduced to the extent that the act or omission of the Principal or the Principal's Personnel caused or contributed to the cost, expense, fine, penalty, loss, damage, injury or death and/or the Principal failed to act reasonably to mitigate the cost, expense, fine, penalty, loss or damage.



23.2 (Acceptance of benefit) The Principal has informed its officers, employees and related bodies corporate and communicates acceptance on their behalf, of the Supplier's undertaking to indemnify under clause 23.1.

### 24. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

- 24.1 (Limit of liability) To the extent permitted by law:
  - (a) the aggregate liability of each Party to the other in respect of any Claim in connection with the Contract will not exceed that Party's Liability Limit;
  - (b) neither Party shall be liable to the other for any loss of profits, loss of opportunity, loss of agreement or loss of business in connection with the Contract unless, and then only to the extent, that the Contract expressly provides for that liability.
- 24.2 (Exceptions) Clause 24.1 does not apply to:
  - (a) liability of the Principal to pay the Price;
  - (b) liability of either Party in connection with personal injury, or death or damage to property;
  - (c) liability of a Party arising as a result of:
    - (i) an infringement of confidentiality or Intellectual Property Rights;
    - (ii) a deliberate breach or abandonment of the Contract;
    - (iii) Wilful Misconduct;
    - (iv) a breach of any law; or
    - (v) fraud or other criminal conduct,

by that Party; or

- (d) liability of the Supplier which the Supplier:
  - (i) is entitled to recover under any insurance policy required to be effected under the Contract (up to the monetary limits for that insurance stated in the Contract) unless and then only to the extent that the Supplier uses all reasonable endeavours to, but does not actually, recover that liability; or
  - would have been entitled to recover under any insurance policy required to be effected under the Contract (up to the monetary limits for that insurance stated in the Contract) but for any act or omission of the Supplier or the existence of this clause 24,

and amounts referred to in subclauses (a), (b), (c) and (d) shall not be included in calculating whether the relevant Party's Liability Limit in clause 24.1(a) has been reached.

#### 25. INSURANCE

- 25.1 (**Insurances to be effected and maintained**) The Supplier must effect the insurances stated in the Reference Schedule and any other insurance which the Supplier considers is necessary to protect its interests or which is required by law.
- 25.2 **(Period of insurance**) The insurance policies required under clause 25.2 must be maintained at all times from the Term Start Date:
  - (a) until 5pm on the later of:



- (i) the Term End Date; and
- (ii) the date on which the Supplier's obligations under the Contract are complete; and
- (b) in respect of professional indemnity insurance only, for a period of 7 years after the date in clause 25.2(a).
- 25.3 (**Subcontractors**) The Supplier must ensure that any subcontractor, supplier or consultant of the Supplier has equivalent insurances to the extent that they are applicable to the part of the Services to be carried out by the subcontractor, supplier or consultant.
- 25.4 (**Evidence of insurance**) If requested by the Principal, the Supplier must provide the Principal with a copy of the relevant certificate of currency and other evidence reasonably required by the Principal of the Supplier's compliance with this clause 25. The Principal may suspend the Contract or any Work Order issued pursuant to it until such evidence is provided.
- 25.5 (**No implied limitation**) Nothing in this clause, nor the Supplier's compliance or noncompliance with it, shall be taken to limit or reduce the Supplier's liability under the Contract or at law.
- 25.6 (**Notification**) The Supplier must:
  - (a) if any insurance policy required under the Contract is cancelled or the Principal's interest in respect of any of those policies is adversely affected, immediately notify the Principal's Representative of this;
  - (b) if any event occurs which may give rise to a claim involving the Principal under any policy of insurance to be effected by the Supplier under this clause 25:
    - (i) notify the Principal within 10 Business Days of that event; and
    - (ii) ensure the Principal is kept fully informed of any subsequent actions and developments concerning the relevant claim.

#### 26. INSPECTIONS AND TESTS

- 26.1 (**Right to inspect and test**) The Principal may inspect and test, or engage a third party to inspect and test, any or all Services, Works, Goods and Supplier Documents provided to ensure that the Services, Works, Goods and the Supplier Documents comply with the Contract, including all warranties given and representations made by the Supplier in the Contract. Inspections or tests carried out by or on behalf of the Principal shall not relieve the Supplier of any obligation or liability under the Contract nor limit or waive any right of the Principal.
- 26.2 (**Cost**) If an inspection or test undertaken by or on behalf of the Principal reveals a failure by the Supplier to comply with the Contract, then the costs reasonably incurred by the Principal in undertaking the inspection or test shall be a debt due and payable by the Supplier to the Principal.

### 27. HANDLING OF INFORMATION

- 27.1 (**Obligation of confidence**) A Party must not use the other Party's Confidential Information for any purpose other than complying with its obligations or exercising its rights in connection with the Contract ("Permitted Purpose"). A Party may not disclose the other Party's Confidential Information to a third party other than in the Exceptional Circumstances. The Parties must take reasonable steps to prevent the unauthorised disclosure to or use by any other person, firm or company of the Confidential Information.
- 27.2 (**Breach of Confidence**) If a Party becomes aware of a suspected or actual breach of clause 27.1, that Party must immediately notify the other Party and take reasonable steps required to



prevent, stop or mitigate the extent of the breach. The Parties acknowledge that damages will not be an adequate remedy for such a breach.

- 27.3 (Return of Confidential Information) Subject to this clause 27, the Disclosee of Confidential Information must return or destroy (at the Discloser's discretion) all Confidential Information and material containing Confidential Information when it is no longer required by the Disclosee for the Permitted Purpose or when otherwise directed by the Discloser. The Disclosee may, subject to its continuing obligation to comply with this clause 27, keep such copies as are required to comply with any law or to comply with its reasonable corporate governance requirements for so long as is necessary to satisfy those requirements.
- 27.4 (**Personnel**) The Parties must make every reasonable effort to ensure that only its Personnel that have a need to know any Confidential Information for the Permitted Purpose are permitted to access and use the other Party's Confidential Information and its Personnel are aware of and comply with the obligations of confidentiality in this clause 27.
- 27.5 (Collection of information by the Supplier) If the Supplier collects or has access to Personal Information as that term is defined in the *Information Privacy Act 2009* (Qld) in order to carry out its obligations under the Contract, the Supplier must comply with Parts 1 and 3 of Chapter 2 of that Act in relation to the discharge of its obligations under this Contract as if the Supplier was the Principal. Where the Principal consents to the Supplier subcontracting the whole or part of the Supplier's obligations under this Contract, the Supplier must ensure that any subcontract with a subcontractor that will collect or have access to Personal Information contains a clause requiring the subcontractor to acknowledge and agree that it is a 'bound contracted service provider' as that term is defined the *Information Privacy Act 2009* (Qld).
- 27.6 (Collection of information by the Principal) The Principal collects Personal Information and other information in connection with the Contract so that it can properly administer the Contract and otherwise carry out its functions as a local government authority. The Principal is authorised to collect this information under the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld) and the *Local Government Regulation 2012* (Qld) and other law. The information will be accessible by Personnel of the Principal engaged to assist the Principal in connection with the Contract or otherwise carrying out the functions of the Principal. Information may also be disclosed as otherwise permitted under the Contract or at law, including under the *Local Government Regulation 2012* (Qld) and the *Right to Information Act 2009* (Qld).
- 27.7 (**Right to Information**) The Supplier acknowledges that:
  - (a) the Right to Information Act 2009 (Qld)':
    - provides members of the public with a legally enforceable right to access documents held by Queensland Government agencies (including the Principal);
    - (ii) requires that documents be disclosed upon request, unless the documents are exempt or on balance, disclosure is contrary to public interest; and
  - (b) information provided by the Supplier in connection with the Contract is potentially subject to disclosure to third parties, including information marked as confidential;
  - (c) the Principal will assess any application for disclosure in accordance with the terms of the *Right to Information Act 2009* (Qld).
- 27.8 (Media) The Supplier must not, either on its own account or in conjunction with other parties, issue any publication, advertisement, document, article or information whether oral or written, in connection with the Contract in any media without the prior approval of the Principal.

### 28. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

28.1 (**Background IP**) Background IP of a Party shall remain the exclusive property of that Party. The Principal grants the Supplier a revocable, royalty free, non-exclusive, non-transferable



licence to use the Principal's Background IP strictly for the purpose of complying with the Supplier's obligations under the Contract and for no other purpose. The Supplier grants the Principal an irrevocable, royalty free, non-exclusive, non-transferable licence to use, copy, reproduce, modify and adapt the Supplier's Background IP for any purpose for which the Services are provided and for the purpose of complying with the Principal's obligations and exercising the Principal's rights in connection with the Contract. Each Party warrants and represents to the other that the use of the Party's Background IP will not infringe any Intellectual Property Rights of a third party.

- 28.2 (**Project IP Alternative 1**) If the Reference Schedule provides that Project IP vests in the Principal, then:
  - (a) Project IP vests on creation in and is the exclusive property of the Principal;
  - (b) to the extent (if any) that clause 28.2(a) does not vest Project IP in the Principal, the Supplier assigns all right, title and interest in the Project IP to the Principal; and
  - (c) the Principal grants the Supplier a revocable, royalty free, non-exclusive, nontransferable licence to use the Project IP to the extent necessary to enable the Supplier to comply with the Supplier's obligations under the Contract and for no other purpose.
- 28.3 (**Project IP Alternative 2**) If the Reference Schedule provides that Project IP vests in the Supplier, Project IP vests in the Supplier on creation and the Supplier grants the Principal an irrevocable, royalty free, non-exclusive, non-transferable licence to use, copy, reproduce, modify and adapt the Project IP for any purpose for which the Services are provided and for the purpose of complying with the Principal's obligations and exercising the Principal's rights in connection with the Contract.
- 28.4 (**Moral Rights consent**) If the Reference Schedule provides that a Moral Rights consent is required then:
  - (a) the Principal may do anything which would, but for this clause, constitute an infringement of the Moral Rights of the Supplier or any of its Personnel in the Background IP or the Project IP; and
  - (b) the Supplier must procure, and on request by the Principal provide to the Principal a copy of, a written consent to this effect from each of its Personnel that is the author of any Supplier Documents.
- 28.5 (Warranty and representation by Supplier) The Supplier warrants and represents that:
  - (a) it has the necessary rights to exercise any Intellectual Property Rights that it uses to provide the Services, or to assign or license the Supplier's Background IP and Project IP in accordance with this clause 28;
  - (b) it has not infringed and will not infringe any Intellectual Property Rights of a third party in connection with the performance of its obligations under the Contract; and
  - (c) except to the extent that the infringement is caused by the Supplier's incorporation of the Principal's Background IP, the Project IP and the Principal's use of the Project IP for a purpose stated in or to be reasonably inferred from the Contract will not infringe the Intellectual Property Rights of a third party.

### 29. NON-CONFORMANCE

29.1 (**Non-conformance**) Where any of part of the Services provided by the Supplier does not conform strictly to the requirements of the Contract or the Supplier fails to comply with any other obligation of the Supplier under the Contract, the Principal may, in addition to or as an alternative to exercising its rights under clause 32 and 33, exercise the rights provided in clause 29.2.



- 29.2 (**Principal's rights**) Where permitted by clause 29.1, the Principal may:
  - (a) direct the Supplier to provide a detailed proposal as to how the Supplier proposes to rectify the non-conformance and the time within which such a proposal is to be provided; or
  - (b) whether or not the Principal has given a direction under clause 29.2(a), direct the Supplier to:
    - (i) rectify the non-conformance or failure, including by:
      - (A) performing or reperforming any non-conforming Services;
      - (B) removing, demolishing, repairing, replacing or reconstructing any nonconforming Works;
      - (C) removing, repairing or replacing any non-conforming Goods;
      - (D) replacing non-conforming Supplier Documents; and
    - (ii) make good any damage to any property (including Works or Goods) to the extent caused by the non-conformance or the rectification,

at the Supplier's expense and within the timeframes reasonably directed by the Principal.

- 29.3 (**Step-in rights**) Where the Supplier fails to comply with a direction under clause 29.2(a) or 29.2(b), the Principal may:
  - (a) after giving at least 5 Business Days written notice to the Supplier (except in the case of emergency, in which case no notice is required), take any of the steps contemplated by clause 29.2(b) itself or engage a third party to do so; or
  - (b) accept the non-conformance or failure and adjust the Price as if the Principal had directed a Variation for the non-conformance or failure.
- 29.4 (**Costs**) The cost reasonably incurred by the Principal in connection with any action taken pursuant to clause 29.2 or 29.3 shall be a debt due and owing by the Supplier to the Principal.
- 29.5 (**Timing**) The rights given to the Principal under clauses 29.2 or 29.3 may be exercised at any time up to 12 months after the later of:
  - (a) the date on which the Services, Works, Goods or Supplier Documents were provided by the Supplier; and
  - (b) the Term End Date.
- 29.6 (Application of clause) For clarity, this clause 29 shall apply to all Services, Works, Goods and Supplier Documents provided or to be provided, under the Contract, including Services, Works, Goods and Supplier Documents provided in compliance with a direction under clause 29.2(b).

#### 30. SUSPENSION

30.1 (**Right to suspend**) The Principal may direct the Supplier to suspend the performance of the whole or part of the Supplier's obligations under the Contract at any time and for any reason and may direct the Supplier to recommence performing those obligations by giving written notice to the Supplier. The Supplier must not suspend the performance of its obligations under the Contract without the prior written consent of the Principal.



30.2 (**Costs of suspension**) If the suspension is directed due to any act or omission of the Supplier or its Personnel (including a breach of the Contract by the Supplier) then the Supplier shall bear the costs of the suspension. Otherwise, the Principal shall be liable for the direct costs which the Supplier demonstrates it has reasonably, necessarily and not prematurely incurred by reason of the suspension and which the Supplier demonstrates it cannot reasonably mitigate.

### 31. FORCE MAJEURE

- 31.1 (Notification of Force Majeure) If either Party is rendered unable wholly or in part by Force Majeure to carry out any of its obligations under the Contract (other than an obligation to make a payment of monies), that Party ('the Affected Party'), shall give to the other Party prompt written notice of such Force Majeure detailing the particulars of the Force Majeure and to the extent that it is ascertainable at the time of giving the notice, the extent to which it will be unable to perform or be delayed in performing its obligations.
- 31.2 (**Suspension**) On the giving of a notice under clause 31.1, the obligations of the Affected Party detailed in the notice shall be suspended for the duration of the Force Majeure.
- 31.3 (**Mitigation**) The Affected Party shall use all reasonable diligence to mitigate the effect of the Force Majeure on its obligations as quickly as possible. The Affected Party must notify the other Party as soon as it is no longer affected by such Force Majeure.
- 31.4 (Industrial relations) Clause 31.3 does not require the settlement of strikes, lockouts or other labour difficulties by the Affected Party on terms contrary to its wishes. The manner in which all such difficulties shall be handled shall be entirely within the discretion of the Affected Party.
- 31.5 (**Principal's rights**) Where the Supplier gives a notice under clause 31.1, the Principal may at its election:
  - (a) itself perform, or engage others to perform the obligations which the Supplier is unable to perform and may continue to perform such obligations until the later of the time that the Principal is reasonably satisfied that the Supplier is able to resume performance of those obligations and the time at which any interim arrangements put in place by the Principal are able to be reasonably brought to an end;
  - (b) take such other action as the Principal, acting reasonably, considers appropriate.

The cost incurred by the Principal in exercising these rights shall be borne by the Principal.

31.6 (**Termination**) If Force Majeure extends for a period of greater than 20 consecutive Business Days then the Principal may terminate the Contract immediately by giving written notice to the Supplier.

### 32. CANCELLATION OF WORK ORDER

- 32.1 (Cancellation of a Work Order) The Principal may cancel any Work Order at any time, for any reason, at its convenience. Any Work Orders which are on foot at the time at which the Contract is terminated by either Party pursuant to clause 33 shall be deemed to be immediately cancelled pursuant to this clause 32.1, unless the Parties expressly agree otherwise.
- 32.2 (Consequences of cancellation) If a Work Order is cancelled, then:
  - (a) unless otherwise directed by the Principal, the Supplier must secure the Site in a safe and proper manner and remove all of its Personnel, plant and equipment from the Site within 5 Business Days of the date of cancellation of the relevant Work Order;
  - (b) the Principal may carry out any obligation of the Supplier which has not been carried out and completed as at the date of cancellation itself or engage others to do so on the Principal's behalf; and
  - (c) the Principal shall, subject to the Contract, pay the Supplier:



- (i) the amount which the Supplier is entitled to be paid under the Contract for Services provided by the Supplier in accordance with the Contract up to and including the date of cancellation; and
- (ii) if the cancellation is solely due to the act or omission of the Principal, without any fault on behalf of the Supplier, the amount of any other direct costs which the Supplier cannot reasonably mitigate and which the Supplier has reasonably, necessarily and not prematurely incurred:
  - (A) prior to the cancellation in the expectation of completing its obligations under the Contract or the relevant Work Order; or
  - (B) as a direct consequence of cancellation,

except that the total amount payable to the Supplier in respect of the Work Order shall not under any circumstances exceed the amount to which the Supplier would have become entitled to be paid had the Work Order not been cancelled and the Supplier had completed its obligations under the Work Order.

#### 33. TERMINATION, DEFAULT AND INSOLVENCY

- 33.1 (**Termination for convenience**) The Principal may at any time and for any reason in its absolute discretion terminate the Contract by giving 25 Business Days written notice to the Supplier.
- 33.2 (**Notice to show cause**) If a Party ("the defaulting Party") commits a Substantial Breach of the Contract, then the other Party may give the defaulting Party a notice to show cause. The notice to show cause must state:
  - (a) that it is a notice to show cause under clause 33.2;
  - (b) the alleged Substantial Breach;
  - (c) that the defaulting Party is required to show cause in writing why the other Party should not exercise a right referred to in clause 33.3 or clause 33.4 (as the case may be);
  - (d) the date and time by which the defaulting Party must show cause (which must be a reasonable period taking into account the nature of the breach); and
  - (e) where applicable, the place at which cause must be shown.

#### 33.3 (Principal's rights) If:

- (a) the Supplier is subject to an Insolvency Event;
- (b) the Supplier commits a Substantial Breach which is incapable of remedy; or
- (c) by the time specified in the notice to show cause given by the Principal to the Supplier under clause 33.2, the Supplier fails to show reasonable cause why the Principal should not exercise a right under this clause 33.3,

the Principal may by giving written notice to the Supplier:

- (i) cancel any Work Order pursuant to clause 32.1;
- (ii) to the extent permitted by law, immediately terminate this Contract; or
- (iii) permanently or temporarily take the whole or any part of the obligations of the Supplier remaining to be completed pursuant to any Work Order (including the obligation to remedy the default) out of the hands of the Supplier and may itself



perform those obligations or engage a third party to do so on the Principal's behalf, in which case:

- the Supplier shall not be entitled to any further payment in respect of the obligations taken out of the Supplier's hands;
- (B) the Supplier must continue to perform any obligations under the Contract and the relevant Work Order that were not taken out of the Supplier's hands;
- (C) the Principal or the third party so engaged may enter the Site and any relevant premises of the Supplier and use all of the Supplier's plant, equipment and materials as may be necessary to perform the obligation;
- (D) the Principal may, on the giving of reasonable notice, require the Supplier to resume the performance of the obligations of the Supplier under the Contract and the relevant Work Order which were taken out of the hands of the Supplier if the Supplier ceases to be subject to an Insolvency Event or the Principal is otherwise of the view that the Supplier is capable of continuing to perform its obligations under the Contract and the relevant Work Order in accordance with the Contract; and
- (E) if the costs incurred by the Principal in performing the obligations or engaging a third party to do so are greater than the costs which would have been incurred had the Supplier performed the obligation then the difference shall be a debt due and owing by the Supplier to the Principal and may be deducted from payments otherwise owing to the Supplier. Until such costs are incurred, the Principal may deduct the estimated costs from payments to the Supplier.
- 33.4 (Supplier's rights) If:
  - (a) the Principal commits a Substantial Breach which is incapable of remedy; or
  - (b) by the time specified in a notice to show cause given by the Supplier to the Principal under clause 33.2, the Principal fails to show reasonable cause why the Supplier should not exercise a right under this clause 33.4,

the Supplier may at its election:

- (i) suspend the whole or part of the Services (but only after ensuring that the Site is left in a secure and safe condition); or
- (ii) if the breach is not capable of remedy, terminate the Contract by giving written notice to the Principal.

If the Supplier suspends the whole or part of the Services under this clause 33.4, the Supplier shall lift the suspension if the Principal remedies the breach but if, within 45 Business Days after the suspension, the breach is not remedied and the Principal fails to make other arrangements to the reasonable satisfaction of the Supplier, then the Supplier may terminate the Contract by giving written notice to the Principal.

- 33.5 (Effect on other rights) To the extent permitted by law, the Supplier shall not be entitled to any monetary compensation in respect of:
  - (a) the termination of the Contract by either Party;
  - (b) the cancellation of a Work Order; or



(c) the Principal taking obligations out of the hands of the Supplier,

other than as expressly provided in clause 32. Nothing in clauses 32 or 33 shall prejudice the Principal's right to claim and recover damages for breach of contract by the Supplier.

#### 34. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

- 34.1 (Mandatory process) Unless otherwise stated in this Contract, any dispute between the Parties must be resolved in accordance with this clause 34.
- 34.2 (**Notice of dispute**) If a Party considers that a dispute has arisen between the Parties in connection with this Contract, then the Party must give written notice to the other, setting out the particulars of the dispute and stating that the notice is given under this clause 34. Unless the Parties otherwise agree in writing, the notice shall be delivered by hand or registered post.
- 34.3 (**Initial conference**) If a Party gives written notice to the other of a dispute under the Contract, representatives of the Parties shall promptly confer to attempt to resolve the dispute.
- 34.4 (**Mediation**) If the dispute is not resolved within 10 Business Days after the giving of the notice (or such longer period as may be agreed by the Parties) a Party may by written notice to the other Party refer the dispute for mediation in accordance with the Mediation Rules of the Resolution Institute. The mediation must be conducted by a mediator to be appointed by agreement of the Parties or in default of agreement to be appointed by the President of the Queensland Law Society or his nominee at the request of a Party.
- 34.5 (**Legal proceedings**) If the dispute is not resolved within 20 Business Days after the appointment of the mediator any Party may take legal proceedings to resolve the dispute.
- 34.6 (**Urgent relief**) This clause 34 does not prevent any Party from taking any steps under any law out of which the Parties cannot contract or obtaining any injunctive, declaratory or other interlocutory relief from a Court which may be urgently required.
- 34.7 (**Obligation to continue**) Notwithstanding the existence of a dispute, the Parties shall, subject to clauses 30, 31, 32 and 33 continue to perform the Contract.

#### 35. CLAIMS

35.1 (Claims pursuant to the Contract) The Principal shall not be liable upon any Claim by the Supplier for an extension of time, an adjustment to the Price (including due to a Variation) or other monetary compensation pursuant to the Contract unless the Supplier has complied with the requirements in the Contract for notifying the Principal of and making such a claim.

#### 36. INTERPRETATION

- 36.1 (Headings) Headings are for reference purposes only and must not be used in interpretation;
- 36.2 (**No limitation**) The words 'include', 'includes' and 'including' are not words of limitation. Where the Contract provides that the Principal 'may' do something the Principal is not obliged to do that thing and is not prevented from doing any other thing;
- 36.3 (**Grammatical forms**) Where any word or phrase is given a defined meaning any other part of speech or other grammatical form concerning the word or phrase has a corresponding meaning. Words importing the singular number include the plural number and words importing the plural number include the singular number.
- 36.4 (Law) A reference to 'law' includes all:
  - (a) legislation (including subordinate legislation), local laws, by-laws, orders, ordinances, awards, requirements and proclamations of an Authority having jurisdiction and any related fees and charges; and



(b) certificates, licences, accreditations, clearances, authorisations, Approvals, consents, and permits and any related fees and charges,

which are applicable to the Supplier or the Contract or which are otherwise in force at any place where an obligation under the Contract is carried out, as introduced, amended or replaced from time to time.

- 36.5 (Other references) A reference to:
  - (a) a person includes any other legal entity and a reference to a legal entity includes a person;
  - (b) a clause is to a clause in the Contract unless expressly stated otherwise;
  - (c) writing includes any mode of representing or reproducing words in tangible and permanently visible form, and includes email and facsimile;
  - (d) a monetary amount is a reference to an Australian currency amount.
- 36.6 (**Time**) References to time are to local time in Queensland. Where time is to be reckoned from a day or event, the day or the day of the event must be excluded. If any time period specified in the Contract or the relevant Work Order expires on a day which is not a Business Day, the period shall expire at the end of the next Business Day. A reference to a day, week or month means a calendar day, week or month.
- 36.7 (Indemnities) Each indemnity provided in the Contract is a continuing indemnity which survives the expiration or termination of the Contract. The Principal need not incur any expense or make any payment in order to rely on an indemnity.
- 36.8 (**Contra proferentem**) The contra proferentem rule and other rules of construction will not apply to disadvantage a Party whether that Party put the clause forward, was responsible for drafting all or part of it or would otherwise benefit from it.
- 36.9 (**Severance**) If a provision of the Contract is void or unenforceable it must be severed from the Contract and the provisions that are not void or unenforceable are unaffected by the severance.

### 37. GENERAL PROVISIONS

- 37.1 (**Costs**) Each Party must pay its own costs and expenses incurred in negotiating, executing, stamping, registering and performance of the Contract.
- 37.2 (Joint and several obligations) To the extent permitted by law, if either Party consists of two or more persons the Contract binds such persons and their respective executors, administrators, successors and permitted assigns jointly and severally, and any obligation incurred in favour of that Party may be enforceable by each person comprising that Party severally;
- 37.3 (**Governing law**) The Contract is governed by the law of Queensland and the law of the Commonwealth of Australia in force in Queensland. The Parties submit to the jurisdiction of the Courts of Queensland, relevant Federal Courts and Courts competent to hear appeals from them.
- 37.4 (**Binding on successor**) The Contract shall be for the benefit of and binding upon the Parties and their heirs, executors, successors and permitted assigns.
- 37.5 (Further assurance) The Parties must execute and deliver all documents and must do all things as are necessary for the complete performance of their respective obligations under the Contract.
- 37.6 (Service of notices) A notice or other communication shall be deemed to have been given and received upon the earlier of actual receipt, or delivery to a Party's representative at the address



or email address stated in the Reference Schedule or as last notified in writing by the receiving Party, but a notice or communication sent only by email shall not be deemed to have been given and received if:

- (a) the sender receives a notification from the email system of the sender or the intended recipient which indicates that the email cannot be read by the intended recipient; or
- (b) the intended recipient demonstrates that the notice or communication could not be legibly displayed by the intended recipient's email system at that time.
- 37.7 (Waiver) No waiver by a Party of a provision of the Contract is binding unless made in writing. Any waiver is limited to the particular instance and does not affect the subsequent enforceability of the provision.
- 37.8 (Amendments) This Contract may only be amended by written agreement executed by or on behalf of each Party.
- 37.9 (**Consent**) Any consent of the Principal under the Contract may be given, withheld or given subject to conditions at the absolute discretion of the Principal.
- 37.10 (**Consideration**) In consideration for the Supplier entering into this Contract, the Principal agrees to pay the Supplier the sum of \$10 on demand. In consideration for the Principal entering into this Contract, the Supplier agrees to pay the Principal the sum of \$10 on demand.
- 37.11 (**Discrepancy or inconsistency**) Where there is a discrepancy or inconsistency between any obligation of the Supplier under the Contract, the Supplier must notify the Principal in writing of the discrepancy or inconsistency, If the discrepancy or issue cannot be resolved using the order of precedence under clause 2.3 then unless otherwise directed by the Principal, the Supplier must comply with the highest or most onerous requirement.
- 37.12 (**Cumulative rights and obligations**) The rights and remedies of a Party provided in the Contract are in addition to the rights or remedies conferred on the Party elsewhere in the Contract, at law or in equity. Compliance with a clause of the Contract will not relieve the Supplier of any other obligation under the Contract, at law or in equity. The exercise by the Principal of a right provided in the Contract shall not invalidate or constitute a repudiation of the Contract.
- 37.13 (Electronic execution) The Contract may be executed in any number of counterparts and when executed communication of the fact of execution to the other Party may be made by sending evidence of execution by email. For clarity, the Parties consent to the Contract being executed electronically using DocuSign or an equivalent electronic method to identify the Parties.
- 37.14 (**Current versions**) Except to the extent otherwise provided in the Contract, where the Contract includes or incorporates by reference any standard, plan, requirement, code, guideline, policy, standard drawing or standard specification then the Supplier must comply with the version of that standard, plan, requirement, code, guideline, policy, standard drawing or standard specification which is current as at the date of the Contract, and the sums, rates or prices in the Contract shall be deemed to have allowed for compliance with that version.
- 37.15 (Clauses to survive termination) In addition to any other clauses which may be found to survive termination, clauses 23, 24, 25.2(b), 27, 28, 32.2, 33.5 and 35 survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Contract.

#### 38. WAGES

38.1 (Wages) The wages of the contractor's employees are not less than the equivalent of a Council employee's rate of pay. For the rate of wages for council employees, please refer to the Banana Shire Certified agreement on the Queensland Industrial relation Commission website or contact the procurement department for a copy.



### 39. USES BY OTHER LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

- 39.1 A Local Government in Queensland other than Council (an "Other Local Government") may access the contract subject to mutual agreement in writing of Council, the Contractor and the other Local Government in Queensland.
- 39.2 Responsibilities for establishing and managing any contract between the contractor and the Other Local Government in Queensland rests with the Other Local Government.



## Schedule 1 - Scope and Price

[Scope and Price to be inserted into execution copy of Contract]

### Execution

### **EXECUTION BY THE PRINCIPAL**

<b>SIGNED</b> for and on behalf of Banana Shire Council by its duly authorised representative in the presence of:	) ) )
Signature of witness	) ) ······ ) Signature of authorised representative
Name of witness (block letters)	) ) Name of authorised representative
Date	) ) Date

### EXECUTION BY THE SUPPLIER (WHERE SIGNATORY IS A CORPORATION)

<b>SIGNED</b> for and on behalf of the Supplier in accordance with its Constitution and Section 127 of the <i>Corporations Act 2001</i> :	) ) )
Director	) Director/Secretary
Name (block letters)	) ) Name (block letters) )
Date	) Date

### EXECUTION BY SUPPLIER (WHERE SIGNATORY IS NOT A CORPORATION)

<b>SIGNED</b> for and on behalf of the Supplier by its authorised representative (who warrants and represents that it has the power to execute this Contract on behalf of the Supplier) in the presence of:	) ) ) )	
Signature of witness	) ) )	Signature
Name of witness (block letters)	) ) )	Name of authorised representative
Date	) )	Date



# SCOPE OF SERVICES

Register of Prequalified Suppliers (ROPS) Trade Maintenance and Associated Services

**CONTRACT NO: T2324.46** 



### 1. INTERPRETATION AND DEFINITIONS

- 1.1 (**Relationship to Terms and Conditions**) This document is to be read subject to and in conjunction with the Principal's General Conditions.
- 1.2 (**Definitions)** In this Scope, except to the extent that the context requires otherwise, capitalised terms which are defined in the General Conditions and which are not separately defined in this Scope have the meaning assigned to them in the General Conditions. Otherwise the following terms have the meaning assigned below:
  - (a) After Hours Rates means the rates identified as such in the Schedule of Rates;
  - (b) **Code of Practice 2021** means the 'Managing the risk of plant in the workplace Code of Practice 2021' as may be amended or replaced from time to time;
  - (c) **Contract** has the same meaning as in the General Conditions;
  - (d) **Daily Docket** means the dockets required to be provided by clause **Error! Reference** source not found.;
  - (e) **Extra Personnel** means the labour types identified as such in the Schedule of Rates;
  - (f) **General Conditions** means the general conditions of contract which form part of the Contract into which this Scope is incorporated;
  - (g) **Good Industry Practice** has the same meaning as in the General Conditions;
  - (h) Hire Charges means the rates and charges described in the Schedule of Rates;
  - (i) **Hire Period** means the period commencing and ending at the times determined under clause 3.1;
  - (j) Labour Rates means the rates identified as such in the Schedule of Rates;
  - (k) **Personal Protective Equipment** means anything used or worn by a person to minimise risk to the person's health and safety, including air supplied respiratory equipment;
  - (I) **Personnel** has the same meaning as in the General Conditions;
  - (m) Plant and Equipment means the items of plant and/or equipment described in the Schedule of Rates, including any attachments (including Chargeable Attachments), accessories, tools, consumable items and any other equipment to be supplied along with the Plant and Equipment;
  - (n) Schedule of Rates means the document setting out the rates agreed between the Principal and Supplier for the provision of the Services included at Schedule 1 of the Contract as amended by agreement in writing between the Parties (including in a Work Order);
  - (o) **Scope** means this document and any other documents incorporated into it.
  - (p) **Services** has the same meaning as in the General Conditions and as described in this Scope;
  - (q) Site has the same meaning as in the General Conditions ;
  - (r) **Standard Working Hours** means the hours during which the Schedule of Rates provides that Day Rates are payable;





- (s) **Supporting Documents** means documents evidencing that the Supplier's Personnel and Plant and Equipment comply with the requirements of the Contract, including:
  - licenses, verification of competencies and evidence of training courses successfully completed by the Supplier's Personnel relating to the part of the Services to be performed by those Personnel;
  - (ii) certificates of registration for Plant and Equipment, permits, clearances or other authorisations required for the use of the Plant and Equipment;
  - (iii) evidence of that the requirements of the *Work Health and Safety Regulation 2011* (Qld) for the registration for high risk work;
  - (iv) evidence of the companies registration with the Transport and Main Road Traffic Management Registration Scheme; and
  - (v) a list of employees Traffic Management Implementation (TMI), Traffic Management Design (TMD) and/or Traffic Control accreditation information.

### 2. THE SERVICES

- 2.1 The Supplier is to supply any or all of, but not limited to, the following services:
  - Air conditioning, refrigeration and mechanical
  - Asbestos removal 'A' class and 'B' class
  - Building
  - Cabinetmaking
  - Cleaners
  - Concreting
  - Electrical
  - Epoxy works.
  - Fire maintenance services.
  - Fencing
  - Floor coverings seamless flooring and tiling
  - Handy work
  - Hydraulic Maintenance and Servicing
  - Landscaping
  - Locksmith
  - Metal fabrication
  - Painting





- Paving / Bricklaying
- Pest Control
- Plastering
- Plumbing
- Liquid West removal
- Signage

Council's need for any of the above services will be identified in the relevant Work Order at the times required by the Contract and relevant Work Order and in accordance with the Contract.

### 3. HIRE PERIOD

- 3.1 (**Hire Period**) The Hire Period shall:
  - (a) commence on the later of:
    - (i) the start time stated in or determined under the relevant Work Order
  - (b) end at the end time stated in or determined under the relevant Work Order (if any) but if:
    - (i) the Principal notifies the Supplier of an alternative end time, the Hire Period shall end at the time stated in the notice; or
    - (ii) the relevant Work Order is cancelled or deemed cancelled pursuant to termination of the Contract, the Hire Period shall end at the time notified to the Supplier by the Principal on cancellation of the relevant Work Order.
- 3.2 (Minimum Hire Period) Notwithstanding clause 3.1 the Hire Period shall not be less than 2 hours.

### 4. TRADE SERVICE MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS

- 4.1 (**Approval**) The Supplier must only supply personnel, plant and equipment to the Principal which complies with the requirements of the Contract and the relevant Work Order and which has been approved by the Principal for use under the register of pre-qualified suppliers of vegetation clearing/management pursuant to which the Contract is formed.
- 4.2 (**General**) The Supplier must ensure that at all times during the Hire Period the personnel are able and suitably qualified to undertake the works required and that all Plant and Equipment are in proper working order, well maintained to a safe and efficient operating standard, and complies with:
  - (a) the requirements of the Contract and the relevant Work Order;
  - (b) relevant Australian Standards; and
  - (c) all requirements of law for Vegetation Clearing/Manageemnt and all other requirements of law which are applicable; and
  - (d) where specific requirements are stated in the individual Schedule of Rates, those specific requirements.
- 4.3 (**Replacement of Personnel)** The Supplier may at any time during the Term seek approval from the Principal to replace any personnel with an equally and/or suitably qualified staff member. The

### Scope



costs associated with providing the replacement shall be borne by the Supplier and the staff member shall be provided at the same Hire Charge as the person replaced.

### 5. PERSONNEL

- 5.1 (Evidence of qualification) The Supplier must, within 24 hours of a request by the Principal to do so, provide current copies of all Supporting Documents and any other evidence requested by the Principal to ensure that Supplier's personnel's qualifications complies with the requirements of the Contract.
- 5.2 (**General obligations**) In addition to the Supplier's obligations in respect of its Personnel under clause 11.1 of the General Conditions, the Supplier must ensure that each person:
  - (a) is fully trained and qualified in vegetation management and at all times whilst onsite is competent and fit to undertake the duties required by the contract;
  - (b) complies with the reasonable directions of the Principal in connection with the Services;
  - (c) has and maintains at all times during the Hire Period the necessary competencies, licences, registrations, accreditations, qualifications, permits, clearances and other authorisations which are required to lawfully undertake the duties required by the contract;
  - (d) has appropriate Personal Protective Equipment such as safety boots, safety helmet, hearing protection and other appropriate safety clothing and equipment as required.
- 5.3 (**Council Inductions**) A Council induction card does not replace the requirement for a general construction induction training card. A Council induction card will not be issued until all required evidence for the particular member of Supplier Personnel has been received, including and not limited to, drivers licences, equipment competencies and traffic management qualifcations. The Principal induction is valid for a 1 year period and must be renewed after this time.
- 5.4 (**Supplier's duty**) The Supplier and its Personnel have a duty to ensure the health and safety of workers, so far as reasonably practicable, and is required to comply with all additional work health and safety requirements. As a minimum, the Supplier must ensure that:
  - (a) all Personnel attending at the Site carry on their person a current general construction induction training card (white card) and Council induction card, issued in the name of that member of Personnel;
  - (b) appropriate Personal Protective Equipment is worn at all times;
  - (c) all Plant and Equipment is in sound mechanical condition and, complies with all relevant safety requirements;
  - (d) the Supplier and the Supplier's Personnel have Safe Operating Procedures (SOPs) for all plant supplied, specifically:
    - (i) risk of falls and appropriate height safety gear;
    - (ii) work on or adjacent to a road; and
    - (iii) restriction of access to the area around the Plant (if required);
  - (e) all Personnel working on, or adjacent to, a road, have training or certification in Working in Proximity to Traffic (formerly Level 1 Traffic Management);
  - (f) it has in place, and that its Personnel are aware of and comply with, process and procedures for reporting of any accidents, incidents or near misses incurred as a result of performing works on the Site;

### Scope



- (g) all Plant and Equipment, where required, is fitted with appropriate roof mounted amber flashing lights and other relevant safety Equipment; and
- (h) the Supplier's Personnel use only safe working methods and utilise Personal Protective Equipment, flashing lights and traffic control devices as necessary..
- 5.5 (Extra Personnel) The Supplier must not provide any Extra Personnel to the *Principal* unless it is appropriately registered under the *Labour Hire Licensing Act 2017* (Qld). The Supplier must not engage any supplier, or permit any person to, provide labour hire unless that person is registered under the *Labour Hire Licensing Act 2017* (Qld).
- 5.6 (**Subcontractors**) The Supplier must ensure that all subcontractors engaged by the Supplier to provide any Services under the Contract, to the extent relevant to their part of the Services, comply with all requirements of the Contract, relevant Work Order and the Scope, including by effecting and maintaining all of the insurances which the Contract or the relevant Work Order requires the Supplier to effect and maintain.
- 5.7 (Suitability of Personnel) The Supplier must, within 24 hours of a request by the Principal, provide current copies of all Supporting Documents and any other evidence requested by the Principal to ensure that Supplier's Personnel complies with the requirements of the Contract and relevant Work Order. The Principal may also, at any time during the Hire Period assess the performance of any Personnel, including the timeliness of attendance, skills and productivity of the Personnel, attention to work place health and safety, documentation completion and ability to work effectively with others. In addition to the Principal's rights under clause 12.6 of the General Conditions, the Principal may direct the removal of any Personnel that the Principal reasonably considers does not meet the Principal's reasonable expectations. The Supplier is not entitled to claim any Hire Charges for any Personnel during any time for which that Personnel does not comply with the requirements of the Contract.
- 5.8 (Relationship between Principal and Supplier's Personnel) No contractual relationship will exist between the Principal and any Personnel provided by the Supplier and such Personnel are not entitled to any benefit from the Principal that is usually attributable to an employee. In respect of the Personnel provided by the Supplier, the Supplier is solely responsible for, must solely bear and indemnifies the Principal against:
  - (a) the cost of payment to the Personnel of remuneration benefits including salaries and wages, annual leave, sick leave, superannuation, worker's compensation insurance premiums, long service leave and all other benefits to which any of them may be entitled under any contract of service, or contract for service with the Supplier or under any award, industrial instrument, statute or common law;
  - (b) the payment of taxes and duties in respect of such remuneration and benefit;
  - (c) compliance with, and costs of compliance with requirements of law with respect to the Supplier's employees or agents; and
  - (d) the maintenance, and the cost, of obtaining appropriate workers' compensation policies to provide coverage for the Personnel.

Nothing in the Contract shall be taken to prevent the Principal from making an offer of employment to, and employing, any Personnel provided by the Supplier under the Contract and the Principal shall not be liable upon any Claim by the Supplier in connection with such employment.

- 5.9 (**Daily Dockets**) The Supplier **must at the end of EACH DAY**, supply the Principal with Daily Dockets counter-signed by the Principal's Representative. The Daily Dockets must accurately, clearly and legibly identify the following:
  - (a) Supplier name;
  - (b) Contractors Personnel's name;





- (c) The activies being undertaken during the applicable time period (as advised to the Supplier by the Principal);
- (d) the times of operation (in 24 hour time format):
- (e) the times for which meal or other rest breaks were taken which, shall be shown as either:
  - (i) a deduction from the total hours; or
  - (ii) if the Principal directed the Personnel to, and the Personnel did, work through a meal or other rest break, as 'No break required to work through';

For clarity, if the Daily Docket does not detail a break or contain the notation under clause 5.9(e)(ii) above then the Principal shall deduct half an hour from the times shown in clause 5.99(d).

- (f) a subtotal for the amount of hours of operation of each person, including start time, finish time, time off for breaks and the total time worked (rounded to the nearest quarter hour) in 24 hour time formal;
- (g) the total amount of hours for that day (both Day Rates and After Hour Rates if any);
- (h) the Principal's approved Work Order number applicable to the Hire Period; and
- (i) any change to the Hire Period notified by the Principal's Representative under clause 3.1(b).
- 5.10 (Incomplete or inaccurate Daily Dockets) If the Supplier or its Personnel provides a daily docket that does not contain the information required by clause 5.9 or which contains information which is inaccurate, the Principal's Representative may refuse to sign the daily docket and direct the employee back to the Supplier to obtain the required and correct information.
- 5.11 (**Principal's rights on failure to comply**) If at any time during a Hire Period the Principal is of the opinion (acting reasonably) that any personnel does not comply with the requirements of the Contract (irrespective of the cause of the non-compliance) or the Supplier fails to comply with a request by the Principal under clause 5.1, then the Principal may (without limiting its other rights) at its absolute discretion do any one or more of the following:
  - (a) direct that the personnel cease operating until the Supporting Documentation is provided (as the case may be);
  - (b) direct a Variation omitting the specified personnel and, in the Principal's absolute discretion:
    - (i) direct the Supplier to provide equivalent/suitably qualified replacement personnel at the Supplier's expense (if the Supplier has replacement personnel available);
    - (ii) supply replacement personnel itself; or
    - (iii) engage another supplier to supply replacement personnel.
- 5.12 (**Costs**) Unless the non-compliance of particular Contractor personnel is caused by the negligent act or omission or Wilful Misconduct of the Principal or its Personnel, the Supplier shall not be entitled to any payment:
  - (a) in connection with the Supplier's compliance with clause 5.2;

### Scope



### 6. WORK HEALTH AND SAFETY

- 6.1 (Acknowledgement and compliance with law) In addition to the requirements relating to safety stated elsewhere in the Contract, the Supplier must comply with and acknowledges that it is aware of and understands the obligations of the Supplier at law relating to WHS including under:
  - (a) the Work Health and Safety Act 2011 (Qld);
  - (b) the Work Health and Safety Regulation 2011 (Qld); and
  - (c) the Code of Practice 2021,

to the extent that they are relevant to the Services. Nothing in the Contract is intended to reduce or limit such other obligations and none of those other obligations shall be taken to reduce or limit the Supplier's obligations under the Contract.

- 6.2 (**PPE**) The Supplier must comply with the following Personal Protective Equipment (PPE):
  - (a) all employees carrying out work must have undergone a general industry site safety induction;
  - (b) high visibility vests that comply with the Australian Standard 'High visibility safety garments - Garments for high risk applications AS4602.1' as may be amended or replaced from to time, long sleeved shirts, long trousers and broad brim hats must be worn when the Supplier is working outdoors for sun and UV protection.
- 6.3 (Safety Audits) The Principal may also conduct random safety or performance audits of the Supplier's services to ensure ongoing compliance. The Principal may also direct the Supplier to cease work if, in the Principal's opinion, the Services are being conducted in an unsafe or dangerous manner. If the Principal gives such a direction, the Principal is not liable for time lost or any loss or costs incurred by the Supplier.
- 6.4 (**Prohibited Substances**) The Supplier's Personnel must not be under the influence of or be in possession of, alcohol, drugs or other prohibited substances whilst performing the Services. Alcohol and prohibited substances must not be consumed by the Supplier, on or prior to entering any the Principal facility or when returning from meal breaks.
- 6.5 (Random Drug and Alcohol Testing) All of the Supplier's employees and subcontractors are subject to compulsory random Drug and Alcohol sample testing. The Principal may immediately suspend the Services in whole or part if any of the Supplier's Personnel fails to submit to a test under this clause or returns a positive test result
- 6.6 (Working in Proximity to Traffic) The Supplier is required to provide technical training and certification for all personnel working on, or adjacent to, a road, specifically as a minimum mandatory requirement <u>Working in Proximity to Traffic Awareness Part 1</u> (formerly Level 1 Traffic Management) and Part 2. This training is required to enhance the worker's ability to identify hazards at work sites, as well as to confirm if personnel responsible for selecting and implementing works protection methods have followed the necessary process to keep workers safe. Depending on the work to be performed the Principal may also require the Supplier to provide additional technical training and certification for Operators to a level higher than of 'Working in Proximity to Traffic Awareness Part, such requirements shall be identified as part of the relevant Work Order.

### 7. ENVIRONMENTAL RESPONSIBILITY

7.1 (General Environmental duty) Under the *Environmental Protection Act 1994* (Qld), the Supplier and its Personnel have a general environmental duty to take all reasonable steps to prevent or minimise environmental harm. The Supplier or its Personnel who supply Plant and Equipment with an Operator to the Principal are bound by this duty and are liable to prosecution for failure to meet the requirements of the *Environmental Protection Act 1994* (Qld).





#### 7.2 (**Supplier's general obligations**) The Supplier must ensure that:

- the Plant and Equipment is regularly maintained and inspected to minimise risk of the Plant and Equipment failure leading to environmental harm, such as oil or fuel leaks, excessive noise or emissions;
- (b) all Personnel are aware of responsibilities under the *Environmental Protection Act 1994* (Qld) and site-specific environmental requirements. This should include:
  - (i) training in environmental awareness;
  - (ii) knowledge of environmental incident reporting procedures;
  - (iii) knowledge of and training in appropriate action to be undertaken to minimise environmental harm; and
  - (iv) provision of equipment to minimise environmental harm, e.g. spill kits (the Supplier must have adequate provision for the clean-up of oil spills).
- 7.3 (Control of Prohibited and Restricted Matter Biosecurity Risks) Under the *Biosecurity Act* 2014 and the *Biosecurity Regulation 2016* (Qld) the Supplier and its employees and subcontractors have a general biosecurity obligation to take all reasonable and practical measures to prevent or minimise biosecurity risks. A biosecurity risk exists when dealing with any pest, disease or contaminant, or with something that could carry one of these e.g. plants, soils, equipment known as 'carriers'. The Supplier must comply and cause its Personnel to undertake those obligations to comply with the requirements of the *Biosecurity Act 2014* (Qld) and regulation.
- 7.4 (**Preventing spread of biosecurity risks**) The Supplier must prevent the transmission or spread of animal and plant diseases and pests by engaging in vehicle hygiene practices that are congruent with the Principal's protocols for the reduction / elimination of biosecurity risk. The Supplier must ensure that all Plant and Equipment is free from matter that may present a biosecurity risk before the Plant enters the Site and on leaving the Site
- 7.5 (Plant and Equipment wash down) The Supplier must engage in Plant and Equipment cleandown practices, particularly in conditions or sites that contain mud, contaminated soils and weedinfested areas. The Supplier will be responsible for ensuring that all Plant and Equipment is inspected and clean-down practices are implemented before removal of Plant and Equipment from the Site. For a Hire Period of more than four (4) weeks, the Principal may have clean-down procedures and facilities available on Site and water will be supplied to the Supplier at no charge. The Supplier must seek clarification with site supervisors if uncertain.

### Scope



### 8. CULTURAL HERITAGE

8.1 Although it is not expected that the Services will reveal any cultural heritage find, the Supplier's attention is drawn to the requirements of the *Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003, Torres Strait Islander Cultural Heritage Act 2003* (Qld) and the *Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Heritage Protection Act 1984* (Cth), with which the Supplier shall comply in relation to the Services. The Supplier shall ensure that all his own Personnel, including staff and subcontractors' staff are trained during site induction procedures to be aware of cultural heritage issues. If cultural heritage assets are encountered on the Site, the Supplier shall cease all work in that area, notify the Principal and take appropriate actions as directed by the Principal.

### 9. MEETINGS, CONDUCT AND PERFORMANCE

- 9.1 (Meetings and Communication) The Supplier's Representative is required to meet with the Principal's Representatives at regular scheduled intervals or other times as requested, for reporting on, but not limited to:
  - (a) Performance, quality standards and levels of service;
  - (b) Safety issues and recommendations; and/or
  - (c) Invoicing and payment issues.
- 9.2 (**Performance Monitoring**) The Services are to be carried out in accordance with the Contract, the relevant Work Order and to the complete satisfaction of the Principal. The Supplier's performance may be measured through periodic inspections. At any time during the Supplier's performance of the Contract, the Principal may carry out inspections, monitoring, audits or quality checks on the Supplier's workmanship and performance of services. This monitoring activity may potentially identify any problems with performance, delivery requirements, or any other issues such as non-compliance with terms and conditions of this Scope and Contract.
- 9.3 (**Continuous Improvement Opportunity**) In addition to the Principal's rights under clause 29 of the General Conditions, the Principal may at any time during the Term, record details of any performance issues, quality issues or non-conformance identified by the Principal and provide a Continuous Improvement Opportunity Notice (CION) to the Supplier for a formal response and remedy, where required.

A Continuous Improvement Opportunity Notice shall:

- (a) be in writing;
- (b) identify the performance issue, quality issue or non-conformance;
- (c) require the Supplier to provide, within a reasonable time, a written response to the notice, including details of the actions which the Supplier proposes to take to prevent such issues or non-conformance from occurring in the future.

Responses to any CION will be reviewed by the Principal's Representative, recorded and considered in any future performance review. The Principal may at any time and from time to time, in its absolute discretion, review conduct a review of the Supplier's performance. The Principal's Representative will be responsible for reviewing the standard of the Supplier's work, quality of workmanship and compliance.

### 10. SERVICE LEVELS

10.1 (**Definitions**) In this clause

Scope



- (a) **Review Period** means the period stated in clause 10.9 below in which the performance of the Supplier against a Service Level is to be reviewed;
- (b) **Service Levels** means the service level(s) or key performance indicator(s) (if any) described as such in clause 10.9 below.
- 10.2 (**Guarantee**) The Supplier must, and guarantees that it will, in providing the Services and carrying out its other obligations under the Contract, achieve or exceed all Service Levels in every Review Period.
- 10.3 (**Measuring performance**) The Principal will review the performance of the Supplier against the Service Levels at the times in clause 10.9 below, and otherwise on the giving of reasonable notice. The Principal may direct the Supplier to provide a written explanation for its performance against any Service Level.
- 10.4 (**Performance liquidated damages**) If the Supplier has failed to meet any Service Level, the Supplier shall be indebted to the Principal for performance liquidated damages calculated in accordance with clause 10.9.
- 10.5 (**Recovery of liquidated damages**) The Principal may deduct such performance liquidated damages from moneys otherwise owing to the Supplier to recover the performance liquidated damages. The Parties agree that the performance liquidated damages are an agreed genuine preestimate of the Principal's loss if the Supplier breaches its obligations under the Contract.
- 10.6 (**General damages**) If, for any reason, the Principal's entitlement to performance liquidated damages is found to be void, voidable or otherwise unenforceable (in whole or part), or the Principal is otherwise unable to recover the whole of the performance liquidated damages from the Supplier, the Supplier shall be liable to the Principal for any loss, damage, cost or expense suffered or incurred by the Principal as a result of the Supplier failing to achieve the Service Levels.
- 10.7 (**Review of Service Levels**) The representatives of the Parties may review the Service Levels from time to time and amend them in any way including by adding additional Service Levels, removing or amending Service Levels, amending the method of measuring performance or the consequence of achieving or failing to achieve a Service Level.
- 10.8 (**Substantial breach**) Failing to achieve or exceed:
  - (a) the same Service Level for three consecutive Review Periods, even though the Supplier may have achieved or exceeded some or all of the other Service Levels for those same Review Periods; or
  - (b) any two Service Levels for two consecutive Review Periods,

shall constitute a substantial breach of the Contract.

10.9	(Service Levels) The Service Levels are:
------	------------------------------------------

Type of Service	Description of Works	Specific Requirements
Air- conditioning, refrigeration	Commercial air- conditioning (e.g. administration centres, depot office, CRC and Library)	The minimum requirement Council is seeking is the successful completion of any of the following courses:
and		an apprenticeship in refrigeration and air-conditioning;
mechanical	al Installation and servicing of air- conditioners	Certificate III in Engineering (Mechanical-Refrigeration and Air Conditioning) MEM30298;



	Scheduled maintenance of air- conditioners	Certificate III in Electrotechnology (Refrigeration and Air Conditioning) UTE30999; Or successful completion of a course the QBCC considers is at least equivalent to the course mentioned in above paragraph. <b>Licence</b> Refrigeration, air-conditioning and mechanical services including limited design. Refrigeration, air-conditioning and mechanical services including unlimited design
Asbestos removal – 'A' class and 'B' class	Removal of loose (friable) asbestos Removal of 10m <sup>2</sup> or more of bonded asbestos	Licence In accordance with the licensing issued by Fair and Safe Work Queensland
	Building/replacement of stairs/ramps	The Contractor shall ensure that it has the appropriate licences issued by the QBCC to perform the Services covered by the Deed of Agreement and the Tender Response and must provide evidence to the satisfaction of the Council.
	Repairs to existing facilities	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out Building and Cabinetry Services hold the following licences as a minimum to carry out the Services:
	Repairs/replacement of windows/doors	Builder – Low Rise Licence issued by the QBCC
	Re-alignment of doors for locks	Trade Contractor, Carpentry Licence issued by the QBCC for Small Scale Works not requiring the coordination of other trades
	General carpentry	It is desirable that contractors hold a non-friable (bonded) asbestos – Class B Asbestos removal licence.
Building	Construct new facilities and structures	All persons who perform work must also have completed either the nationally recognised General Safety Induction – white card course code – CPCCOHS1001A or the "Course in General Safety Induction (Construction Industry)" blue card course code – 30215QLD.
	Demolition of structures as required	Demolition work requires attainment of demolition licence through Workplace Health & Safety Queensland:
		https://www.worksafe.qld.gov.au/licensing-and- registrations/work-health-and-safety-licences/what-licence-do-i- need/demolition Where the Contractor also operates plant, copies of licences /certifications are to be provided to Council, including as part of the Tender Response.
Cabinetmakin g		Trade Contractor, Carpentry Licence issued by the QBCC for small scale works not requiring the coordination of other trades



	SHIRE
Repairs/replacement/ general maintenance	All persons who perform work must also have completed either the nationally recognised General Safety Induction – white card course code – CPCCOHS1001A or the "Course in General Safety Induction (Construction Industry)" blue card course code – 30215QLD.
General Cleaning and	The contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged will have the appropriate training.
Sile Clearis	The contractor shall ensure that all times that they have the appropriate equipment and cleaning products/materials
General concreting Concrete cutting, drilling and grinding Concrete finishing	The Contractor shall ensure that it has the appropriate licence (Concreting) issued by the QBCC to perform the services covered by and the Tender Response and must provide evidence to the satisfaction of the Council.
Switchboards and associated faults	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out Electrical Services covered by this Tender shall hold the following licence/s as a minimum to carry out the Services:
Power distribution equipment	Trade Contractor, Electrical Licence issued by the Department of Justice & Attorney-General;
Lighting	Unrestricted Electrical Contractor's licence issued by the Queensland Electrical Safety Office.
Hot water systems Electrical equipment/appliances	Minimum Requirements: The minimum standards for Electrical Services including but not limited to installation, wiring, earthing, socket outlets, switches, appliances, accessories, luminaries and communal lighting shall be in accordance with the requirements of the current editions of:
Air conditioning plant	AS/NZS 3000:2007 Electrical Installations (known as the Australian / New Zealand Wiring Rules);
Cold-rooms	AS/NZS 3008.1.1:2009 Electrical Installations – Selection of Cables;
Swimming pool	Electricity Safety Act and Regulations;
Scheduled generator maintenance	All relevant Electrical Codes of Practice and Electrical Safety Notices;
Council equipment Cleaning and Servicing of Solar Panel	Any other relevant Acts, Regulations, Codes (including Department Standards) pertaining to services being requested.
Pools-	Epoxy Floor, flooring
expansion joints) Walk ways(safety)	A QBCC licence is required :
Filtration units Bunds Concrete repairs Manholes	Unless an exemption applies, a QBCC contractor's licence is required to carry out or undertake to carry out the construction, erection, renovation, alteration, extension, improvement or repair of epoxy floors if the value of the work exceeds \$3,300 (including the cost of materials).
	general maintenance General Cleaning and Site Cleans General concreting Concrete cutting, drilling and grinding Concrete finishing Switchboards and associated faults Power distribution equipment Lighting Hot water systems Electrical equipment/appliances Electrical equipment/appliances Air conditioning plant Cold-rooms Swimming pool pumps & equipment Scheduled generator maintenance Test & tag of portable Council equipment Cleaning and Servicing of Solar Panel Pools- (Recoating, reseal expansion joints) Walk ways(safety) Filtration units Bunds Concrete repairs



		Notes
		Under section 42 of the QBCC Act it is an offence carry out or undertake to carry out building work without a contractor's licence of the appropriate class, unless the work is exempted in schedule 1A of the Act.
		Subject to exceptions prescribed in schedule 1 of the QBCC Regulation, building work is defined in the QBCC Act to include the erection, construction, improvement, repair or alteration of building, including a fixed structure.
		Undertaking to carry out building work includes contracting to carry out the work, submitting a tender to carry out the work, making an offer to carry out the work.
	Servicing of –	QBCC Licence
Fire maintenance servicing	Smoke detectors Emergency lighting Fire control panels	Fire protection work for a building or part of building includes:
	Fire control panels Pumps and hydrants Fire hose and extinguishers Fire doors Block plans Evacuation Diagrams Emergency Evacuation plans	<ul> <li>installing, restoring, repairing or maintaining of a fire protection system</li> <li>preparing certificates, statements or records relating to the fire protection system or stating whether a fire protection system meets a standard, requirement or specification</li> <li>designing a fire protection system</li> <li>developing, approving or certifying of emergency evacuation procedures for a controlled evacuation during a fire emergency</li> <li>formulating or providing alternative solutions relating to fire safety</li> <li>Inspecting or investigating fire safety is compliant with the <i>Building Act 1975</i> or the Building Code of Australia (this also includes providing advice or reporting about fire safety).</li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>a fire protection occupational licence issued under the QBCC Act that authorizes the licensee to personally carry out the work (as an employee or sub-trade contractor only);</li> <li>a contractor's licence issued under the QBCC Act that authorizes the licensee to personally carry out the work (under the contract for a builder or consumer); or</li> <li>a licence, registration or authorization under an Act, other than the QBCC Act, that authorizes the person to personally supervise or carry out the work (for example, an occupational licence issued under the <i>Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002</i> or the <i>Electrical Safety Act 2002</i>).</li> </ul>



Fencing	Council facilities ( waste facilities sewerage treatment plants, airports, depots and housing)	Licences No requirements for work below the threshold of QBCC requirements (Experience, certificate of attainment, or supervision to attest to the quality of the product required (proof of competency). QBCC Licence where applicable.
	Removal & disposal of existing floor coverings	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out Floor Coverings and/or Wall Tiles Services hold the following minimum requirements to carry out the Services:
Floor Coverings Seamless	Installation of floor coverings including carpet, tiles. Linoleum and floating timber floors	Trade qualification relevant to work being performed for example Certificate III in Floor Covering and Finishing or Certificate III in Wall and Floor Tiling or equivalent.
flooring and Tiling	Installation of tiles Repair of tiles	Or Experience attainment or supervision to attest to the quality of
	Repair to existing floor coverings	the product. Licences
	Sanding/refurbishme nt of timber floors	Floor finishing and covering (Hard Sector)
		Preparation and Installation of seamless flooring (QBCC lisc.)
	Minor repairs and maintenance	The Contractor shall ensure work is performed in accordance with Queensland Building and Construction Commission regulations - work has to have a value of no more than \$3,300, not be electrical or plumbing work and not require an occupational licence.
Handy Work	Cleaning of Guttering	All persons who perform work must also have completed either the nationally recognised General Safety Induction – white card course code – CPCCOHS1001A or the "Course in General Safety Induction (Construction Industry)" blue card course code – 30215QLD.
	Repairs/replacement of screens Removal of rubbish and disposal of unwanted items	
Hydraulic Maintenance and Servicing	Servicing and Maintenance of Council Equipment.	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out these Services are duly qualified. Requirements will for maintenance, repairs and servicing of fixed plant such as pumps, engines, hydraulic and pneumatic
Landscaping	Laying of turf, top soiling, installation of mulch,	driven machines. No Licence required, unless structural landscaping is part of the project then licence is required
Locksmith	Replacement of lock types such as entrance sets, night latch or deadlocks	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out Locksmith Services hold the following licence as a minimum to carry out the Services:



	Replacement of cylinders, including provision of two keys, to locks fitted to external doors such as front door, rear door and security doors Replacement of cylinders, including provision of two keys, to doors of garages, mailboxes and other external lockable doors Replacement of cylinders to window locks, including provision of a minimum of one key per lock Clearly identifying all keys with the property address attached Replacement of complete locks where non-cylinder type locks are installed including two keys Cutting and providing keys General lock maintenance	A security equipment installer licence issued by the Office of Fair Trading is a mandatory requirement. More info at http://www.qld.gov.au/law/laws-regulated-industries-and- accountability/queensland-laws-and-regulations/regulated- industries-and-licensing/regulated-industries-licensing-and- legislation/security-industry-regulation/get-a-security- licence/security-technical-licence/apply-for-a-security- equipment-installer-licence/ Application form available at: 
--	-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------	----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



1	1	
		All persons who perform work must have successfully completed either the nationally recognised General Safety Induction - white card course code - CPCCOHS1001A) or the "Course in General Safety Induction (Construction Industry)" - blue card course code – 30215QLD.
Paving/Brickl aying	Pathways / footpaths Public spaces Courtyards	The Contractor shall ensure that it has the appropriate licence (Brick and Segmental Paving) issued by the QBCC to perform the Services covered by the Tender Response and must provide evidence to the satisfaction of the Council.
Pest Control	Intermittent control of infestations Weed Control Rodent Control Bird Control Reptile Removal Feral Animal	The Contractor shall ensure that it has the appropriate licence (Pest Management) issued by Qld Health and abide by the PMA 2001 and PMR 2003 to perform the Services covered by the Tender Response and must provide evidence to the satisfaction of the Council.
Plastering	Plastering of new work such as partitions, panels, walls and decorative features Repairs and maintenance of existing walls	The Contractor shall ensure that it has the appropriate licence (Plastering - Drywall) issued by the QBCC to perform the Services and must provide evidence to the satisfaction of the Council.
	Irrigation	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out Plumbing Services hold the following current licences as a minimum to carry out the Services:
	Taps	Trade Contractor, Plumbing and Drainage Licence
	Blocked drains	Plumbing and Drainage Licence issued by the Plumbing Industry Council (PIC) or QBCC
	Gutters and downpipes	General Safety Induction - white card course code – CPCCOHS1001A or the "Course in General Safety Induction (Construction Industry)" - blue card course code – 30215QLD.
Plumbing	On-site domestic waste water management systems	Tenderers are to advise Council regarding their plumbing qualifications and endorsements.
Flumbing	Roofing and flashing	Licences
	Installation, replacement, repair and maintenance hot water systems and tempering valves	Plumber
	Any other plumbing and drainage work as required	Drainer
		Restricted Water Plumber (RWP) – Irrigation
		Restricted Drainer (RD) – Onsite Sewerage Facility
		RWP – Water and Sanitary
	J	Endorsements



		Backflow prevention * Expiry date (equipment) Thermostatic mixing valve Onsite sewerage facility * Commercial and industrial Domestic and residential * Solar and heat pump * (* denotes more frequent use)
Liquid Waste Removal	Septic system pump out	The Contractor must be equipped to provide the Service and comply with all environmental licences and requirements.
Signage	Some or all aspects of custom signage (e.g. design, manufacture, and/or installation of custom signage) Project specific Promotional (banners, corflute etc.) Facility	The Contractor must be equipped to be able to supply quality signage that complies with Council's Signage Style Guide.

#### 11. WORK ORDER COMPLETION

- 11.1 (Additional requirements of Work Order Completion) In addition to any requirements of Work Order Completion stated elsewhere in the Contract or the relevant Work Order, in order to achieve Work Order Completion the Supplier must complete the following requirements at the times and in the manner stated below:
  - (a) the Supplier must provide the Principal with a complete, updated and final copy of the Supplier Documents;
  - (b) where directed by the Principal to do so, the Supplier must provide a properly executed statutory declaration in the form in Schedule 2 of the Contract;
  - (c) unless otherwise directed by the Principal, the Supplier must secure the Site in a safe and proper manner and remove all of its Personnel, plant and equipment from the Site within the timescales reasonably directed by the Principal;

#### PROCUREMENT SERVICES

- 11.2 Where the Services require the Supplier to manage, conduct or otherwise participate in a Procurement Process for the engagement of a contractor or other supplier by the Principal, then the Supplier must, and must ensure that its Personnel, to the extent that it is within the control of the Supplier or its Personnel ensure that the procurement process is conducted consistently with:
  - (a) the Principal's procurement policy;
  - (b) the Local Government Act 2009 (Qld) and the Local Government Regulation 2012 (Qld);





- (c) the requirements of the request for tender or request for quotation documentation issued to tenderers;
- (d) any probity plan or evaluation plan implemented for the Procurement Process;
- (e) principles of probity; and
- (f) Good Industry Practice,

with a view to ensuring that the selected contractor or supplier is the most advantageous to the Principal having regard to the sound contracting principles in section 104 of the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld).

#### SUPERINTENDENT SERVICES

- 11.3 (**Primary obligations**) Where the Services require the Supplier or any of its Personnel to fulfil the role and functions of the Superintendent or similar under a Construction Contract, the Supplier must, and must ensure that its Personnel, in doing so:
  - (a) comply with and act consistently with any requirements of the Construction Contract as to the manner in which those roles and functions are to be fulfilled including (where applicable) by:
    - (i) giving any directions, documents or notices required or permitted to be given by the superintendent under the Construction Contract; and
    - (ii) assessing all claims made under the Construction Contract,

in accordance with the requirements of the Construction Contract for the giving of such directions, documents and notices and the making of such assessments;

- (b) use its or their reasonable endeavours to ensure that the Construction Contractor complies with the Construction Contract, including by exercising the available rights and powers of the superintendent under the Contract;
- (c) keep the Principal fully informed of all relevant matters under the Construction Contract;
- (d) unless and then only to the extent (if any) that to do so would be inconsistent with the Construction Contract:
  - (i) act as the Principal's agent;
  - (ii) act in the best interests of the Principal;
  - (iii) seek and act in accordance with the instructions of the Principal; and
  - (iv) do all other things necessary to protect the Principal's rights and interests under the Construction Contract.
- 11.4 (**No waiver or limitation**) The Supplier must not, and must ensure that its Personnel do not, do or omit to do anything where that act or omission could operate so as to waive or limit the rights of the Principal under or in connection with the Construction Contract or otherwise prevent the Principal from exercising any right under or in connection with the Construction Contract.

#### 11.5 (Security of payments) The Supplier:

(a) is authorised to prepare and issue payment schedules in response to any payment claims made by the Construction Contractor pursuant to the *Building Industry Fairness (Security of Payment) Act 2017* (Qld) in relation to the Construction Contract;





- (b) must take all reasonable steps to identify all documents which may constitute such payment claims and immediately provide a copy of such documents to the Principal;
- (c) if requested by the Principal, promptly give to the Principal a copy of the payment claim and any other information or documentation required by the Principal in connection with the payment claim;
- (d) must provide such other assistance as the Principal may reasonably require in connection with the payment claim and any related proceedings whether under the Act or otherwise.
- 11.6 (**Definitions**) In this clause:
  - (a) **Construction Contract** means a construction contract between the Principal and the Construction Contractor for the construction of any works the subject of the Services, and includes any construction contract specifically identified in the Contract;
  - (b) **Construction Contractor** means the contractor engaged by the Principal under the Construction Contract;
  - (c) **Superintendent** means the person appointed to fulfil the role and functions of the superintendent pursuant to a Construction Contract, and includes a superintendent's representative.

#### BIOSECURITY MANAGEMENT

- 1.1 (Definitions) In this clause:
  - (a) a **biosecurity risk** is the risk that exists when dealing with:
    - (i) any pest, disease, or contaminant (including plants, seeds, spores, eggs, vertebrate and invertebrate pest); or
    - (ii) something that could carry a pest, disease or contaminant (e.g. animals, plants, soil, equipment and water—known as 'carriers').
  - (b) a potential biosecurity risk is a biosecurity risk that does not currently occur at the Site but which has the capacity to occur at the Site. It may be present but not visible or may be introduced during the performance of the Supplier's obligations. It includes risks associated with carriers and the movement and sourcing of materials, vehicles, and machinery; and the disturbance, import or export of soils.
  - (c) a **known biosecurity risk** is a biosecurity risk that is currently recorded within the footprint or proximity of the Site which is:
    - (i) identified within biosecurity plans or programs active for the area;
    - (ii) identified during the performance of the Supplier's obligations; or
    - (iii) otherwise identified by the Principal.
- 1.2 (**Preparation of plan**) The Supplier shall prepare a biosecurity risk management plan (**BRMP**) to ensure reasonable and practical steps are taken to address biosecurity risks and that the Supplier meets its general biosecurity obligation (as that term is used in the *Biosecurity Act 2014* (Qld). The primary purpose of the BRMP is to address both potential biosecurity risks and known biosecurity risks.
- 1.3 (**Training**) The Supplier shall ensure that all relevant Personnel are trained to be aware of biosecurity risks.



1.4 (**Notice of breach or risk**) If at any time during the performance of the Supplier's obligations a breach of the BRMP or a significant biosecurity risk is identified, then the Supplier must immediately contact the Principal for direction.

#### QLEAVE

1.1 (QLeave) The Supplier must comply with obligations under the *Contract Cleaning Industry* (*Portable Long Service Leave*) *Act 2005* (Qld) including by paying all levies payable pursuant to that Act and registering with QLeave.

#### PRINCIPAL SUPPLIED INFORMATION AND OTHER INVESTIGATIONS

- 1.2 (**Definitions**) In this clause "**Principal Supplied Information**" means any information relating to the Contract which does not form part of the Contract but which is or has been provided or made available by or on behalf of the Principal to the Supplier in any form, whether such information is made available before or after the date of the Contract.
- 1.3 (Acknowledgement and agreement by Supplier) The Supplier acknowledges and agrees that:
  - (a) the Principal gives no warranty and makes no representation in respect of this Contract. Without limiting this, the Principal gives no warranty and makes no representation:
    - (i) that the Principal Supplied Information is accurate, adequate or complete; and
    - (ii) as to the physical condition, suitability or other characteristics of the Site;
  - (b) the Supplier has not relied and will not rely on the Principal Supplied Information unless and until the Supplier has independently verified the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of that information;
  - (c) the Supplier:
    - (i) has carefully, thoroughly and critically reviewed, examined, investigated, inspected and checked the Principal Supplied Information and the Site and undertaken all other necessary enquiries and investigations to satisfy itself of the suitability of the Site to enable the Supplier to comply with its obligations under this Contract and of any other logistical considerations, risks, contingencies and other circumstances which could have an effect on the cost of carrying out and completing Services or compliance with the Supplier's other obligations under the Contract;
    - (ii) the Supplier has made its own interpretations, deductions and conclusions from such enquiries and investigations and accepts full responsibility for those interpretations, deductions and conclusions; and
    - (iii) the Supplier, having undertaken those enquiries and investigations, accepts the risk of any inadequacy, inefficiency, deficiency or fault in the Site and that it can and will carry out and complete the Services in accordance with the Contract and comply with its other obligations under the Contract for the Price (as adjusted pursuant to the Contract); and
- 1.4 (**No liability**) The Principal shall not be liable upon any Claim by the Supplier in connection with the Principal Supplied Information or the physical condition, suitability or other characteristics of the Site.

#### MEETINGS

1.1 (**Meetings**) The Supplier must, at the following times:





(a) Meeting request depends on the principles requirement;

and when otherwise reasonably required by the Principal, meet and in good faith discuss the performance of the Supplier and/or any other matter concerning the Principal in connection with the Contract including:

- (b) the Supplier's performance of its obligations under this Contract, including the Service Level(s) (if any) identified in the Contract;
- (c) to promote safer and quieter work practices; and
- (d) improvements to efficiency of the Supplier's obligations under the Contract.
- 1.2 (**Recommendations or directions**) The Supplier must comply with any reasonable recommendations or directions given by the Principal in relation to the performance of the Supplier's obligations under the Contract. Such compliance will not release or discharge the Supplier from any liability or obligation under the Contract.

#### SERVICE RECORDS AND AUDITING

#### 11.7 (Creation) The Supplier must:

- (a) create and maintain the following:
  - (i) create and record all the service history as per job requirement and handed to principle;
- (b) create and maintain the records, reports and other documents required by the Contract and any other records, reports or documents reasonably required by the Principal in connection with the Contract; and
- (c) create any document required to be prepared under the Supplier's management plan prepared under the Contract,

#### ('Service Records').

- 11.8 **(Audit)** The Principal may at any time during the Term, on the giving of reasonable notice, audit the Supplier's compliance with the Contract or any obligation under it. The Supplier shall facilitate the audit by:
  - (a) allowing the auditors to undertake any inspections or tests;
  - (b) providing such assistance, information and access to the Site, systems and equipment and other cooperation;
  - (c) providing to the auditor with copies of, facilitating the copying by the auditor of, the Services Records and all other records, information and documentation,

reasonably required by the auditor.

If the audit reveals any non-compliance by the Supplier with its obligations under the Contract, then the costs reasonably and necessarily incurred by the Principal in conducting the audit shall be a debt due and payable by the Supplier. Otherwise, the Principal shall bear the cost of the audit.





#### PERSONAL PROPERTY SECURITIES

- 11.9 **(Definitions)** In this clause, PPS Act means the *Personal Property Securities Act 2009* (Cth). Terms used in this clause which are defined in the PPS Act have the meanings given in that Act.
- 11.10 **(Disclosure)** If this Contract contains a security interest, then each Party agrees for the purposes of section 275(6) of the PPS Act that it will not disclose information of the type referred to in section 275(1) of the PPS Act where a request is made under section 275(1) of the PPS Act in relation to this Contract or any part of it, except in circumstances where the Party is compelled by law (other than section 275(1) of the PPS Act) to make that disclosure.
- 11.11 **(Supplier's obligations)** If the Principal determines that any clause of this Contract, or a transaction contemplated by this Contract or in connection with the performance of its obligations under this Contract constitutes, or is likely to give rise to a security interest in respect of which the Principal is the security holder, then:
  - (a) the Supplier must, within the time required by the Principal, provide all assistance and cooperation requested by the Principal that the Principal determines is reasonably required to:
    - register and maintain the registration of its security interest on the personal property securities register within any applicable time limits relevant to the effectiveness of the security interest;
    - (ii) ensure that the Principal's security interest is enforceable against third parties, perfected or otherwise effective;
    - (iii) ensure that the security interest has the appropriate priority required by the Principal (including where applicable as a purchase money security interest);
    - (iv) ensure that any security interest granted temporary perfection under the PPS Act is perfected by registration or other appropriate means prior to any applicable expiry of that temporary perfection; and
    - (v) enable the Principal to register financing statements or financing change statements under the PPS Act with respect to any such security interest;
    - (vi) the Supplier waives the right to receive notice of a verification statement in relation to the registration of that security interest;
    - (vii) the Supplier shall not register or permit to be registered any other security interest in respect of the personal property that comprises the collateral in respect of that security interest other than one that has been consented to or granted by the Principal
    - (viii) the Supplier shall not cause or allow any of the Supplier's personal property to become an accession to the Principal's personal property or cause or allow the Principal's personal property to become an Accession to the Supplier's personal property without the prior consent of the Principal, and
    - (ix) the Supplier must immediately notify the Principal if any other person claims or attempts to enforce a security interest:
      - A. in the Principal's personal property, or



B. in the Supplier's personal property to the extent that that purported enforcement affects or has the potential to affect the Supplier's ability to carry out its obligations in accordance with the terms of the Contract.



# **TECHNICAL SPECIFICATION**

Register of Prequalified Suppliers (ROPS) Trade Maintenance and Associated Services

**CONTRACT NO.: T2324.46** 



# CONTENTS

1.	Background	4
2.	Term of Contract	4
3.	Summary of Activities	4
4.	General Requirements for all Trades	15
5.	Variations to Any Work	16
6.	Evidence Of Tenderer's QBCC Licensing - Relevant For Building Works Only	17
6.1	Workmanship	17
6.2	Materials	17
6.3	Hot Work	18
7.	Dealing With The Public	18
8.	Issuing Of Instructions To The Contractor	18
9.	Contractor's Working Hours And Availability	18
9.1	Core Working Hours	18
9.2	Priority Of Works	19
9.3	Call Outs For Urgent Works	19
9.4	Urgent Job Requests	19
10.	Nominated Work Location	19
11.	Pricing	19
12.	Compliance With Standards	20
13.	Purchase Order and Invoicing	20
14.	Order Of Precedence	20
15.	Principal Contractor	20
16.	Meetings	20
17.	Safe Plant & Equipment	20
18.	Information Provided By Council	21
19.	Insurance and Indemnity	21
20.	Termination of Contract	21
21.	Communication with Council	22
22.	Code of Conduct for Contractors/Subcontractors	23
22.1	Following Direction Of Management Or A Council Representative	23
22.2	2 Related Party Disclosure	23
22.3	3 Contact With Councillors	23
22.4	Contractor Not Employee	23



22.5	Gifts Or Benefits To Council Employees	23
22.6	Gifts Or Benefits To Council Contractors	23
22.7	Requirement To Report Fraud And Corruption	23
22.8	Disputes Between Contractors	23
22.9	Use Of Inappropriate Language	24
22.10	Violence and Threats	24
22.11	Use Of Council Resources	24
22.12	Relationship Of Parties	24
23.	Workplace Health And Safety	24
23.1	Legislative & Banana Shire Council Requirements	24
23.2	Risk Management	24
23.3	Safety Training	24
23.4	Health And Safety Inductions And Site Inductions	25
23.5	No Drugs And Alcohol On Site	25
23.6	Protective Clothing and Equipment	25
23.7	Incident Notification, Investigation And Reporting	25
23.8	Work Principles	26
23.9	Health and Safety Management Plan	
24.	Non-Compliance	26
25.	Compliance With Laws And Environmental Protection	27
26.	Selection Criteria	27
27.	Notification of Acceptance Etc	27
28.	Contractor Performance Assessment	27
29.	Quality Assurance System	28
30.	Non-Exclusivity of Services	28



# 1. BACKGROUND

Banana Shire is situated in Central Queensland, Australia. The Banana Shire is sparsely populated, with its population of approx. 15,742 people spread over 28,577 square kilometres, of which only 27 square kilometres is urbanised. The main population centre is the town of Biloela, with Moura and Taroom being other significant urban centres in the Shire. The region is home to many natural attractions including gorges, rivers and National Parks such as the Glebe Weir and Expedition National Park, Lake Murphy, Kroombit Tops and Mt. Scoria Conservation Parks, and Isla and Cania Gorges.

Banana Shire Council is responsible for the management and maintenance of a variety of assets and infrastructure including:-

- Water and Sewerage Treatment Plants
- Airports
- Roads
- Parks and Gardens
- Plant and Equipment
- Swimming Pools
- Sporting Facilities
- Playgrounds
- Heritage and Cultural Facilities
- Bridges
- Libraries
- Entertainment Venues and Facilities
- Animal Pounds
- Various Other Buildings and Facilities

# 2. TERM OF CONTRACT

The initial term of this Contract shall begin on the contract commencement date as determined by a Council Representative and the status of the contract will be awarded for a period of one year with a possible 6 month extension.

If the Contractors business is sold or transferred to another entity the submission cannot be transferred and will be null and void.

# 3. SUMMARY OF ACTIVITIES

This arrangement is NOT intended for; any major works, or cover on-call rosters, staff shortages or **labour hire**. All materials and equipment proposed to be used in the delivery of Services set out in the tender shall be of good condition and quality and to the satisfaction of Council's Authorised representative.

Contractors are required to nominate the Trade Services on Tender Schedule of Trade Services which they can provide under this agreement from the services listed below:



Type of Service	Description of Works	Specific Requirements
	Commercial air-conditioning (e.g. administration centres, depot office, CRC and Library)	The minimum requirement Council is seeking is the successful completion of any of the following courses:
		an apprenticeship in refrigeration and air-conditioning;
	Installation and servicing of air- conditioners	Certificate III in Engineering (Mechanical-Refrigeration and Air Conditioning) MEM30298;
		Certificate III in Electrotechnology (Refrigeration and Air Conditioning) UTE30999;
Air-conditioning, refrigeration and	Scheduled maintenance of air- conditioners	Or
mechanical		successful completion of a course the QBCC considers is at least equivalent to the course mentioned in above paragraph.
		Licence
		Refrigeration, air-conditioning and mechanical services including limited design.
		Refrigeration, air-conditioning and mechanical services including unlimited design
		Licence
Asbestos removal – 'A' class and 'B' class	Removal of loose (friable) asbestos	
	Removal of 10m <sup>2</sup> or more of bonded asbestos	In accordance with the licensing issued by Fair and Safe Work Queensland
Building	Building/replacement of stairs/ramps	The Contractor shall ensure that it has the appropriate licences issued by the QBCC to perform the Services covered by the Deed of Agreement and the Tender Response and must provide evidence to the satisfaction of the Council.



	Repairs to existing facilities	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out Building and Cabinetry Services hold the following licences as a minimum to carry out the Services:
	Repairs/replacement of windows/doors	Builder – Low Rise Licence issued by the QBCC
	Re-alignment of doors for locks	Trade Contractor, Carpentry Licence issued by the QBCC for Small Scale Works not requiring the coordination of other trades
	General carpentry	It is desirable that contractors hold a non-friable (bonded) asbestos – Class B Asbestos removal licence.
	Construct new facilities and structures	All persons who perform work must also have completed either the nationally recognised General Safety Induction –white card course code – CPCCOHS1001A or the "Course in General Safety Induction (Construction Industry)" blue card course code – 30215QLD.
	Demolition of structures as required	Demolition work requires attainment of demolition licence through Workplace Health & Safety Queensland:
		https://www.worksafe.qld.gov.au/licensing-and-registrations/work-health-and-safety- licences/what-licence-do-i-need/demolition
		Where the Contractor also operates plant, copies of licences /certifications are to be provided to Council, including as part of the Tender Response.
		Trade Contractor, Carpentry Licence issued by the QBCC for small scale works not requiring the coordination of other trades
Cabinetmaking	Repairs/replacement/general maintenance	All persons who perform work must also have completed either the nationally recognised General Safety Induction –white card course code – CPCCOHS1001A or the "Course in General Safety Induction (Construction Industry)" blue card course code – 30215QLD.
Cleaners	General Cleaning and Site Cleans	The contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged will have the appropriate training.



		The contractor shall ensure that all times that they have the appropriate equipment and cleaning products/materials
Concreting	General concreting Concrete cutting, drilling and grinding Concrete finishing	The Contractor shall ensure that it has the appropriate licence (Concreting) issued by the QBCC to perform the services covered by and the Tender Response and must provide evidence to the satisfaction of the Council.
	Switchboards and associated faults	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out Electrical Services covered by this Tender shall hold the following licence/s as a minimum to carry out the Services:
	Power distribution equipment	Trade Contractor, Electrical Licence issued by the Department of Justice & Attorney-General;
	Lighting	Unrestricted Electrical Contractor's licence issued by the Queensland Electrical Safety Office.
	Hot water systems	Minimum Requirements:
Electrical	Electrical equipment/appliances	The minimum standards for Electrical Services including but not limited to installation, wiring, earthing, socket outlets, switches, appliances, accessories, luminaries and communal lighting shall be in accordance with the requirements of the current editions of:
	Air conditioning plant	AS/NZS 3000:2007 Electrical Installations (known as the Australian / New Zealand Wiring Rules);
	Cold-rooms	AS/NZS 3008.1.1:2009 Electrical Installations – Selection of Cables;
	Swimming pool pumps & equipment	Electricity Safety Act and Regulations;
	Scheduled generator maintenance	All relevant Electrical Codes of Practice and Electrical Safety Notices;
	Test & tag of portable Council equipment	
	Cleaning and Servicing of Solar Panel	Any other relevant Acts, Regulations, Codes (including Department Standards) pertaining to services being requested.



Epoxy works	Pools- (Recoating, reseal expansion joints) Walk ways(safety) Filtration units Bunds Concrete repairs Manholes	<ul> <li>Epoxy Floor, flooring</li> <li>A QBCC licence is required :</li> <li>Unless an exemption applies, a QBCC contractor's licence is required to carry out or undertake to carry out the construction, erection, renovation, alteration, extension, improvement or repair of epoxy floors if the value of the work exceeds \$3,300 (including the cost of materials).</li> <li>Notes</li> <li>Under section 42 of the QBCC Act it is an offence carry out or undertake to carry out building work without a contractor's licence of the appropriate class, unless the work is exempted in schedule 1A of the Act.</li> <li>Subject to exceptions prescribed in schedule 1 of the QBCC Regulation, building work is defined in the QBCC Act to include the erection, construction, improvement, repair or alteration of building, including a fixed structure.</li> <li>Undertaking to carry out building work includes contracting to carry out the work, submitting a tender to carry out the work, making an offer to carry out the work.</li> </ul>
Fire maintenance servicing	Servicing of – Smoke detectors Emergency lighting Fire control panels Pumps and hydrants Fire hose and extinguishers Fire doors Block plans Evacuation Diagrams Emergency Evacuation plans	<ul> <li>QBCC Licence</li> <li>Fire protection work for a building or part of building includes:         <ul> <li>installing, restoring, repairing or maintaining of a fire protection system</li> <li>preparing certificates, statements or records relating to the fire protection system or stating whether a fire protection system meets a standard, requirement or specification</li> <li>designing a fire protection system</li> <li>developing, approving or certifying of emergency evacuation procedures</li> </ul> </li> </ul>



		<ul> <li>for a controlled evacuation during a fire emergency</li> <li>formulating or providing alternative solutions relating to fire safety</li> <li>Inspecting or investigating fire safety is compliant with the <i>Building Act</i> 1975 or the Building Code of Australia (this also includes providing advice or reporting about fire safety).</li> <li>In Queensland, the licence requirements for fire protection work include: <ul> <li>a fire protection occupational licence issued under the QBCC Act that authorizes the licensee to personally carry out the work (as an employee or sub-trade contractor only);</li> <li>a contractor's licence issued under the QBCC Act that authorizes the</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
		<ul> <li>licensee to personally carry out the work (under the contract for a builder or consumer); or</li> <li>a licence, registration or authorization under an Act, other than the QBCC Act, that authorizes the person to personally supervise or carry out the work (for example, an occupational licence issued under the <i>Plumbing and Drainage Act 2002</i> or the <i>Electrical Safety Act 2002</i>).</li> </ul>
		Licences
Fencing	Council facilities ( waste facilities sewerage treatment plants, airports, depots and housing)	No requirements for work below the threshold of QBCC requirements (Experience, certificate of attainment, or supervision to attest to the quality of the product required (proof of competency).
		QBCC Licence where applicable.
Floor Coverings Seamless flooring and Tiling	Removal & disposal of existing floor coverings	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out Floor Coverings and/or Wall Tiles Services hold the following minimum requirements to carry out the Services:



	Installation of floor coverings including carpet, tiles. Linoleum and floating timber floors Installation of tiles Repair of tiles Repair to existing floor coverings Sanding/refurbishment of timber floors	Trade qualification relevant to work being performed for example Certificate III in Floor Covering and Finishing or Certificate III in Wall and Floor Tiling or equivalent. Or Experience attainment or supervision to attest to the quality of the product. Licences Floor finishing and covering (Hard Sector)
		Preparation and Installation of seamless flooring (QBCC lisc.)
	Minor repairs and maintenance	The Contractor shall ensure work is performed in accordance with Queensland Building and Construction Commission regulations - work has to have a value of no more than \$3,300, not be electrical or plumbing work and not require an occupational licence.
Handy Work	Cleaning of Guttering	All persons who perform work must also have completed either the nationally recognised General Safety Induction – white card course code – CPCCOHS1001A or the "Course in General Safety Induction (Construction Industry)" blue card course code – 30215QLD.
	Repairs/replacement of screens	
	Removal of rubbish and disposal of unwanted items	
Hydraulic Maintenance and Servicing	Servicing and Maintenance of Council Equipment.	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out these Services are duly qualified. Requirements will for maintenance, repairs and servicing of fixed plant such as pumps, engines, hydraulic and pneumatic driven machines.
Landscaping	Laying of turf, top soiling, installation of mulch,	No Licence required, unless structural landscaping is part of the project then licence is required
Locksmith	Replacement of lock types such as entrance sets, night latch or deadlocks	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out Locksmith Services hold the following licence as a minimum to carry out the Services:



	Replacement of cylinders, including provision of two keys, to locks fitted to external doors such as front door, rear door and security doors	A security equipment installer licence issued by the Office of Fair Trading is a mandatory requirement. More info at http://www.qld.gov.au/law/laws-regulated-industries-and-accountability/queensland-laws-and-regulations/regulated-industries-and-licensing/regulated-industries-licensing-and-legislation/security-industry-regulation/get-a-security-licence/security-technical-licence/apply-for-a-security-equipment-installer-licence/
	Replacement of cylinders, including provision of two keys, to doors of garages, mailboxes and other external lockable doors Replacement of cylinders to window locks, including provision of a minimum of one key per lock Clearly identifying all keys with the property address attached	Application form available at:
	Replacement of complete locks where non-cylinder type locks are installed including two keys Cutting and providing keys General lock maintenance	https://publications.qld.gov.au/dataset/0cff3f63-a284-4d52-9946- ced00ec443f3/resource/2cb287ed-f39a-449b-9ccc- ffc1029a19ca/download/spa12applicationforasecurityproviderlicenceindividualclass2.pdf
Metal Fabrication	Supply and installation of metal products Welding repairs to building and structures	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out metal fabrication work covered by the Deed of Agreement and the Tender Response hold a trade qualification relevant to work being performed for example Certificate III in Engineering (Fabrication) or equivalent.



		Experience, certificate of attainment, or supervision to attest to the quality of the product (proof of competency).
	Internal and external	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out Painting Services covered by tender shall hold the following licence as a minimum to carry out the Services:
	Small touch-ups	Trade Contractor, Painting and Decorating Licence issued by the QBCC
Painting		Brush hands or Labourers are to be used only on non-critical components of each project and not comprise the majority of onsite staff.
		All persons who perform work must have successfully completed either the nationally recognised General Safety Induction - white card course code - CPCCOHS1001A) or the "Course in General Safety Induction (Construction Industry)" - blue card course code – 30215QLD.
Paving/Bricklaying	Pathways / footpaths Public spaces Courtyards	The Contractor shall ensure that it has the appropriate licence (Brick and Segmental Paving) issued by the QBCC to perform the Services covered by the Tender Response and must provide evidence to the satisfaction of the Council.
Pest Control	Intermittent control of infestations Weed Control Rodent Control Bird Control Reptile Removal Feral Animal	The Contractor shall ensure that it has the appropriate licence (Pest Management) issued by Qld Health and abide by the PMA 2001 and PMR 2003 to perform the Services covered by the Tender Response and must provide evidence to the satisfaction of the Council.
Plastering	Plastering of new work such as partitions, panels, walls and decorative features	The Contractor shall ensure that it has the appropriate licence (Plastering - Drywall) issued by the QBCC to perform the Services and must provide evidence to the satisfaction of the Council.
	Repairs and maintenance of	



	existing walls	
	Irrigation	The Contractor shall ensure that all persons engaged to carry out Plumbing Services hold the following current licences as a minimum to carry out the Services:
	Taps	Trade Contractor, Plumbing and Drainage Licence
	Blocked drains	Plumbing and Drainage Licence issued by the Plumbing Industry Council (PIC) or QBCC
	Gutters and downpipes	General Safety Induction - white card course code – CPCCOHS1001A or the "Course in General Safety Induction (Construction Industry)" - blue card course code – 30215QLD.
	On-site domestic waste water management systems	Tenderers are to advise Council regarding their plumbing qualifications and endorsements.
	Roofing and flashing	Licences
Plumbing	Installation, replacement, repair and maintenance hot water systems and tempering valves	Plumber
	Any other plumbing and drainage work as required	Drainer
		Restricted Water Plumber (RWP) – Irrigation
		Restricted Drainer (RD) – Onsite Sewerage Facility
		RWP – Water and Sanitary
		Endorsements
		Backflow prevention *
		Expiry date (equipment)
		Thermostatic mixing valve
		Onsite sewerage facility *
		Commercial and industrial
		Domestic and residential *
		Solar and heat pump *



		(* denotes more frequent use)
Liquid Waste Removal	Septic system pump out	The Contractor must be equipped to provide the Service and comply with all environmental licences and requirements.
Signage	Some or all aspects of custom signage (e.g. design, manufacture, and/or installation of custom signage) Project specific Promotional (banners, corflute etc.) Facility	The Contractor must be equipped to be able to supply quality signage that complies with Council's Signage Style Guide.



# 4. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL TRADES

Trade providers on this arrangement must be able to provide all maintenance services in accordance with all applicable regulations, codes of practice and guidelines as stated in Clause 3.

Trade providers must state what times they are available and if available 24 hour, 7 days per week service availability at all times of the year is required in support of Banana Shire Councils reactive maintenance requirements.

**Emergency Maintenance (Priority 1)** requires a response to emergency requests within 2 hours.

Emergency maintenance includes any Priority 1 request for maintenance arising from the failure of any one of the essential amenities, or that affects the immediate health, safety or security. This service includes but not limited to the following:

- Burst water pipe or no water;
- Sewer blockage;
- Complete loss of power, electrical faults;
- Gas leaks;
- Loss of operation of essential equipment;
- Building, Electrical, Plumbing make safe.

**Responsive Maintenance (Priority 2 to 5)** requires the contractor to attend in a timely manner that will have the work completed by the nominated completion date. The Contractor must make sure that the maintenance services are performed by a competent tradesperson to the satisfaction of Council. Where apprentices are used, all work is required to be supervised and checked by a Tradesperson. All work must be carried out in accordance with each individual Service Request.

The Contractor must provide materials that;

- Are compliant with any applicable Australian Standards;
- Are new and of a high standard;
- Are of a fully proven design;
- Have a history of market acceptance;
- Come with a reliable spare parts and service back-up.

Contractors must ensure materials and contracted services are obtained at the best possible trade price available.

- <u>All invoices</u> should have the cost of Labour for Tradespersons, Apprentices and Materials on separate lines so that Banana Shire Council can clearly identify the full cost breakdown. <u>A copy of the risk assessment</u> for the completed job/project must be included with all invoices and claims before payment will be made.
- The Contractor must provide guarantees, warranties and operating instructions as would normally be provided in respect of the maintenance services performed.



- Where the maintenance services involve repair work, the Contractor must use materials that match existing materials and replacement parts that are new and compatible with existing appliances and to the manufacturer's specification.
- Where the maintenance services involve replacing existing materials with new materials, the Contractor must remove and dispose of existing material unless otherwise specified in the Service Request.
- Contractors must conduct a full clean-up of the work area, including cleaning all surfaces and removal of dust and fragments, ensuring that the area is restored to a condition equal to or better than prior to when work commenced.
- The Contractor must remove all waste materials in order to make good and safe the area of work and pay all associated disposal fees.
- The Contractor must check with the relevant authority as to the location of services electrical, plumbing, storm water etc. before commencement of any digging, removal or demolition to ensure against damage to services.
- The Contractor will be held fully responsible for any damage to Council properties. Council managed properties or public utilities resulting from its works and will be required to make good the damage at the Contractors expense. Any make good work must be completed within seven (7) days of when damage occurred.
- When working with other trades, contractors must adopt a cooperative and collaborative approach to best ensure minimal disruption to, and timely completion of work.
- The Contractor must comply with the requirements of the Banana Shire Council Work Health and Safety Policy and Banana Shire Council Code of Practice and the requirements of their approved Safety Plan.

The Contractor must ensure that the Contractors staff are fully inducted and have the required licencing to perform all duties and must be inducted within Council.

# 5. VARIATIONS TO ANY WORK

Council may, by written notice given to the Contractor, require the Contractor to vary the Services in nature, scope or timing.

Council may direct the Contractor to:

- a) increase, decrease or omit any part of the Services; or
- b) perform additional work.

The Contractor **<u>must not commence work</u>** on the variation to the Services unless the variation is agreed in writing by Council and the Contractor, and **<u>a valid Purchase Order is</u>** <u>received with these amendments.</u>



# 6. EVIDENCE OF TENDERER'S QBCC LICENSING - RELEVANT FOR BUILDING WORKS ONLY

It is a requirement of the *Queensland Building Services Authority Act 1991 (Qld)* ('Act') that a Contractor must be licensed to carry out 'building work' as that term is defined in the Act;

The Tenderer's submission of a Tender in response to the Conditions of Tender means that the Tenderer irrevocably warrants that:

- a) it has considered (and where required sought legal advice on) the extent to which the work described in the Specification constitutes or may constitute 'building work' as that term is defined in the Act;
- b) it holds all relevant licences required under the Act (or otherwise) to perform the works described in the Specification;
- c) all licences held by it under the Act (or otherwise) are current, and are not subject to any conditions which preclude the Tenderer from performing works described in the Specification;
- d) all licences held by it under the Act (or otherwise) which are required for the performance of the works described in the Specification will remain current for the time during which those works are to be performed under the Contract in the event that the Tenderer is successful: and
- e) it otherwise complies in all respects with the Act, and will continue to do so for the duration of the Contract in the event that the Tenderer is successful.

If any of the work described in the Specifications constitutes 'building work' then the Tenderer must submit with its Tender evidence that it is appropriately licensed to perform that work.

For the avoidance of doubt, submission of evidence of licences under Clause 3 shall not relieve the Tenderer of any of its obligations under the Act, the Tender of the Contract, nor shall it qualify, reduce or alter the scope of warranties provided by the Tenderer in Clause 3 above.

The contractor will guarantee any work conducted on behalf of Council and will rectify or replace any faulty work at no charge to council.

#### 6.1 WORKMANSHIP

The Contractor shall be fully conversant with present day repair techniques and have a service organisation capable of first class work standard.

Replacement components shall be genuine replacement parts, unless otherwise approved by Banana Shire Council, to match existing equipment and shall carry the full supplier's warranty in favour of the Principal.

Any warranty documents shall be submitted to the Principal's Representative with claims for payment.

# 6.2 MATERIALS

All materials utilised for the Services are to:

- a) Be the best of their respective kinds, where appropriate;
- b) Comply with the relevant standard; and



- c) Be of equal dimensions, sizes, weights and quality as the materials used in the original construction or recommended by the manufacturer of the equipment unless otherwise directed.
- d) It is also highly desirable for the Contractor to demonstrate a commitment to sustainability, be demonstrating the use of sustainable practices and by recommending the use of recycled products where possible.

# 6.3 HOT WORK

"Hot Work" – Is work that can generate flames, heat or sparks and includes, but is not limited to, the following activities:

- Oxy-acetylene cutting or gas burning;
- Welding, brazing or electric arc welding;
- Heating ad driving rivets;
- Use of open flames;
- Abrasive blasting;
- Grinding;
- Power operated tools that cause spark generation. E.g. Cuttings tools; and
- Use of gasoline or other internal combustion engines and other similar appliances that produce sufficient head to ignite flammable vapours.

All Contractors required to carry out hot work shall seek approval to carry out hot work on site and shall complete a risk assessment and obtain a hot work permit prior to any hot work commencing.

The nominated officer in charge of the site will issue hot work approval. If there is no nominated officer in charge of the site, then all relevant applicants must be made to the Principal's Representative.

# 7. DEALING WITH THE PUBLIC

Council requires the Contractor and all related employees to conduct themselves professionally and in a socially responsible manner and represent the Council and themselves in a professional, customer focused manner at all times.

The Contractor shall not conduct any work additional to the Contract as a result of requests from residents or other members of the public without written authority or direction from the Principal or their representative.

If a request is outside the Contractor's area of responsibility, the Contractor shall provide the customer with the contact details of the Councils Customer Service Department who will forward the customer enquiry to the council's representative.

# 8. ISSUING OF INSTRUCTIONS TO THE CONTRACTOR

The Contractor shall respond only to instruction from the Principal or the nominated representative, and the nominated person will be responsible for all coordination with the Primary Contractor.

# 9. CONTRACTOR'S WORKING HOURS AND AVAILABILITY

# 9.1 CORE WORKING HOURS

The Contractor's core working hours for this Contract is between 6.00am and 6.00pm, five (5) days per week, excluding weekends and public holidays.



All rates must include tools of trade, labour and travel to site as per schedule.

The Contractor shall not undertake work outside of these times without authorisation from the Principal.

When the Contractor is requested to complete works on an existing job outside of core hours, additional works will be charged at the "Core Hours Hourly Rate" as detailed in the Contractor's Tendered price schedules.

These additional works do not constitute a Call Out. Alternatively, with authorisation from the Principal, the Contractor may request to remain on site outside of core hours to complete works thus releasing resources for the following day. E.g. the completion of works in a rural or remote location that requires significant mobilisation of plant and machinery should the Contractor be required to return the following day for a minimal amount of outstanding work.

#### 9.2 PRIORITY OF WORKS

The Principal may require a change in work locations and tasks during core working hours, in response to a higher priority tree maintenance issue. The Contractor shall respond to any change in work locations and tasks within 1 hour of receiving notification from the Principal, who shall direct all changes in priorities, work locations and tasks.

## 9.3 CALL OUTS FOR URGENT WORKS

For the purposes of this contract, a Call Out is defined as the Principal requiring the services of the Contractor in an urgent situation that occurs outside the standard working hours.

Authorisation by the Principal's Representative must be obtained prior to work proceeding.

The Contractor shall be mobilised and have commenced work within one hour of receiving the Call Out from the Principal.

#### 9.4 URGENT JOB REQUESTS

The contractor may be required from time to time need to respond to requests for urgent work. All such responses shall be within 24 hours of notification

#### **10.** NOMINATED WORK LOCATION

Tenderers will be invited to nominate one or more location/s in which they would like to be considered for work:

- Biloela, Jambin and surrounds
- Baralaba, Wowan Dululu and Surrounds;
- Taroom and Surrounds;
- Theodore, Moura and Surrounds;

## 11. PRICING

All prices are to be quoted <u>GST inclusive</u> and cover all costs associated with the performance of the service. Prices are to be calculated and guaranteed for the duration of the contract.

If the Contractors business is sold or transferred to another entity the submission cannot be transferred and will be null and void.



# **12.** COMPLIANCE WITH STANDARDS

It is a mandatory requirement that all work performed under this arrangement shall meet all relevant current Australian Industry and Council Standards.

# 13. PURCHASE ORDER AND INVOICING

Before the commencement of work the contractor must receive an official signed Purchase Order stating the tender number and tendered amount. The contractor must not proceed until received via email or hand delivered.

Council will place a purchase order with the selected supplier detailing the requirement and an estimated quantity. The quantity and delivery times are estimates only and are subject to change at any time. No work shall be conducted without an official council purchase order.

The Supplier shall operate an appropriate system of recording and invoicing such that all necessary information is recorded and provided as required. Invoices shall be in a format acceptable to the Council with all relevant information required by Council including street and road address or park area and all if any consumables utilised.

## 14. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

Where discrepancy or contradiction in documentation may occur, the order of precedence for documents specifying the works to be undertaken (from highest to lowest order of precedence) shall be as follows:

- a) Workplace Health and Safety Regulations 2011;
- b) Environmental Protection Act 2004;
- c) This Specification
- d) Council Policies

#### **15. PRINCIPAL CONTRACTOR**

The successful contractor will be working under the direction of Banana Shire Council and in accordance with the Work Health and Safety Act 2011 and Work Health and Safety Regulation 2011 – Section 293.

#### 16. MEETINGS

Onsite meetings will occur between Banana Shire Council and the contractor to discuss any relevant WH&S issues.

Further meetings will be conducted as warranted and as identified and these meetings shall be documented.

#### 17. SAFE PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Contractor's plant and equipment must be fit for purpose and comply with applicable Standards and legislative requirements.

Test/Tag – Contractor must ensure that all portable power tools are tested and tagged.

Each plant item contracted must have a current Registration Certificate (if applicable). A Current Workers Compensation Policy Number is also required. All staff is to be covered by Personal Accident Insurance. Contractors, who enter into this agreement with Council, are required to indemnify Council against claims for personal accident to the value of \$20,000,000.

Each driver/operator is also required to hold a current Drivers Licence and/or the appropriate Plant/Operators Licence.



Copies of the above Registration, Workers' Compensation Number, Construction Induction, Certificates of Competency and Drivers Licences must be presented to Council with the contract or prior to carrying out work under this contract and the originals shall be made available for inspection on demand thereafter.

# **18.** INFORMATION PROVIDED BY COUNCIL

All information supplied in the tender documentation shall be treated as "commercial in confidence" between Council and the respondent.

# **19. INSURANCE AND INDEMNITY**

The Contractor will, at the Contractor's own expense, effect and maintain with a reputable insurer at all times during the term of the Contract, a public liability and indemnity policy of insurance for an amount not less than **twenty million dollars (\$20,000,000.00)** for any one event in the joint names of both parties to this Contract and upon such terms and conditions as the Council may deem necessary.

The policy must include an indemnity, in respect of all claims, demands and actions in respect of injury, loss or damage to any person or property howsoever sustained arising out of the performance by the Contractor and in respect of all risks of an insurable nature in respect of which the Contractor is obliged to indemnify Council under this Contract.

The Contractor hereby releases Council, its servants and agents to the full extent permitted by law, from all claims and demands of every kind resulting from accident, damage, death or injury to person or property occurring thereon, except to the extent that it was caused by the gross negligence on the part of Council, its servants or agents.

The Contractor shall at the Contractor's own expense, insure and keep insured at all times during the term of the contract all of the Contractor's employees and workers who shall work on the site for any liability arising out of, or under, or by virtue of, the WORKCOVER QUEENSLAND ACT 2011 or any amendments thereto or subsequent re-enactments, all acts in substation thereof in force for the time being.

The Contractor shall at the Contractor's own expense, comprehensively insure and register all motor vehicles and machinery used pursuant to this Contract, as may be required by law at all times during the term of this Contract.

The Contractor shall forward to Council certificates showing the currency of the Insurance Policies. Council reserves the right to review the cover amount at any time during the term of the Contract, and when so required by Council, request the Contractor to provide the Council with a current copy of any insurance policy undertaken by the Contractor.

The Contractor must immediately contact Council if at any time during the insurance period which a certificate of currency is required to be produced to Council any, all or part of the insurance policies referred to in the Tender are revoked or lapsed.

# **20. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT**

The Contract may be terminated by:

- Mutual Agreement of Council and the Contractor; or
- Failure of the Contractor to achieve satisfactory performance measurement as specified in the Contract;
- The provision of three (3) months' notice in writing by the Council.



If the Contractor, in the performance of their duties, fails, in the opinion of the Superintendent to consistently perform at a satisfactory standard, Council may give to the Contractor a notice, calling on the Contractor to remedy any unsatisfactory performance within a reasonable time. If, in the reasonable opinion of the Superintendent, the Contractor fails to remedy such unsatisfactory performance and/or fails from then on to maintain a satisfactory performance level in respect of that area of the Contractor's duties the subject of such notice, Council may by written notice to the Contractor terminate this Contract.

In the event that the Contractor fails to attend on site to perform their duties without just cause and/or without giving prior notice to Council of their inability to attend and arranging alternative procedures suitable to Council, Council may elect to immediately terminate the Contract and the requirements for notice would not be required in this instance.

Upon termination or expiration of this Contract for any reason:

- The Contractor shall within seven (7) days of the effective date of the termination remove all equipment and other goods belonging to the Contractor; and
- The Contractor shall immediately return to the Council all property of the Council in the Contractor's possession or custody or control.

Notwithstanding the *Default* clause, this Contract shall automatically terminate without notice in the event that:

- An administrator or receiver and manager is appointed for either party or all or any of its property;
- Either party should become insolvent or bankrupt or unable to pay its debts as and when they fall due or cease to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business or make any assignment for the benefit of its creditors or enter into a composition with its creditors;
- Either party takes any action or proceeding which has an object of winding up itself, or is placed under official management or enters into a compromise or other agreement with its creditors (other than for the purposes of voluntarily reconstruction);
- Any proceedings should be commenced against either party under any insolvency or debtor relief law and such proceedings shall not be vacated or set aside within sixty (60) days from the date of commencement thereof;
- An application is made for the winding up or dissolution of either party; and/or
- The Contractor is convicted of an indictable offence or is guilty of an act or conduct, which in the reasonable opinion of the Council may cause damage or discredit to Council.

# 21. COMMUNICATION WITH COUNCIL

The contractor is to direct all service problems and enquiries to the relevant Council's Department:

Phone:	(07) 4992 9500
Email:	<u>enquiries@banana.qld.gov.au</u>
Mail:	Chief Executive Officer Banana Shire Council PO Box 412 <b>BILOELA QLD 4715</b>



The contractor agrees to keep the terms of the Contract confidential between the tenderer and Council at all times and not disclose the terms of the Contract to any other person or entity without the prior written consent of Council.

The contractor agrees that any contact with media organisations or personnel regarding the tender or any work performed by the Tenderer must be referred to Council Management for approval of any response/comment etc.

# 22. CODE OF CONDUCT FOR CONTRACTORS/SUBCONTRACTORS

# 22.1 FOLLOWING DIRECTION OF MANAGEMENT OR A COUNCIL REPRESENTATIVE

The Supplier/Contractor agrees to follow all reasonable directions in regards to this contract from Council Management or a Council Representative.

# 22.2 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

Council is required to release information about related party transactions in its annual report. The release of this information is not a breach of confidentiality due to the legal requirement to include such information in a public document. Related party disclosures may identify supplier who have a family member relationship with key management personnel and state the amounts transacted between Council and the related party.

# 22.3 CONTACT WITH COUNCILLORS

Contact by a tenderer with a Councillor of the Banana Shire Council in relation to matters of awarding of this tender during the period up to the determination of the tender is prohibited. Such activity will disqualify the tenderer for the period of the tender.

# 22.4 CONTRACTOR NOT EMPLOYEE

The tenderer must ensure that they meet the ATO requirements to be a contractor to Council. Holding an ABN alone does not make a tenderer a contractor. It is preferred that tenderers have the business status of a Company, Partnership or Trust. Individuals with an ABN should consult with their taxation advisor on their business status before tendering for works.

# 22.5 GIFTS OR BENEFITS TO COUNCIL EMPLOYEES

Tenderers must refrain from providing gifts or benefits to employees or contractors of Council. These gifts and benefits may be seen as an inducement to influence a procurement decision.

# 22.6 GIFTS OR BENEFITS TO COUNCIL CONTRACTORS

During the term of this Contract, the Contractor and their employees and agents will not personally receive any gift, fee, profit, commission or other discount or benefit from any other person or corporation for any reason or on any pretence whatsoever due to the Contractor's Contract with Council, other than may be provided for in writing by Council.

# 22.7 REQUIREMENT TO REPORT FRAUD AND CORRUPTION

Should a tenderer or successful tenderer have reasonable grounds to suspect that an employee or contractor of Council has sought inducements in return for allocation of contracts or work the tenderer must report the matter to the Chief Executive Officer of the Council or the Crime and Corruption Commission.

# 22.8 DISPUTES BETWEEN CONTRACTORS



The Supplier/Contractor must promptly report in writing to council any dispute between the Contractor and another Council Contractor that has the potential to affect the performance of the Contractor's Services under this arrangement.

# 22.9 USE OF INAPPROPRIATE LANGUAGE

The Supplier/Contractor or any Contractors employees will conduct themselves in a professional manner at all times and not use any inappropriate language while on any sites, buildings or public place while contracted under this agreement. If reported the Council will take appropriate action.

# 22.10 VIOLENCE AND THREATS

The Supplier/Contractor or any Contractors employees will conduct themselves in a professional manner at all times and not use any violence or threats against any Council employees or Councillors to intimidate or coerce decisions while on any sites, buildings or public place while contracted under this agreement. If reported the Council will take appropriate action.

# 22.11 USE OF COUNCIL RESOURCES

The Supplier/Contractor or any Contractors employees shall not use or borrow any Council plant, equipment, materials, or fuel unless directed by Council Representative.

Use of Council plant and equipment shall only be with the prior written approval of Council's Principal Fleet and Workshop Advisor.

# 22.12 RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES

During the term of this Contract, the parties acknowledge and agree that the Contractor is an independent Contractor and that at no time during the term of this Contract will the relationship of the parties be that of employer/employee, principal/agent, or a partnership.

# 23. WORKPLACE HEALTH AND SAFETY

# 23.1 LEGISLATIVE & BANANA SHIRE COUNCIL REQUIREMENTS

All work shall be carried out in strict accordance with the Work Health and Safety Act and Regulation 2011 as well as Banana Shire Council specific Health and Safety requirements. Banana Shire Council expects all contractors to be committed to ensuring a safe workplace is a priority and have safe systems of work to prevent illness and injuries at work and be able to demonstrate this for the duration of the project life cycle from tender phase to site completion.

Audits, inspections and general workplace monitoring will be carried out in accordance with the Work Health and Safety Legislation 2011.

# 23.2 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Contractor is responsible for ensuring all hazards associated with work to be performed have been identified, assessed and appropriate controls implemented prior to any work commencing. This includes undertaking risk assessments as well as the provision of Work Method Statements where required.

# 23.3 SAFETY TRAINING

The Contractor shall be responsible for identifying and providing any Health and Safety training required for work under the Contract. The Contractor shall provide evidence that the



workers have received such training and are competent in the type of work to be performed under the Contract.

Banana Shire Council may require any Contractor's workers, at the Contractor's expense, to attend further site safety induction and training when considered necessary.

# 23.4 HEALTH AND SAFETY INDUCTIONS AND SITE INDUCTIONS

All contractors and subcontractors shall have a site-specific induction and a Work Health and Safety induction conducted by a Banana Shire Council representative, which shall include:

- a) Location and Site orientation;
- b) Scope of Work
- c) Personal Protective Equipment requirements e.g. safety shoes, high visibility clothing, etc.
- d) Contractors responsibility for ensuring all workers comply with site emergency response procedures.
- e) Upon successful completion of the Council Work Health and Safety Induction a certificate/card will be issued which must be carried on site at all times.
- f) Council Inductions are valid for a period of 12 months and are the responsibility of the contractor and subcontractors to comply.
- g) Inductions will be conducted in Contractors own time.

### 23.5 NO DRUGS AND ALCOHOL ON SITE

The Contractor shall comply with any legislative requirements for Drug and Alcohol Testing and Procedures and adhere to Banana Shire Councils Drug and Alcohol Policy.

The Contractor must ensure that they and their employees, whilst undertaking any work or performing their duties:

- a) Do not consume any alcohol
- b) Are not intoxicated or under the influence of any drug which impedes their ability to safely and efficiently perform any services or duties.

# 23.6 PROTECTIVE CLOTHING AND EQUIPMENT

The Contractor shall also comply with any legislative requirements for personal protective equipment or clothing. The Contractors shall also comply with any directives issued from time to time by Banana Shire Council that requires specific protective clothing or equipment to be used whilst carrying out work under the contract.

The Contractor and their workers are responsible for the supply and maintenance of protective clothing and equipment and for ensuring staff are trained in its correct use as appropriate.

The Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring their workers and subcontractors are suitably dressed at all times. In all cases, any kind of undressed appearance or use of leisure clothing (e.g. beachwear, thongs, open footwear, singlets etc.) is not acceptable.

#### 23.7 INCIDENT NOTIFICATION, INVESTIGATION AND REPORTING

Whilst undertaking work under the Contract, and in addition to any legislative requirements, the Contractor shall immediately notify Banana Shire Council of:

- All incidents involving the death or serious injury of its workers or those of its Sub-Contractors, and
- All dangerous occurrence or "near miss" incidents, medical treatment injury or lost time injuries.



• All of the above situations require the Contractor to complete and provide to Banana Shire Council an Incident Investigation report and /or assist with any investigation conducted by Banana Shire Council as required.

# 23.8 WORK PRINCIPLES

The following Work Principles must apply:

- The Contractor is responsible for maintaining a clean, safe and tidy work area at all times including any sanitary and washing facilities provided.
- An acceptable standard of staff discipline is to be maintained at all times. The use and possession of illicit drugs or alcohol on site is strictly prohibited.
- Security at Banana Shire Council sites is required to be maintained at all times.
- All Banana Shire Council buildings, plant, any identified area and vehicles are designated as "No Smoking" areas.
- The Contractor shall indemnify Banana Shire Council against any loss or expense that they incur or any claim made against them by a third party arising from the negligent act or omission of the Contractor in performing its duties.

# 23.9 HEALTH AND SAFETY MANAGEMENT PLAN

The Contractor shall ensure that a Site Specific Health and Safety Management Plan is prepared and submitted to Banana Shire Council before any contract commences.

Evidence to support the Contractors ability to prepare and manage Site Specific Health and Safety Management Plans shall be included in the tender, including:

- Management Structure expected for the contract including the person to perform the duties and responsibilities of the Contractor, qualifications and experience of other staff, including sub-contractors relevant to the work being undertaken;
- How risks will be effectively managed for the duration of the contract;
- Examples of Safe Work Method Statements and/or JSA's (Job Safety Analysis');
- Health and Safety Performance records including records of accident/incidents and any Health and Safety Regulator prosecutions or Provisional Improvement Notices issued in the last 3 years.
- Contractors shall ensure that each person employed under this Contract is conversant with the requirements of the Workplace Health and Safety Act and Regulations, Codes of Practice and with Safety Procedures applicable to the various categories of work and different workplace situations involved under this Contract.
- The management plan will be reviewed every 3 years.
- It is the Contractor's responsibility to forward the Management plan to the nominated Council Representative on the 3 year anniversary or when legislations change.

#### 24. NON-COMPLIANCE

If during the performance of work under the contract Banana Shire Council informs the contractor that it is of the opinion that the contractor is:

- Not conducting the work in compliance with the WH&S Legislation or relevant policies and procedures; or
- Conducting the work in such a way as to endanger the Health & Safety of the contractor's employees, Banana Shire Council employees or the general public,
- Commits a substantial breach of the contract
- Fails to disclose any Conflict of Interests



Banana Shire Council may direct the contractor to promptly remedy the breach or the breach of WH&S or may direct the contractor to suspend work until such time as the contractor satisfies Banana Shire Council that the work will be resumed in a safe manner (QA procedures and forms for non-compliance would apply).

If the contractor fails to rectify any breaches of WH&S for which work has been suspended, or if the contractors performance has involved recurring breaches of WH&S, Banana Shire Council will notify Workplace Health and Safety Queensland and requests that an inspection visit the workplace or may terminate the work forthwith, depending on the severity of the issue.

# 25. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Contractor shall observe and comply with the provisions of the Environmental Protection Act and Regulations 1994 and of any other duly constituted public authority wherein the work is done. The Contractor shall abide by the relevant sections of the Work Health and Safety Act 2011 and pay any relevant levies that are the responsibility of the Contractor. For the purposes of the Act the Contractor shall be deemed to be the Principal Contractor.

# **26.** SELECTION CRITERIA

EVALUATION CRITERIA	DESCRIPTION	WEIGHTING
PRICE	Schedule of Rates	30%
	Range of Services	20%
DELIVERY PROGRAM	Previous experience	15%
DEEVERTTROGRAM	Quality, Environmental, Safety, and Other Management Processes	20%
ENCOURAGEMENT OF LOCAL BUSINESS	Proposed procurement program for local businesses	15%

Listed below are the criteria on which evaluation of the offers will be based:-

A **supplier may not approach** any elected member or **officer** regarding an offer which has been placed, in an attempt to influence such person in favour of their own offer, at any time, other than a time specifically designated for the evaluation of the offer. Such approach will invalidate their offer. Submitted offers should include any and all information necessary in order for Council to evaluate against the above criteria.

# **27.** NOTIFICATION OF ACCEPTANCE ETC.

The successful Tenderer will be notified by letter which will be signed by the successful tenderer and returned. Before start of this contract all relevant information must be provided and approved before the start date and all inductions are to be completed.

# 28. CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT

The Council Representative will assess the Contractor performance and will issue directions to continue to meet the contractors KPI's:

- Assigned projects are delivered within customer expectations
- High level of customer service evidenced
- All assigned tasks are completed professionally and within specified timeframes
- Attainment of budget targets both in terms of outputs and financial constraints



- High level of participation and commitment to team outcomes
- Effective and efficient supervision and development of staff, including responsibility and accountability for the health and safety of employees
- Performance Reviews for employees are undertaken on time
- Full compliance by employees with Council's Record Management policies and procedures
- All liaison carried out in a professional manner and being a positive ambassador for Banana Shire Council
- Council's Policies and Procedures are followed
- Other targets as outlined in the Performance Review are achieved

# **29.** QUALITY ASSURANCE SYSTEM

The Contractor shall maintain and adhere to Councils Quality Assurance (QA) system for the duration of the Contract and ensure that appropriate site conditions (both on-site and off-site as applicable) and maintained to ensure that prescribed quality outcomes are achieved throughout the contract period.

- Quality Plan; and
- Work Method Statements (WMS's).

### **30.** NON-EXCLUSIVITY OF SERVICES

Under the agreement:-

- The agreement is not exclusive and Council may, at its sole discretion, engage another entity or use its own staff to provide the Services;
- Council is not obliged to procure any or any minimum number of services from the Contractor under this arrangement;
- Council reserves the right at its sole discretion, to call tenders or quotes for any other services.



# **GENERAL SPECIFICATION**

Register of Prequalified Suppliers (ROPS) Trade Maintenance and Associated Services

CONTRACT NO: T2324.46

# Contents

1.	THE SPECIFICATION	2
2.	DEFINITIONS	2
3.	CONTRACTOR'S GENERAL OBLIGATIONS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS	3
4.	CONTRACT MANAGEMENT	1
5.	APPROVALS AND OTHER LAW	5
6.	SITE	5
7.	PROGRAM	7
8.	QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM	3
9.	REPORTS, MEETINGS AND RECORD KEEPING	
	PAYMENT CLAIMS	
10.	PAYMENT CLAIMS	•
	SAFETY	
11.		9
11. 12.	SAFETY	9 9
11. 12. 13.	SAFETYS	9 9 1
11. 12. 13. 14.	SAFETYS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION	9 9 1
11. 12. 13. 14. 15.	SAFETYS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION	9 9 1 1 2
11. 12. 13. 14. 15. 16.	SAFETYS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION	9 9 1 1 2 3



#### 1. THE SPECIFICATION

- 1.1 (**Documents comprising the specification**) The specification comprises the following documents:
  - (a) this General Specification;
  - (b) other documents to the extent that they are incorporated (whether physically or by reference) into the specification, namely:
    - (i) relevant Australian Standards;
    - (ii) Principal's Policies and Procedures;.
- 1.2 (**Precedence of documents comprising specification**) The documents comprising the specification shall be taken to be mutually explanatory. If there is any ambiguity, inconsistency, conflict or discrepancy between any of the documents listed in clause 1.1 then the documents will take precedence in the order set out in clause 1.1, with the document listed at 1.1(a) being the highest in the order.
- 1.3 (**Documents incorporated by reference into specification**) The Contractor is deemed to have obtained copies of, read, understood, and allowed for compliance with the Specification (including any documents which are incorporated into it by reference only).

#### 2. DEFINITIONS

- 2.1 (**Definitions**) Capitalised terms used in the General Specification have the meanings assigned to them in the General Conditions of Contract (if any) unless the context otherwise requires. Terms which are separately defined in a specific clause have the meanings assigned in those clauses. Otherwise, in the General Specification:
  - (a) **Administrator** means, when used in or by reference to Department of Transport and Main Roads documents, the Superintendent;
  - (b) **Approvals** means certificates, licences, accreditations, clearances, authorisations, consents, permits, approvals, determinations, and permissions from any Authority and any related fees and charges;
  - (c) **Authority** means any Federal, State, or local government authority, administrative or judicial body or tribunal, department, commission, agency, government owned corporation, statutory body or instrumentality, or any other person having jurisdiction over the project;
  - (d) **General Conditions of Contract** means the General Conditions of Contract referred to in the formal instrument of agreement to which this General Specification is attached;
  - (e) **General Specification** means this document and all attachments to it which forms part of the Contract;
  - (f) **Good Industry Practice** means:
    - (i) the standard of skill, care, and diligence; and
    - (ii) the practices, methods, techniques, and acts,

of a skilled, competent, and experienced contractor engaged in the business of carrying out Work similar to the WUC;

(g) **Principal** has the same meaning as given to the term "Principal" or "Purchaser" in the General Conditions of Contract (as the case may be);



- (h) Principal's Policies and Procedures means the policies, procedures, codes, plans, guidelines, and the like provided or made available by or on behalf of the Principal to the Contractor from time to time, including those published on the Principal's website which are in any way applicable to this Contract;
- (i) **Program** has the same meaning as given to the term "construction program" or "program" in the General Conditions of Contract (as the case may be);

#### 3. CONTRACTOR'S GENERAL OBLIGATIONS, WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS

- 3.1 (Ability) The Contractor must ensure, and warrants and represents that the Contractor and, to the extent applicable to them, its Personnel:
  - (a) have the experience, skills, expertise, and resources;
  - (b) hold all necessary competencies, licences, accreditations, qualifications, permits, clearances, or other authorisations,

which are required for the Contractor to comply with its obligations under the Contract and will maintain such competencies, licences, accreditations, qualifications, permits, clearances, or other authorisations at all times until the Contractor has completed its obligations under the Contract.

- 3.2 (**Standard**) The Contractor must, and warrants and represents that it will, and to the extent applicable to them will ensure that its Personnel, carry out WUC and Contractor's other obligations in connection with the Contract in accordance with Good Industry Practice.
- 3.3 (**Methodology**) The Contractor:
  - (a) warrants and represents that the methodology for carrying out and completing WUC stated in the Contract is suitable, appropriate and adequate; and
  - (b) must, and warrants and represents that it will, carry out and complete WUC in accordance with that methodology (if any) unless otherwise directed by the Superintendent or permitted or required under the Contract.
- 3.4 (Investigations) The Contractor warrants and represents that the Contractor has:
  - (a) carefully reviewed the Contract and all other information provided by the Principal to the Contractor for the purpose of WUC, and is satisfied that the Contract and other information is appropriate and adequate to enable the Contractor to comply with its obligations under the Contract;
- 3.5 (**Plant/Equipment**) The Contractor warrants and represents that all Plant/Equipment utilised in carrying out WUC shall be in good working condition, suitable and appropriate for the Work for which it is used, and compliant with all applicable Legislative Requirements.
- 3.6 (Contractor Documents) The Contractor warrants and represents that all Contractor Documents will:
  - (a) comply with the requirements of the Contract and applicable law;
  - (b) be consistent with or exceed applicable industry standards;
  - (c) be of a standard and quality expected of a contractor using Good Industry Practice;
  - (d) be suitable and adequate for the purpose for which they are provided.



In this clause, **Contractor Documents** means:

- those records, reports, designs, specifications, certificates, plans (including management plans), procedures, manuals and other documents, whether electronic documents or hard copy format, required by the Contract to be handed over to the Principal by the Contractor; and
- (ii) all information advice, designs, calculations and recommendations in those documents;

but does not include those that are incomplete at the time at which the Principal exercises its rights under subclause 39.4 of the General Conditions of Contract or the Contractor exercises its rights under subclause 39.9 of the General Conditions of Contract);

#### 4. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

- 4.1 (**Contractor's Superintendence**) The Contractor shall provide all superintendence necessary for the proper fulfilment of the Contractor's obligations under the Contract, including, unless the Superintendent directs otherwise, a competent site manager and site foreman approved by the Superintendent (with such approval not to be unreasonably withheld). Unless otherwise agreed by the Superintendent, the site manager shall be the Contractor's representative under clause 22 of the General Conditions of Contract.
- 4.2 (**Requests for review and information**) The Superintendent will endeavor to provide a response and/or Direction in relation to a written request for information from the Contractor within 5 Business Days of receipt of such request. The response time will be dependent on the complex nature and or quantity of clarifications per information request submitted. The Contractor is encouraged to make recommendations and or suggestions for the Superintendent's consideration when submitting such requests.
- 4.3 (Direction by Principal or Superintendent) The Principal shall not be bound by any verbal advice given or information furnished by any Personnel of the Principal or Superintendent in respect of the Contract. The Contractor must not accept instructions from any person other than the Superintendent and/or the Superintendent's Representative. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that its obligations and liabilities in connection with the Contract are not affected by any:
  - (a) receipt or review of, or comment or Direction on, a document submitted by the Contractor;
  - (b) failure by the Principal or Superintendent to review, comment on, or give a Direction on any document submitted by the Contractor; or
  - (c) failure by the Superintendent to give its approval pursuant to clause 8.3.

Before relying on the receipt, review, or comment by the Superintendent, or Principal, or complying with a Direction in relation to a document, the Contractor must notify the Superintendent in writing, if doing so will affect a warranty, representation or obligation of the Contractor under the Contract.

- 4.4 (**Code of Conduct**) In this clause, 'Code of Conduct' means the Principal's code of conduct which is available on the Principal's website. The Code of Conduct identifies the standards and behaviours expected from all workers, including contractors, in delivering services to the local community. The Contractor must:
  - (a) communicate the Code of Conduct to all of the Contractor's Personnel;
  - (b) comply with, and ensure that its Personnel comply with, all requirements of the Code of Conduct, including all standards contained within the Code of Conduct; and



(c) if directed to do so by the Superintendent, obtain and provide to the Superintendent a signed form from all Personnel engaged by the Contractor to perform any part of WUC which states that the person has read, understood and agrees to comply with the Code of Conduct.

#### 5. APPROVALS AND OTHER LAW

- 5.1 (**Approvals obtained by the Principal**) The Principal has/will obtain the following Approvals:
  - (a) Any Environmental Approvals required for the clearing (within the physical limitations of the area specified in the Works Order)
  - (b) Any Cultural Heritage Approvals that may be required due to the nature of the clearing works to be undertaken

The Contractor must comply with those Approvals to the extent that they are applicable to WUC.

- 5.2 (Identifying, obtaining and maintaining Approvals) The Contractor must identify and notify the Principal of all Approvals which are necessary for the proper performance of WUC (other than Approvals which the Principal has advised the Contractor it has already obtained). The Contractor must obtain and maintain all such Approvals until the end of the last Defects Liability Period to expire. The cost of obtaining and maintaining all such Approvals shall be borne by the Contractor.
- 5.3 (**Compliance**) The Contractor must ensure that its Personnel comply with all Approvals and other laws which are in anyway applicable to WUC, including, unless the Contract expressly provides otherwise, by paying all fees, royalties, levies, charges, costs, expenses, taxes, or duties.
- 5.4 (**Obtaining or granting of Approvals by Principal**) The Principal gives no warranty and makes no representation that:
  - (a) it will be able to obtain, or obtain within any particular time; or
  - (b) where the Principal is the relevant Authority, that it will grant,

any Approvals required for the Contractor to perform WUC.

- 5.5 (**Timing**) The Contractor is deemed to have allowed a reasonable time in the Program for all required Approvals to be applied for and obtained.
- 5.6 (**No fetter**) Nothing in the Contract shall be taken to fetter the power, rights, or authority of the Principal as an Authority under the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld), the *Local Government Regulation 2012* (Qld), or any other law.

#### 6. SITE

- 6.1 (**Requirements of access**) The Contractor's attention is drawn to clause 24 of the General Conditions of Contract. The Contractor must provide the following documentation and information to the Superintendent. The documentation and information must be provided:
  - (a) in a form that complies with the requirements of the Contract;
  - (b) as a requirement of the Principal giving access to or possession of the Site; and
  - (c) within 5 Business Days prior to any scheduled commencement of works under the works order:



Item	Description	Relevant clause	
(A)	WHS plan and other WHS documentation (including, if applicable, evidence of payment of fees and lodgement of notice appointing Contractor as principal contractor)	Clause 11 of the General Conditions of Contract	
(B)	Environmental management plan	Clause Error! Reference source not found2 of this General Specification	
(C)	Biosecurity risk management plan	Clause 14.2 of this General Specification	
(D)	Traffic management plan	Clause 16.1 of this General Specification	

- 6.2 (Site specific induction) The Contractor must ensure that:
  - (a) each of the Contractor's Personnel working on Site receives a site-specific induction;
  - (b) every visitor to the Site either receives a site-specific induction or is accompanied at all times at the Site by someone who has received a site-specific induction for that Site (or, where the Site comprises more than one location, the particular part of the Site).
- 6.3 (**Site specific requirements**) The Contractor must comply with the reasonable requirements of the Principal in relation to the Contractor's access to or conduct on the Site.
- 6.4 (Locations within Site) The Contractor must ensure that all plant, equipment, materials, temporary workshops, stores, and offices are kept within the confines of the Site at locations approved by the Superintendent.
- 6.5 (**Unauthorised entry to site**) The Contractor must use all reasonable endeavours to prevent any unauthorised entry to the Site.
- 6.6 (**Signage**) No signage is to be placed on the Site or the perimeter (other than safety signage) without the prior written consent of the Superintendent.
- 6.7 (**Deliveries**) The Contractor is responsible for delivery and unloading of all goods, equipment and other materials used in WUC (including any such materials used by subcontractors), providing space for the storage of the materials, handling the materials, and checking that the materials comply with the requirements of the Contract.
- 6.8 (**Setting out**) The Contractor's attention is drawn to clause 26 of the General Conditions of Contract. The Contractor must:
  - (a) set out The Works from the information shown on the Works Order;
  - (b) check all dimensions on Site before proceeding with WUC; and
  - (c) notify the Superintendent of any omissions or discrepancies within the Works Order.
- 6.9 (Interference) The Contractor must use all reasonable endeavours to minimise interference with existing amenities, whether natural or man-made, and the amount of noise caused by the carrying out of WUC.
- 6.10 (Public utilities and other assets) Without limiting the Contractor's obligations under clause 15 of the General Conditions of Contract, the Contractor must use all reasonable endeavours to identify, locate, and prevent damage to overhead public utility lines, surface drainage works, underground pipes, conduits, and cables in the vicinity of The Works. If the Contractor or any of its Personnel damage any such assets, then:



- (a) the Contractor must immediately report such damage to the owner of the asset and the Superintendent; and
- (b) comply with the requirements of the owner of the asset (including by paying for any required repairs or renewals).

The Contractor must notify the Superintendent immediately if the Contractor considers that it is necessary to alter the location or level of any existing assets to conform with the requirements of the Contract. If directed to do so by the Superintendent, the Contractor must arrange for the relocation Work to be carried out by the appropriate Authority. Subject to clause 25 of the General Conditions of Contract, the Contractor shall bear the cost of such relocation.

- 6.11 (**Other property**) The Contractor must:
  - (a) arrange for any other land (in addition to land made available by the Principal) required by the Contractor to carry out WUC, whether for the storage of materials, plant, or equipment, or for any other purposes;
  - (b) obtain the Principal's permission in writing to enter any private property (as that term is defined in the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld) ('Private Property') before entering the Private Property for the purpose of carrying out WUC or fulfilling any other obligation of the Contractor under the Contract;
  - (c) comply with all Legislative Requirements, including the *Local Government Act 2009* (Qld) in relation to entering Private Property;
  - (d) not unreasonably obstruct, destroy, or damage any Private Property, other land or other property, and ensure that all roadways, drains, watercourses, buildings, fences, gardens, walls, concrete surfaces and paths, grass and trees, and other property are left in a condition equivalent or better than that in which the property was found, unless the Contractor provides written evidence that the owner of the property agrees otherwise;
  - (e) take over control of any approval, permit, or license that the Principal has in place, in relation to the Site or other land made available by the Principal, prior to commencing any WUC on the Site or using or occupying the other land.

#### 7. PROGRAM

- 7.1 (**Format and details**) Should the Principal request a program for the works to be completed under a Works Order from the Contractor the Program shall:
  - (a) be prepared utilising native format Microsoft Project software, or alternative software as approved in writing by the Superintendent;
  - (b) be submitted in electronic format with copies in both PDF format and native Microsoft Project file format; and
  - (c) detail the Contract milestone dates, the commencement and completion dates of each trade, and/or sub-contract;
  - (d) work activity, procurement activities and supply contract activity, with activities linked in a logical progression through a 'critical path' and identify any float based on a continuous cycle of WUC.
- 7.2 (Allowances in program) The Contractor must allow, and is deemed to have allowed, in the program for:
  - (a) the time permitted under the General Conditions of Contract for the Superintendent to review documents for which the Contract requires the Contractor to obtain the Superintendent's Direction about such documents; and



- (b) other timeframes under the Contract within which the Superintendent and the Principal are permitted to act.
- 7.3 (**Approval of Program**) The approval of, or permission to adopt, a Program by the Superintendent will not relieve the Contractor of any of its obligations under the Contract, including the obligation to not, without reasonable cause, depart from an earlier approved Program.

#### 8. QUALITY MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

- (Quality management system) The Contractor must comply with the requirements of the Principal's quality management system which accords with the requirements of ISO 9001 for WUC. The Contractor must ensure that all of the Contractor's Personnel comply with the system.
- (**Inspections**) The Principal and the Superintendent may carry out inspections of the Site at any time. During inspections, the Contractor shall provide the Principal and the Superintendent with all documents, access and assistance reasonably requested by either.

#### 9. REPORTS, MEETINGS AND RECORD KEEPING

- 9.1 (**Progress reports**) The Contractor must:
  - (a) keep the Principal fully informed of the progress and performance of WUC;
  - (b) at the times stated in the Contract and when otherwise reasonably required by the Principal, meet and discuss the performance of the Contractor and/or any other matter concerning the Principal in connection with the Contract; and
  - (c) comply with any recommendations or directions given by the Principal in relation to the performance of the Contractor's obligations under the Contract (but such compliance will not release or discharge the Contractor from any liability or obligation under the Contract).
- 9.2 (**Meetings General**) The Contractor must, at the times reasonably required by the Principal, meet and discuss the performance of the Contractor and/or any other matter concerning the Principal in connection with the Contract.

(Meetings - Specific) The Contractor personnel must attend attend the following meetings:

Item	Meeting description	Topics for discussion	Time for meetings	Required attendees
(a)	Daily Pre-start meeting	Discussion of the schedule and safety requirements of the site/s for the day	Prior to commencement of works on site	Contractor staff performing WUC

- 9.3 (**Record of compliance**) The Superintendent may direct the Contractor to provide reasonable evidence of its compliance with the requirements of the Contract, within the time reasonably required by the Superintendent. The Superintendent and the Principal shall be entitled to rely on any failure by the Contractor to provide reasonable evidence of compliance, with a particular requirement of the Contract as *prima facie* evidence that the Contractor has not complied with that requirement.
- 9.4 (**Photographic evidence**) The Contractor must provide to the Superintendent a progressive photographic record of the progress of WUC at the following stages and as otherwise reasonably required by the Superintendent:





(a)	On the giving of possession of the Site
(b)	At the end of each calendar week prior to the week in which Practical Completion is achieved; and
(c)	At Practical Completion.

Photographs shall be in high-definition digital format and shall be dated and labelled to describe the photograph's content.

#### 10. PAYMENT CLAIMS

- **10.1** (Additional documentation) In addition to the requirements stated in the General Conditions of Contract, the Contractor must provide the following documentation with each claim for payment submitted under the Contract:
  - (a) Evidence of the completion of the works being claimed;
  - (b) Full breakdown (as per the supplied rates) of any variation claims with a copy of the written instruction from the principal for the undertaking of the additional works.
  - (c)

.

#### 11. SAFETY

- 11.1 (**Relationship to General Conditions of Contract**) The Contractor's attention is drawn to clause 12A of the General Conditions of Contract. Nothing in clause 11 shall be taken to limit or exclude any obligation or liability of the Contractor under the General Conditions of Contract or at law in relation to work, health and safety.
- 11.2 (**Storage**) The Contractor must:
  - (a) appropriately store and secure any poisonous, flammable, or injurious substances for the duration of WUC;
  - (b) provide all necessary fully charged fire extinguishers in accessible locations at the Site as are necessary for the care and safety of WUC to the satisfaction of the Superintendent and the Queensland Fire and Emergency Services, or other relevant Authority;
  - (c) provide adequate first aid facilities appropriate to the size and composition of his/her staff and labour force and the nature of WUC;
  - (d) if the Principal has appointed a third party as principal contractor for the Site under the *Work Health and Safety Regulation 2011* (Qld), comply with the reasonable requirements of that third party in its capacity as principal contractor; and
  - (e) if the Principal has not appointed a third party as principal contractor for the Site:
    - (i) comply with the Principal's Policies and Procedures relating to work, health and safety;
    - (ii) inform the Principal of all its work health safety policies, procedures or measures implemented for the individual project sites established for performance of its obligations under this Contract.



#### 12. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

- 12.1 (**Environmental protection**) The Contractor must, and must ensure that its Personnel, perform the Contractor's obligations in accordance with:
  - (a) best practice environmental management (as that term is defined in Section 21 of the *Environmental Protection Act 1994* (Qld));
  - (b) the requirements of all other Legislative Requirements relating to the protection of the Environment; and
  - (c) the Principal's policies and procedures relating to the protection of the Environment.
- 12.2 (Environmental Management System) The Contractor must provide a copy of its environmental risk assessments and relevant control strategies for WUC for the Superintendent's review prior as a requirement of possession of the Site and prior to any prestart meeting. The level of detail in the risk assessments shall be adequate to provide the Superintendent with a clear understanding of the required Work.
- 12.3 (Protection of Fauna) The Contractor must:
  - (a) use all reasonable endeavours to minimise disruption to any fauna at or in the vicinity of the Site;
  - (b) ensure that each of the Contractor's Personnel and every other person carrying out WUC at the Site:
    - (i) is appropriately trained in relation to the protection of fauna prior to carrying out any part of WUC;
    - (ii) aware of the potential for impacts on fauna and the need to minimise these impacts,

prior to that person carrying out any WUC; and

- (c) use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that each of the Contractor's Personnel and every other person carrying out WUC at the Site minimises disruption to any fauna in the vicinity of the Site; and
- (d) at the Contractor's expense, comply with any Directions issued by the Superintendent to address any excessive or avoidable adverse impact on fauna at or in the vicinity of the Site.

#### 12.4 (**Protection of Flora**) The Contractor must:

- (a) use all reasonable endeavours to minimise disruption to any flora at or in the vicinity of the Site;
- (b) ensure that each of the Contractor's Personnel and every other person carrying out WUC at the Site is appropriately trained in relation to the protection of flora prior to that person carrying out any part of WUC;
- (c) use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that that each of the Contractor's Personnel and every other person carrying out WUC at the Site minimises disruption to existing flora at or in the vicinity of the Site;
- (d) make good any damage to flora caused by the Contractor or its Personnel, other than damage which is the unavoidable consequence of carrying out WUC; and



(e) at the Contractor's expense, comply with any Directions issued by the Superintendent to address any excessive or avoidable adverse impact on flora at or in the vicinity of the Site.

#### 13. WASTE MANAGEMENT

- 13.1 (**Definitions**) In this clause 'Levyable Waste Disposal Site", "Levyable Waste", "Waste", "Waste Disposal Site" and "Waste Levy" have the meanings given to those terms in the *Waste Reduction and Recycling Act 2011* (Qld).
- 13.2 (**Contractor's obligation**) The Contractor must:
  - (a) ensure that all Waste from the Site is placed in appropriate containers and removed from the Site to a legal Waste Disposal Site in accordance with the *Waste Reduction and Recycling Act 2011* (Qld) and any other applicable Legislative Requirements;
  - (b) otherwise, ensure that all Waste arising from WUC is disposed of in accordance with the requirements of the *Waste Reduction and Recycling Act 2011* (Qld) and any other applicable Legislative Requirements relating to the disposal of Waste; and
  - (c) pay all royalties, levies, fees, charges, costs, expenses, taxes, or duties in connection with the disposal of Waste.
- 13.3 (**Energy Use**) The Contractor shall ensure that the use of energy for WUC is minimised by undertaking regular maintenance of all machinery to ensure energy efficiency and by utilising minimum sized machinery to undertake tasks.

#### 14. BIOSECURITY MANAGEMENT

- 14.1 (**Definitions**) In this clause:
  - (a) a **Biosecurity Risk** is the risk that exists when dealing with:
    - (i) any pest, disease, or contaminant (including plants, seeds, spores, eggs, vertebrate, and invertebrate pest); or
    - (ii) something that could carry a pest, disease or contaminant (e.g., animals, plants, soil, equipment and water—known as 'carriers').
  - (b) a Potential Biosecurity Risk is a Biosecurity Risk that does not currently occur at the Site, but which has the capacity to occur at the Site. It may be present but not visible or may be introduced during WUC. It includes risks associated with carriers and the movement and sourcing of materials, vehicles, and machinery; and the disturbance, import, or export of soils;
  - (c) a **Known Biosecurity Risk** is a Biosecurity Risk that is currently recorded within the footprint or proximity of the Site which is:
    - (i) identified within biosecurity plans or programs active for the area;
    - (ii) identified during WUC; or
    - (iii) otherwise identified by the Principal;
  - (d) **BRMP** means a Biosecurity Risk management plan;
  - (e) **General Biosecurity Obligation** has the meaning given to that term in the *Biosecurity Act 2014* (Qld).



- 14.2 (**Biosecurity Risk management plan**) The Contractor must prepare and obtain the Superintendent's Direction regarding a BRMP pursuant to subclause 8.3 of the General Conditions of Contract. The BRMP must:
  - (a) describe the processes and procedures for the management of Biosecurity Risks in connection with WUC;
  - (b) outline reasonable and practical steps to address Biosecurity Risks;
  - (c) describe how the Contractor will meet its General Biosecurity Obligation;
  - (d) address both Potential Biosecurity Risks and Known Biosecurity Risks.

The Contractor must comply with and ensure that all of the Contractor's Personnel comply with the BRMP.

14.3 (**Training**) The Contractor must ensure that each of the Contractor's Personnel and every other person carrying out WUC at the Site is appropriately trained to be aware of Biosecurity Risks prior to that person carrying out any part of WUC. If at any time during WUC a breach of the BRMP or a significant Biosecurity Risk is identified, then the Contractor must immediately contact the Superintendent for Direction.

#### 15. CULTURAL HERITAGE

((**Definitions**) In this clause:

- (a) **Aboriginal Cultural Heritage** has the same meaning as in the *Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003* (Qld);
- (b) **Aboriginal Party** has the same meaning as in the *Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003* (Qld);
- (c) **Cultural Heritage** includes Aboriginal Cultural Heritage, Torres Strait Islander Cultural Heritage, and Commonwealth Cultural Heritage;
- (d) **Commonwealth Cultural Heritage** means significant Aboriginal areas and objects under the *Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Heritage Protection Act 1984* (Cth);
- (e) **Torres Strait Islander Cultural Heritage** has the same meaning as in the *Torres Strait Islander Cultural Heritage Act 2003* (Qld); and
- (f) **Torres Strait Islander Party** has the same meaning as in the *Torres Strait Islander Cultural Heritage Act 2003* (Qld).
- (**Cultural Heritage plan**) The Contractor must comply with any direction given by the Principal regarding the Cultural Heritage arrangements of the site. The Contractor must ensure that all of the Contractor's Personnel comply with the Principal's directions
- (**Compliance**) Without limiting any other obligation of the Contractor under the Contract or any law, the Contractor's attention is drawn to, and the Contractor must comply, and must use all reasonable endeavours to ensure that its Personnel comply with:
  - (g) the requirements of, the Aboriginal Cultural Heritage Act 2003 (Qld), Torres Strait Islander Cultural Heritage Act 2003 (Qld) and the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Heritage Protection Act 1984 (Cth); and
  - (h) to the extent that it is not inconsistent with the obligation in clause 15(g), any Cultural Heritage plan prepared by the Contractor.



(**Training**) The Contractor must ensure that the each of Contractor's Personnel and every other person carrying out WUC at the Site, is appropriately trained to be aware of Cultural Heritage prior to that person carrying out any part of WUC.

(Discovery of assets) If Cultural Heritage assets are encountered at the Site, the Contractor must:

- (i) cease all Work in the area surrounding the asset;
- (j) notify the Superintendent; and
- (k) take appropriate actions as outlined in the Cultural Heritage plan (if any) or as otherwise directed by the Superintendent.

#### 16. TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT

- 16.1 (**Traffic management plan**) The Contractor must, within the time required by clause 6.1, prepare and provide to the Superintendent for review a traffic management plan for WUC, detailing how the Contractor will manage traffic in accordance with the requirements of the Contract. The Contractor must obtain and comply with the Superintendent's Direction regarding the plan pursuant to subclause 8.3 of the General Conditions of Contract. The Contractor must comply, and ensure that all of the Contractor's Personnel comply, with the traffic management plan at all times until the expiration of the last Defects liability Period to expire.
- 16.2 (General) The Contractor:
  - (a) is responsible for the safety of all pedestrians and vehicular traffic at, or adjacent to the Site, or in any way affected by the execution of WUC;
  - (b) must provide all necessary lights, barriers, notices and signs, and other traffic control devices required for the safe and appropriate management of traffic.
  - (c) must comply with and ensure that all traffic control devices conform to:
    - (i) the current Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices published by the Department of Transport and Main Roads;
    - (ii) Queensland Guide to Temporary Traffic Management;
    - (iii) AS1742 Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices;
    - (iv) Austroads Australian Guide to Temporary Traffic Management;
    - (v) Queensland Guide to Road Safety;
    - (vi) Guideline Traffic Management at Works on Roads,

as amended or replaced from time to time. In the event of any inconsistency, ambiguity, discrepancy, or conflict between any requirement or standard in the documents listed above, the Contractor shall comply with the more onerous requirement or higher standard unless otherwise directed by the Superintendent.

- 16.3 (**No obstruction**) The Contractor must:
  - (a) provide for the continuous operation of normal traffic along all roads, and pedestrian and vehicular access to properties included in the Contract or intersected by WUC;
  - (b) where necessary, provide side-tracks which must be appropriately constructed, signposted, lit, and maintained; and



(c) use all reasonable endeavours to avoid obstructing any side road, branch track, drain, or watercourse and to the extent that such obstructions cannot be avoided, remove such obstructions as soon as possible.

#### 17. HEAVY VEHICLE NATIONAL LAW

- 17.1 (**Meaning of terms**) Terms used in this clause which are defined in the Heavy Vehicle National Law (Queensland) (the 'National Law') have the same meaning as in that law.
- 17.2 (**General obligations**) The Contractor must ensure, so far as is reasonably practicable, the safety of the Contractor's transport activities. Without limiting this, the Contractor must, so far as is reasonably practicable:
  - (a) eliminate public risks and, to the extent it is not reasonably practicable to eliminate public risks, minimise the public risks; and
  - (b) ensure the party's conduct does not directly or indirectly cause or encourage:
    - (i) the driver of the heavy vehicle to contravene the National Law; or
    - (ii) the driver of the heavy vehicle to exceed a speed limit applying to the driver; or
    - (iii) another person, including another party in the chain of responsibility, to contravene the National Law.
- 17.3 (Notice) The Contractor must immediately:
  - (a) notify the Superintendent if the Contractor considers that anything in this Contract, or any act or omission of the Principal or its respective officers, employees, agents or representatives, has or is likely to, directly or indirectly, cause or encourage the Contractor or any Personnel of the Contractor:
    - (i) being the driver of a heavy vehicle to contravene the National Law; or
    - (ii) being the driver of a heavy vehicle to exceed a speed limit applying to the driver; or
    - (iii) being another person, including another party in the chain of responsibility, to contravene the National Law; and
  - (b) notify the Principal and the Superintendent in writing in the event that it, or any Personnel, is issued with any warning, request for information or production of documents, notice or fine in respect of any breach of chain of responsibility law in respect of WUC. The Contractor undertakes to provide the Principal and the Superintendent with a copy of any such warning, request, notice or fine, and any response or submissions made by it in relation to the same.
- 17.4 (**Chain of Responsibility**) In addition to its obligations under the chain of responsibility law, the Contractor must comply with the following chain of responsibility compliance assurance conditions, that:
  - (a) the Principal has a policy of compliance for its chain of responsibility obligations under the National Law. The Contractor agrees that it complies with its obligations under the chain of responsibility laws, and has a policy of training and compliance that is subject to periodic review and assessment. The Contractor will require its subcontractors and agents to comply with chain of responsibility obligations in any supply chain arrangement or any arrangement whatsoever in connection with WUC;
  - (b) the Principal is committed to taking all reasonable steps to ensure that any carriage of goods by road performed as part of WUC is performed safely and in accordance with the National Law and the chain of responsibility provisions it contains. The Principal will



not comply with any instruction or requirement of the Contractor that might have the effect of contributing to a breach of the National Law, or preventing the Principal from taking all steps that it considers necessary to prevent any breach of the National Law;

- (c) upon becoming aware of any breach of mass, dimension, load restraint, fatigue, speed, or maintenance requirement, the Principal may report the breach to the relevant Authority and retain records of the breach; and
- (d) as a requirement of access to the Site, the Contractor must provide copies of any/all:
  - (i) chain of responsibility policy;
  - (ii) mass, dimension, or load restraint policy;
  - (iii) speed management policy;
  - (iv) fatigue management policy; and
  - (v) maintenance management policy,

that is in place in respect of its business.

#### 18. LABOUR HIRE

The Contractor must not provide or utilise any labour for any WUC, unless the provider of that labour hire is registered under the *Labour Hire Licensing Act 2017* (Qld).